
 

Individuals addressing the Council are asked to step to the microphone and clearly state their name and 
address before speaking. In accordance with ADA guidelines, if you need special accommodations to 

attend any city meeting, please notify the City Clerk’s Office at 417-732-3101 at least three days prior to 
the scheduled meeting. All meetings are recorded for public viewing. 

Matt Russell, Mayor 
Eric Gerke, Ward I 

Garry Wilson, Ward II 
Christopher Updike, Ward III 

Justin Neal, Ward IV 

Eric Franklin, Ward I 
Darran Campbell, Ward II 

Brian Fields, Ward III 
Clint Gerlek, Ward IV 

 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
City Council Meeting 

Municipal Court Building, 540 Civic Blvd  

April 02, 2024 at 6:00 PM 

Call Meeting to Order 

Opening Prayer 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Citizen Participation 

Consent Agenda 

1. Approve the March 19, 2024 City Council Minutes. 

Board, Commission, and Committee Schedule 
Board of Adjustment Meeting  April 4, 2024 
Planning & Zoning Meeting  April 8, 2024 
City Council Meeting   April 16, 2024 
Board of Adjustment Meeting  May 2, 2024 

Old Business and Tabled Items 

2. 24-12 An Ordinance of the City Council Approving Amendment of the Zoning Classification of 
Approximately 40.64 Acres, Located at 664 Aaron Way, from Planned Development District (PDD) 
to Brookside Estates Planned Development District (PDD 24-001). 

3. 24-13 An Ordinance of the City Council Amending Title IV (“Land Use”), Chapter 400 

(“Comprehensive Plan And City Planning And Zoning Commission”), Section 400.010 (“Created – 

Composition – Appointment – Qualifications”), of the Municipal Code of the City of Republic, 

Missouri. 

New Business (First Reading of Ordinances) 

4. 24-14 An Ordinance of the City Council Authorizing the Mayor to Execute an Intergovernmental 
Agreement with the Missouri Department of Labor for Establishment of an Employee 
Apprenticeship Program. 

5. 24-15 An Ordinance of the City Council Amending Title VII (“Utilities”), Chapter 715 (“Sewers And 

Sewage Disposal”), Article 715-II (“Use Of The Publicly-Owned Treatment Works”), Section 

715.130 (”Connection to the Publicly Owned Treatment Works”) of the Municipal Code of the City 

of Republic, Missouri. 

6. 24-16 An Ordinance of the City Council Authorizing the Mayor to Execute an Intergovernmental 

Agreement with the Republic R-III School District and Drury Properties Inc. for Right of Way Access 

and Other Related Obligations as part of the New Republic Intermediate School Project. 

7. 24-17 An Ordinance of the City Council Authorizing the Mayor to Execute an Intergovernmental 

Agreement with the Missouri Highways and Transportation Commission and Drury Properties Inc. 

for Right of Way Access and Other Related Obligations as part of the New Republic Intermediate 

School Project. 

1



 

8. 24-18 An Ordinance of the City Council Authorizing the Mayor to Execute an Intergovernmental 

Agreement with the Republic R-III School District and Springfield Evergreen Holdings, LLC for 

Installation and Maintenance of Sewer Infrastructure to Service the New Republic Intermediate 

School Project. 

9. 24-19 An Ordinance of the City Council Authorizing the Mayor to Execute an Intergovernmental 

Agreement with the Republic R-III School District and Great Escape Beer Works LLC for Installation 

and Maintenance of Sewer Infrastructure to Service the New Republic Intermediate School 

Project. 

10. 24-20 An Ordinance of the City Council Amending Title I (“Government Code”), Chapter 120 (“City 

Officers And Employees”), Article 120-I (“General Provisions”), Section 120.025 (“Mayor And 

Council Compensation”) of the Municipal Code of the City of Republic, Missouri. 

Other Business (Resolutions) 

11. 24-R-14 A Resolution of the City Council Authorizing the City Administrator to Negotiate and Enter 

into an Agreement with Precision Construction & Contracting, LLC for Design Build Services for 

the New Tennis and Pickleball Facility at Miller Park.   
 

12. 24-R-15 A Resolution of the City Council Awarding the Bid for the City’s 2024 Paving Overlays and 

Builds Parking Lot Paving to Blevins Asphalt Construction Company, Inc. 

Reports from Staff 

Adjournment 
 
 

2



 

 
1 | P a g e  

C i t y  C o u n c i l  M e e t i n g ,  M a r c h  1 9 ,  2 0 2 4  

Matt Russell, Mayor 
Eric Gerke, Ward I 

Garry Wilson, Ward II 
Christopher Updike, Ward III 

Justin Neal, Ward IV 

Eric Franklin, Ward I 
Darran Campbell, Ward II 

Brian Fields, Ward III 
Clint Gerlek, Ward IV 

 
 
 
 

MINUTES 
City Council Meeting 

Municipal Court Building, 540 Civic Blvd  

March 19, 2024 at 6:00 PM 

Call Meeting to Order 

The regular session meeting of the City Council of the City of Republic, Greene County, Missouri, was 
called to order by Mayor Matt Russell at 6:00 p.m. Council Members present included Eric Franklin, Garry 
Wilson, Eric Gerke, Darran Campbell, Brian Fields, Justin Neal, Chris Updike, and Clint Gerlek. Others in 
attendance were: City Administrator David Cameron, Assistant City Administrator Andrew Nelson, Chief 
of Staff Lisa Addington, City Attorney Megan McCullough, Fire Chief Duane Compton, Police Chief Brian 
Sells, Assistant City Administrator/Parks and Recreation Director Jared Keeling, City Clerk Laura Burbridge, 
Finance Director Bob Ford, Planning Manager Karen Haynes, Sergeant Zach Richards, Recreation 
Superintendent Garrett Cline, Principal Planner Chris Tabor, and IT Director Chris Crosby. 

Opening Prayer 

Opening prayer was led by City Administrator David Cameron. 

Pledge of Allegiance 

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Mayor Matt Russell. 

Citizen Participation 

Mayor Russell opened citizen participation at 6:01 p.m.   

Terry Mooneyham, 1733 E Charles, spoke for the Republic Historical Society with an update on their 
progress for a proposed museum and event center building.  Ms. Mooneyham requested the city donate 
the property at 221 N. Main and the pocket park to the Historical Society. 

Brian Smith, 726 W Scott Circle, spoke regarding concerns about growth, taxes, and the lack of voter 
turnout to represent the desires of the citizens.   

Mayor Russell closed citizen participation at 6:08 p.m. 

Mayor's Announcements 

1. Appoint Kami Means to the Planning and Zoning Commission with a term expiring February 6, 
2027. 

Mayor Russell appointed Kami Means to the Planning and Zoning Commission. 

Consent Agenda 

Motion was made by Council Member Wilson and seconded by Council Member Neal to approve the 
consent agenda. The vote was 8 Aye-Campbell, Fields, Franklin, Gerke, Gerlek, Neal, Updike, and Wilson. 
0 Nay.  Motion Carried. 

2. Approve the March 5, 2024 City Council Meeting Minutes. 

3. Approve the Vendor List. 
4. 24-R-11 A Resolution of the City Council Authorizing the Purchase and Safety Equipment Outfitting 

of Three (3) New Police Department Vehicles. 

 

3

Item 1.



 

 
 2 | P a g e  

C i t y  C o u n c i l  M e e t i n g ,  M a r c h  1 9 ,  2 0 2 4  

Board, Commission, and Committee Schedule 
City Council Meeting   April 2, 2024 
Board of Adjustment Meeting  April 4, 2024 
Planning & Zoning Meeting  April 8, 2024 
City Council Meeting   April 16, 2024 

Old Business and Tabled Items 

5. 24-09 An Ordinance of the City Council Amending Title II (“Public Health, Safety And Welfare”), 

Chapter 215 (“Offenses”), Article 215-XII (“Offenses Concerning Minors”), Section 215.2000 

(“Use Of Alcoholic Beverages And/Or Controlled Substances By Minors At Open Parties 

Prohibited-Penalties-Person In Control Of Premises Liable”), of the Municipal Code of the City 

of Republic, Missouri. 

Motion was made by Council Member Fields and seconded by Council Member Franklin to have 
the second reading of Bill 24-09 by title only. The vote was 8 Aye-Campbell, Fields, Franklin, Gerke, 
Gerlek, Neal, Updike, and Wilson. 0 Nay. Motion Carried.  Megan McCullough was available for 
any questions of Council.  Council Member Campbell motioned for the passage of Bill 24-
09.  Council Member Franklin seconded.  A roll call vote was taken digitally.  The vote was 8 Aye-
Campbell, Fields, Franklin, Gerke, Gerlek, Neal, Updike, and Wilson.  0 Nay.  Motion Carried. 

6. 24-10 An Ordinance of the City Council Approving the Annexation of Approximately 25 Acres of 
Property Located Near 1100 North Main Avenue and Adjacent Right-of-Way. 

Motion was made by Council Member Franklin and seconded by Council Member Wilson to have 
the second reading of Bill 24-10 by title only. The vote was 8 Aye-Campbell, Fields, Franklin, Gerke, 
Gerlek, Neal, Updike, and Wilson. 0 Nay. Motion Carried.  Chris Tabor was available for any 
questions of Council.  Council Member Fields motioned for the passage of Bill 24-10.  Council 
Member Franklin seconded.  A roll call vote was taken digitally.  The vote was 8 Aye-Campbell, 
Fields, Franklin, Gerke, Gerlek, Neal, Updike, and Wilson.  0 Nay.  Motion Carried. 

7. 24-11 An Ordinance of the City Council Amending Title I, Chapter 130 (“Municipal Court”), 

Article 130-I (“Municipal Court General Provisions”), Article 130-II (“Court Costs and Fees”), 

Sections 130.080 (“Report To City Council”), 130.180 (“Jailing Of Defendants”), 130.250 (“Court 

Costs”), and 130.280 (“Installment Payment Of Fine”), of the Municipal Code of the City of 

Republic, Missouri. 

Motion was made by Council Member Wilson and seconded by Council Member Fields to have 
the second reading of Bill 24-11 by title only. The vote was 8 Aye-Campbell, Fields, Franklin, Gerke, 
Gerlek, Neal, Updike, and Wilson. 0 Nay. Motion Carried.  Megan McCullough was available for 
any questions from the Council.  Council Member Franklin motioned for the passage of Bill 24-
11.  Council Member Wilson seconded.  A roll call vote was taken digitally.  The vote was 8 Aye-
Campbell, Fields, Franklin, Gerke, Gerlek, Neal, Updike, and Wilson.  0 Nay.  Motion Carried. 

New Business (First Reading of Ordinances) 

8. 24-12 An Ordinance of the City Council Approving Amendment of the Zoning Classification of 
Approximately 40.64 Acres, Located at 664 Aaron Way, from Planned Development District 
(PDD) to Brookside Estates Planned Development District (PDD 24-001). 

Motion was made by Council Member Wilson and seconded by Council Member Updike to have 
the first reading of Bill 24-12 by title only. The vote was 8 Aye-Campbell, Fields, Franklin, Gerke, 
Gerlek, Neal, Updike, and Wilson. 0 Nay. Motion Carried.  Chris Tabor gave an overview of the 

4

Item 1.



 

 
 3 | P a g e  

C i t y  C o u n c i l  M e e t i n g ,  M a r c h  1 9 ,  2 0 2 4  

bill.  Josh Bryan, 1006 E. Camarene St. spoke in favor of the bill representing the developer. Jim 
Schwab, 634 E Ginger Bid Ct., spoke in opposition to the rezone.  Jim Hyde, 614 S Conroy, spoke 
in opposition to the rezone.  Mayor Russell reminded Council this is a first read and to get with 
staff with questions prior to the next meeting. 

9. 24-13 An Ordinance of the City Council Amending Title IV (“Land Use”), Chapter 400 

(“Comprehensive Plan And City Planning And Zoning Commission”), Section 400.010 (“Created 

– Composition – Appointment – Qualifications”), of the Municipal Code of the City of Republic, 

Missouri. 

Motion was made by Council Member Franklin and seconded by Council Member Neal to have 
the first reading of Bill 24-13 by title only. The vote was 8 Aye-Campbell, Fields, Franklin, Gerke, 
Gerlek, Neal, Updike, and Wilson. 0 Nay. Motion Carried.  Chris Tabor gave an overview of the 
bill.  Mayor Russell reminded Council this is a first read and to get with staff with questions prior 
to the next meeting. 

Other Business (Resolutions) 

10. 24-R-12 A Resolution of the City Council Authorizing the City Administrator to Enter into an 
Agreement with Performance Food Group, Inc. (d/b/a Performance Foodservice-Missouri) to 
Provide Professional Food Service Delivery for the Parks and Recreation Department’s 
Concession Operations.    

Motion was made by Council Member Wilson and seconded by Council Member Updike to take 
up Resolution 24-R-12.  Garrett Cline presented the Resolution and answered questions of 
Council.  Council Member Gerke left the meeting.  The vote was 7 Aye-Campbell, Fields, Franklin, 
Gerke, Gerlek, Neal, Updike, and Wilson.  0 Nay.  Motion Carried. 

11. 24-R-13 A Resolution of the City Council Appointing New Authorized Signers for the City’s 
General Operating Account and Bond Proceeds Account with Arvest Bank and Modifying the 
Process by which the City is to Provide Notice of any Changes to Said Signers. 

Motion was made by Council Member Campbell and seconded by Council Member Wilson to take 
up Resolution 24-R-13.  Bob Ford presented the Resolution and answered questions of 
Council.  The vote was 7 Aye-Campbell, Fields, Franklin, Gerke, Gerlek, Neal, Updike, and 
Wilson.  0 Nay.  Motion Carried. 

Reports from Staff 

City Administrator David Cameron thanked the citizens in attendance for expressing their concerns and 
thanked the developer as well. Mr. Cameron noted he and Council have taken several calls regarding the 
rezone.  Mr. Cameron thanked Chris Tabor for the great job presenting and answering questions, adding 
he appreciated all the work to prepare the item.  Mr. Cameron also thanked Garrett Cline for the great 
job on his item. 

City Administrator David Cameron updated Council on Senate Bill 979, the annexation bill from 
Springfield.  Mr. Cameron reported this is picking back up and a revised version has been provided to our 
attorney, who is working on language and comment in response.  Mr. Cameron noted we hope to release 
it  this week.  Mr. Cameron also announced that Republic did not receive state funding this year despite 
numerous conversations at the capitol.  Mr. Cameron thanked Senator Hough and Representative 
Davidson for their hard work to help us.  Mr. Cameron acknowledged we have probably received the 
highest allocations in the state but will continue to work on funding opportunities.  Mr. Cameron 
encouraged everyone to thank our representatives if they see them for all they have done for 

5

Item 1.



 

 
 4 | P a g e  

C i t y  C o u n c i l  M e e t i n g ,  M a r c h  1 9 ,  2 0 2 4  

us.  Returning to Senate Bill 979, Mr. Cameron acknowledged we do want to see Springfield expand and 
grow, but we need to all be on the same page and with our boundary agreement, there are questions 
whether the bill would supersede that agreement.   

City Administrator David Cameron thanked the Historical Society, noting we have labored over what to 
do with that building.  Mr. Cameron also reminded everyone that there are ballot measures coming up 
and Mayor/Council seats. 

Council Member Franklin requested confirmation on the next Main Street Workshop location next 
week.  Staff reported it will be at the Christian Church.  Mr. Franklin reminded everyone to vote, noting 
he appreciates seeing signs out and action by candidates.  Mr. Franklin thanked the Planning and Zoning 
Commission and staff involved for the great job on the last meeting, noting he enjoyed the Planning and 
Zoning 101 training.   

Council Member Gerlek noted that as a kid, it was often repeated that you can't teach size or speed, but 
what applies in this room is you can't teach passion, you just have it.  Mr. Gerlek noted regardless of 
someone's public speaking skills, the passion makes people willing to do it, whether we agree with each 
other or not.  Mr. Gerlek noted he did agree with the concern of the number of people who show up to 
vote to address the issues for the community, noting we need people to get out and vote.  Mr. Gerlek 
acknowledged the passion shown and not being dissuaded from action due to fears.  Mr. Gerlek thanked 
everyone for coming out to speak, adding not to lose the passion. 

Mayor Russell encouraged everyone to enjoy the evening. 

Adjournment 

Mayor Russell adjourned the meeting at 7:23 p.m. 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
__________________________________         _______________________________ 
Laura Burbridge, City Clerk                                    Matt Russell, Mayor 
 

6

Item 1.



 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM ANALYSIS 
 

Project/Issue Name: 24-12 An Ordinance of the City Council Approving Amendment of the 
Zoning Classification of Approximately 40.64 Acres, Located at 664 
Aaron Way, from Planned Development District (PDD) to Brookside 
Estates Planned Development District (PDD 24-001). 

Submitted By: Chris Tabor, BUILDS Department Principal Planner 

Date: April 2, 2024 
 

 

Issue Statement 

SGF Landing LLC has applied to change the Zoning Classification of approximately 40.64 acres of 

property located at 664 East Aaron Way from Planned Development District (PDD) to Brookside Estates 

Planned Development District (PDD). 

Discussion and/or Analysis 

The property subject to this Rezoning Application is comprised of approximately 40.64 acres of land 

located at 664 E Aaron Way.  The property is currently occupied by two residential dwellings and some 

accessory structures.  The use of the property is primarily residential in nature. 

Applicant’s Proposal 

The Applicant is proposing the Rezoning of the subject property to Brookside Estates Planned 

Development District (PDD), a single-family residential subdivision containing a maximum of 153 lots 

and a maximum density of 3.76 lots per acre.   

Specifically, the proposed Development Plan will allow for a mix of single-family residential lots 

consisting of 48 lots with a minimum lot size of 9,000 sf, 105 lots with a minimum lot size of 7,000 sf, 

and detention.  The Development Plan also contains new water, sanitary sewer, and stormwater 

systems to support the development, a required collector street, and a number of local streets to 

support the development.   

Specifically, the Applicant’s proposal includes the following elements: 

 Medium-Density Single-Family Residential (R1-M) 

o Total Lots:  48 

o Permitted Uses:  Single-Family Residential 

o Setbacks (required distance from the building footprint to the respective property line): 

 Front:  25 Feet 

 Rear:  25 Feet 

7

Item 2.



 

 

 Interior Side Setback:  6 Feet 

 Side Street Setback:  15 Feet 

o Required Frontage (measurement of the property along the road): 

 80 Feet 

 

 High-Density Single-Family Residential (R1-H) 

o Total Lots:  105 

o Permitted Uses:  Single-Family Residential  

o Setbacks (required distance from the building footprint to the respective property line): 

 Front:  25 Feet 

 Rear:  25 Feet 

 Interior Side Setback:  6 Feet 

 Side Street Setback:  15 Feet 

o Required Frontage (measurement of the property along the road): 

 70 Feet 

The following paragraphs contain brief analyses of present site conditions as well as the proposal’s 

relationship to adopted plans of the City. 

Current Conditions of Property 

The subject property is currently zoned as part of the Valley Trails Planned Development District (PDD).  

This PDD allows for single-family homes at a density of 2.7 homes per acre.  The Development Plan for 

Valley Trails includes custom setbacks and lot sizes.  

Lot specifications for the subject property’s existing zoning (PDD) include the following elements: 

 Valley Trails Planned Development District (PDD) 

o Permitted Uses:  Single-Family Residential  

o Setbacks (required distance from the building footprint to the respective property line): 

 Front:  15 Feet 

 Rear:  15 Feet 

 Interior Side Setback:  5 Feet 

o Required Frontage (measurement of the property along the road): 

 50 Feet 

 

Consistency with the Planned Development District (PDD) Ordinance 

The purpose of the Planned Development Regulations is to allow for mixed-use, unconventional, or 

innovative arrangements of land uses and public facilities, which would be difficult to develop under the 

conventional land use and development regulations of the City.   

 

8

Item 2.



 

 

Planned Unit Developments must demonstrate substantial congruence with each of the following 

conditions in order to be considered eligible for approval: 

 The proposed Development Plan shall involve a mixture or variation of land uses or densities 

 Brookside Estates PDD includes two differing residential densities within the project 

area. 

 The proposed Development Plan shall involve the provision of all infrastructure deemed 

necessary to adequately serve the potential development. 

 The Brookside Estates PDD Development Plan includes provisions for municipal water 

and sewer services, a plan for stormwater management, and the construction of several 

Local-class Streets and one Collector-class Street. 

 The proposed Development Plan shall involve design elements that promote the City of 

Republic’s Comprehensive Plan and other adopted plans of the City. 

 The City of Republic’s Comprehensive and Land Use Plans promote the expansion of 

commercial and residential development at locations supported by the City’s water, 

sanitary sewer, and transportation networks; the Brookside Estates property can be 

adequately supported by the City’s capacities for water, sewer, and transportation.   

 The proposed Development Plan shall involve design elements intended to lessen congestion in 

the streets; to secure safety from fire, panic, and other dangers; to promote health and the 

general welfare; to provide adequate light and air; to prevent the overcrowding of land; to avoid 

undue concentration of population; to preserve features of historical significance; to facilitate 

the adequate provision of transportation, water, sewerage, schools, parks, and other public 

improvements. 

 The Brookside Estates Development Plan includes the construction of Grace Street, 

which would serve as a collector from Main Street to Lynn Avenue.  As currently 

configured, no such connection exists for more than 5,000 ft between Miller Road and 

Countyline Road. 

Consistency with the Comprehensive Plan and Land Use Plan 

The City’s Comprehensive Plan and Land Use Plan generally encourages the expansion of residential 

development through proactive rezoning of land at appropriate locations.  Appropriate locations are 

described generally throughout the Plan with regard to the relationship of land at particular locations 

to infrastructure capable of supporting various intensities and densities of uses.   

The 2021 Comprehensive Plan and Land Use Plan identifies Land Use Goals and Objectives relating to 

development, as follows: 

 Community Development Goals and Objectives 

o Goal 1:  Support market conditions to develop a greater variety of residential options. 

 Objective 1A:  Support a variety of housing developments and styles to ensure a 

range of options are available. 

 Coordination with Infrastructure 

9

Item 2.



 

 

o Goal 1:  Support new development that is well-connected to the existing community. 

 Objective 1A:  Encourage development that improves and expands upon 

existing infrastructure. 

 Objective 1B:  Promote development aligning with current adopted plans of the 

City. 

o Goal 2:  Recognize potential infill sites as opportunities for development, while 

mitigating impacts to adjacent established properties. 

 Objective 1A: Support the development of vacant parcels as opportunities for 

densification that is harmonious with surrounding development. 

Compatibility with Surrounding Land Uses 

Zoning Compatibility 

The subject site is surrounded by existing agricultural and residential zoned properties and uses: 

 North:  Medium Density Single-Family Residential (R1-M) 

 South:  Greene County Agricultural (A-1) 

 East:  Medium Density Single-Family Residential (R1-M); Valley Trails Planned Development 

District (PDD) 

 West:  Medium Density Single-Family Residential (R1-M) 

The proposed Development Plan ensures that incoming properties are adjacent to those of like zoning.  

Brookside Estates is planned so that owners of existing lots zoned Medium-Density Single-Family 

Residential (R1-M) would be assured that only R1-M lots would be created next to them.   

The land uses permitted in the Applicant’s proposal are considered to be generally compatible with the 

surrounding agricultural and residential zoned properties and uses in proximity to the subject parcel.   

Capacity to Serve Potential Development and Land Use 

Municipal Water and Sewer Service:  The subject site is in proximity to City of Republic sanitary sewer 

and water service, with existing points of connection to the north, east, and west.  Several potential 

connections are available for both utilities.   

The development will be served via a looped water system, connecting to existing water mains that have 

points of connection to the north, east, and west.  The exact location and size of the water mains 

required to serve the development will be determined during the infrastructure design process. 

Effluent from the development would travel to the Shuyler Creek Lift Station before traveling back to 

the Wastewater Treatment Facility.   

The Water System, existing Lift Station, and the Wastewater Treatment Facility have sufficient 

capacity to serve the proposed development at full build-out. 

 

 

 

10

Item 2.



 

 

Transportation:  Brookside Estates proposes six new streets facilitating circulation within the 

subdivision: 

 Spring Court 

 Spruce Way 

 Sugar Pine Lane 

 Briarwood Drive 

 Cyprus Way 

 Creekside Place 

The Development Plan extends four existing streets: 

 Hardy Street 

 Hadley Street 

 Halsey Street 

 Grace Street 

The proposed Development Plan would finish several planned connections to existing neighborhoods to 

facilitate travel within the City.  At each of these connection points, streets were previously “stubbed 

out” to the edge of the property to provide future access to the subject property.  Completing these 

roads would create additional routes for both residents and emergency service personnel.  Additionally, 

making these connections will alleviate current conditions along portions of Hardy, Hadley, Halsey, and 

Grace within Sterling Meadows where larger vehicles such as fire trucks are unable to turnaround and 

may instead be required to back up as much as 800 feet.   

 

Importantly, the Development Plan includes the construction and dedication of a portion of Grace Street 

which will complete the full connection between Lynn Avenue and Main Street as identified in the City’s 

Transportation Plan.  

In accordance with policy, the Applicant was required to perform a Traffic Impact Study (TIS) to analyze 

the impact of the traffic generated from the proposed development.  The TIS was then reviewed by 

BUILDS Staff.  The results of the TIS indicate the proposed full buildout of the development will not 

warrant any traffic improvements. 

Stormwater:  The Development Plan contains an area designated for stormwater retention/detention, 

designed to accommodate stormwater generated by the development.  The location for this area is in 

the northeast corner of the development, as necessitated by the topography of the property.  Additional 

stormwater areas and/or easements may be required through the engineering design process.  The 

stormwater retention/detention areas, drainage easements, and all open space/common areas will be 

owned and maintained by the Developer and/or a Property Owners Association. 

Floodplain:  The subject parcel does not contain a Special Flood Hazard Area (SFHA/Floodplain). 

Sinkholes:  The subject parcel does not contain any identified sinkholes. 

 

11

Item 2.



 

 

Infrastructure Design:  The design and precise placement of the streets, sidewalks, water and sanitary 

sewer systems, and stormwater detention will be reviewed and permitted during the Infrastructure 

Permitting Process. 

All developments must include site design providing for sufficient emergency vehicle access as well as 

fire protection facilities (e.g. fire hydrants).  Additional elements of code compliance, evaluated at the 

time of infrastructure design, impacting the development of the subject property, include, but are not 

limited to, the City’s Zoning Regulations, adopted Fire Code, and adopted Building Code.  The next 

steps in the process of development of the subject parcel, upon a favorable rezoning outcome, will be 

the development, review, and approval of an Infrastructure Permit for the construction of utility services 

and roads. 

 

Recommended Action 

Staff considers the proposed Zoning Map Amendment (Rezoning to Planned Development District) to 

be generally consistent with the goals and objectives of the Comprehensive and Land Use Plans, 

generally consistent with the trend of development in the vicinity of the site, generally compatible 

with surrounding land uses, and able to be adequately served by municipal facilities.  Specifically, the 

proposed development can be adequately served by the City’s municipal water and sanitary sewer 

services and the City’s transportation network.  Based upon this analysis (performed without the benefit 

of evidence and testimony of a public hearing), Staff recommends the approval of this application. 

 

12

Item 2.



BILL NO. 24-12  ORDINANCE NO. 24- 
 

BILL NO. 24-12  ORDINANCE NO. 24- 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL APPROVING AMENDMENT OF THE ZONING CLASSIFICATION OF 
APPROXIMATELY 40.64 ACRES, LOCATED AT 664 AARON WAY, FROM PLANNED DEVELOPMENT 

DISTRICT (PDD) TO BROOKSIDE ESTATES PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT (PDD 24-001) 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Republic, Missouri (“City” or “Republic”) is a municipal corporation and 
Charter City located in Greene County, Missouri, being duly created, organized, and existing under the 
laws of the State of Missouri; and 
 

WHEREAS, SFG Landing LLC (“Applicant”) submitted an application (“Application”) to the City’s 
BUILDS Department to rezone approximately 40.64 acres of real property located at 664 East Aaron Way 
in Republic, Missouri(“Property”) from Planned Development District (PDD) to the Brookside Estates 
Planned Development District (PDD 24-001); and 

 
WHEREAS, Applicant additionally seeks approval of a development plan for the Brookside Estates 

Planned Development District, identified as PDD 24-001 (“Development Plan”), a single-family residential 
subdivision containing 153 lots and a maximum density of 3.76 lots per acre; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City submitted the Application and Development Plan to the Planning and Zoning 
Commission (“P+Z Commission”) and set a public hearing on the Application for March 11, 2024; and  
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Republic Municipal Code § 405.980, the City published notice of the time 
and date for the public hearing on the Application on February 21, 2024 in the Greene County 
Commonwealth, a newspaper of general circulation in the City, such notice being at least fifteen (15) days 
before the public hearing; and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Republic Municipal Code § 405.980, the City gave notice of the public 

hearing on the Application to the record owners of all properties located within 185 feet of the Property, 
consistent with the information shown by the Greene County Assessor’s Office; and 

 
WHEREAS, the P+Z Commission conducted the public hearing on the application and 

Development on March 11, 2024, after which the P+Z Commission rendered written findings of fact on 
the application, Development Plan, and rezoning and, thereafter, submitted the same, together with its 
recommendations, to the Council; and 
 

WHEREAS, the P+Z Commission, by a vote of 3 Ayes to 1 Nay, recommended the approval of the 
Application and Development Plan; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Application, Development Plan, and request to amend the Zoning Code and Official 
Zoning Map was submitted to the City Council for a first reading at its regular meeting on March 19, 2024, 
after which the City Council hearing the second reading on April 2, 2024, voted to rezone such property 
approve the Development Plan, and amend the Zoning Code accordingly. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF REPUBLIC, MISSOURI, 
AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1: The Zoning Code and Official Zoning Map are hereby amended to reflect the 
rezoning of the real property tract comprising of 40.64 acres located at 664 East 
Aaron Way, Republic, Missouri, more fully described in the legal description 

13

Item 2.



BILL NO. 24-12  ORDINANCE NO. 24- 
 

BILL NO. 24-12  ORDINANCE NO. 24- 

herein below, from Planned Development District (PDD) to Brookside Estates 
Planned Development District (PDD): 

 
A TRACT OF LAND, SITUATED IN THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF 
SECTION 29, TOWNSHIP 28 NORTH, RANGE 23 WEST, CITY OF REPUBLIC, GREENE COUNTY, 
MISSOURI, AND MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:  BEGINNING AT THE SOUTHEAST 
CORNER OF SAID SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER; THENCE NORTH 88°44'00" 
WEST ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER A 
DISTANCE OF 1,332.21 FEET TO THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF THE 
NORTHEAST QUARTER; THENCE NORTH 01°57'15" EAST ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID 
SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER A DISTANCE OF 1,327.28 FEET TO THE 
NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER; THENCE 
SOUTH 88°46'56" EAST ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF SAID SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF THE 
NORTHEAST QUARTER A DISTANCE OF 1,334.20 FEET TO THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF SAID 
SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER; THENCE SOUTH 02°02'22" WEST ALONG THE 
EAST LINE OF SAID SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER A DISTANCE OF 1,328.45 
FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, AND CONTAINING 40.64 ACRES OF LAND, MORE OR LESS, 
SUBJECT TO EASEMENTS AND/OR RIGHTS OF WAY. 

 

Section 2: The Development Plan, attached to this Ordinance and labeled “Attachment 1,” 
is hereby approved and adopted by the Council, along with any modifications and 
conditions imposed herein. 

 
Section 3: Unless otherwise specifically defined by the approved Development Plan, the 

development of the tracts of realty contained herein will be regulated according 
to the requirements of the City of Republic’s Municipal Code of Ordinances. 

 
Section 4: In all other aspects other than those herein amended, modified, or changed, the 

Zoning Code and Official Zoning Map shall remain the same and continue in full 
force and effect. 

 
 Section 5: The whereas clauses are hereby specifically incorporated herein by reference. 
 

Section 6: The provisions of this Ordinance are severable, and if any provisions hereof are   
declared invalid, unconstitutional, or unenforceable, such determination shall not 
affect the validity of the remainder of this Ordinance. 

 
Section 7: This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage as 

provided by law. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Republic, Missouri, 
this __________ day of __________________, 2024. 
 
 
      __________________________________________ 
        Matt Russell, Mayor 
Attest:         
 
 
____________________________________ 
Laura Burbridge, City Clerk 

14

Item 2.



BILL NO. 24-12  ORDINANCE NO. 24- 
 

BILL NO. 24-12  ORDINANCE NO. 24- 

Approved as to Form:   

 

Megan McCullough, City Attorney  

 

Final Passage and Vote: 

 

15

Item 2.



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9101112131415161718192021222324

25

26

27

28

29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36 37 38 39 40 41 42 43

444546474849505152535455565758

59 60 61 62 63 64 65 66 67 68 69 70 71 72 73

747576777879808182838485868788

89 90 91 92 93
94 95 96 97 98 99 100 101 102 103

104105106107108109110111112113114115116117118

119 120 121 122

123

124
125

126

127

128 129 130 131 132 133
134

135

136

137 138 139

140

141

142

143 144 145 146

147
148

149

150

151 152

BENCHMARK

LEGEND

BASIS OF BEARINGS OWNER & DEVELOPER

PRECISION SURVEYING, L.L.C.

BALGL
P.O. BOX 790, REPUBLIC, MO 65738

PHONE (417) 883-0300    FAX (417) 883-0335

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

NUMBER  LS-2010000563

PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

REPUBLIC, GREENE COUNTY, MISSOURI

A PART OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF
SECTION 29, TOWNSHIP 28 NORTH, RANGE 23 WEST

BROOKSIDE ESTATES

ADDITIONAL NOTES

SITE INFORMATION

SURVEY DESCRIPTION

HARDY STREET

HADLEY STREET

AARON WAY

H
EN

R
Y 

ST
R

EE
T

JARED ST

HALSEY STREET

GRACE STREET

GRACE STREET

POINT OF BEGINNING

D
ET

EN
TI

O
N

 B
AS

IN

HADLEY
STREET

GRACE STREET

HALSEY ST

HARDY STREET

C
YP

R
U

S
W

AY

SPRING COURT

SPRUCE WAY

SUGAR PINE
LANE

BR
IA

R
W

O
O

D
D

R
IV

E

C
R

EE
KS

ID
E

PL
AC

E

Proposed Zoning: Planned Development District (PDD)
   
           Medium-Density Single-Family Residential (R1-M)
  
           High-Density Single-Family Residential (R1-H)

LAND USE SITE PLAN
FOR

Existing Zoning: Planned Development District (PDD)

153

16

Item 2.



17

Item 2.



18

Item 2.



19

Item 2.



20

Item 2.



21

Item 2.



22

Item 2.



 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM ANALYSIS 
 

Project/Issue Name: 24-13 An Ordinance of the City Council Amending Title IV (“Land Use”), 
Chapter 400 (“Comprehensive Plan And City Planning And Zoning 
Commission”), Section 400.010 (“Created – Composition – 
Appointment – Qualifications”), of the Municipal Code of the City of 
Republic, Missouri. 

Submitted By: Chris Tabor, BUILDS Department Principal Planner 

Date: April 2, 2024 
 

 

Issue Statement 

Consideration to approve Amendments to Chapter 400 Zoning Regulations, specifically Section 400.010. 

 

Discussion and/or Analysis 

The City of Republic is requesting Amendments to Chapter 400 Comprehensive Plan And City Planning 

And Zoning – specifically to Section 400.010 Created – Composition – Appointment -- Qualifications 

Two changes are proposed to Section 400.010.   

 

The first change would allow for the appointment of up to three Alternates to serve as a voting member 

of the commission when appointed Commissioners are absent.  Such alternates may also be seated in 

the event of a vacancy of a commissionership.  This would help ensure that no Planning and Zoning 

Commission meetings are cancelled due to the lack of a quorum. 

 

The second change clarifies that the attendance of the Mayor, or Mayor Pro Tempore, at Commission 

meetings is discretionary rather than required. 

Recommended Action 

Staff recommends the approval of the referenced Amendment. 

 

23

Item 3.



BILL NO. 24-13  ORDINANCE NO. 24- 
 

BILL NO. 24-13  ORDINANCE NO. 24- 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL AMENDING TITLE IV (“LAND USE”), CHAPTER 400 
(“COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AND CITY PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION”), SECTION 400.010 

(“CREATED – COMPOSITION – APPOINTMENT - QUALIFICATIONS”), OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE OF THE 
CITY OF REPUBLIC, MISSOURI 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Republic, Missouri, (“City” or “Republic”) is a municipal corporation and 

Charter City located in Greene County, Missouri, being duly created, organized, and existing under the 
laws of the State of Missouri; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City routinely reviews its Municipal Code to ensure conformity with governing 
state and federal law, enhance clarity, and eliminate ambiguity, as well as to the further promote the 
City’s mission, vision and values in the best interests of the City and its citizenship body as a whole; and 

 
WHEREAS, in reviewing the Municipal Code consistent with the priorities listed herein above, City 

staff identified the need to amend the existing code provisions governing the Planning and Zoning 
Commission. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF REPUBLIC, MISSOURI, 
AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1: Title IV (“Land Use”), Chapter 400 (“Comprehensive Plan And City Planning And 
Zoning Commission”), Section 400.010 (“Created -- Composition -- Appointment 
– Qualifications”), of the Municipal Code of the City of Republic, Missouri, is 
hereby amended to read as follows: 

 

Chapter 400 Comprehensive Plan And City Planning And Zoning Commission 
 

400.010 Created -- Composition -- Appointment -- Qualifications 
The Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Republic shall consist of seven 

(7) citizens commissioners and up to three (3) alternates appointed by the Mayor 

with the approval of a majority of the members of the City Council. Alternates 

may serve in the absence of or upon the disqualification of regular members. 

Alternates may also serve if one or more of the seven (7) commission positions 

is vacant. The Mayor, or Mayor Pro Tempore, as designated by the Mayor, may 

attend Planning and Zoning Commission meetings.; Aa member of the City 

Council, as selected by the City Council;, and the Planning and Development 

DirectorBUILDS Department Administrator, or his/her designee, shall attend all 

meetings of the Planning and Zoning Commission for the purpose of providing 

such assistance and advice as may be needed; provided however, such persons 

shall not be members of the Planning and Zoning Commission and shall not be 

entitled to vote upon any issue which may come before the Planning and Zoning 

Commission. All members of the Commission shall serve without compensation. 

EXPLANATION:  Matter shown above in bold-face/underlined font (except for Chapter title(s)) is 
added language.  Matter shown above in strikethrough font is deleted language. 

 

24

Item 3.

https://republic.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&bookDataId=18582#name=400.010_Created_--_Composition_--_Appointment_--_Qualifications


BILL NO. 24-13  ORDINANCE NO. 24- 
 

BILL NO. 24-13  ORDINANCE NO. 24- 

Section 2: All other Sections of the Municipal Code of the City of Republic, Missouri, not 
specifically referenced in this Ordinance, shall remain unmodified and in full force 
and effect. 

 
Section 3: The City Administrator or his/her designee, on behalf of the City, is authorized to 

take the necessary steps to execute this Ordinance.  

Section 4:  The WHEREAS clauses above are specifically incorporated herein by reference. 
 

Section 5: The provisions of this Ordinance are severable, and if any provisions hereof are   
declared invalid, unconstitutional, or unenforceable, such determination shall not 
affect the validity of the remainder of this Ordinance.  

 
Section 6: This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage as 

provided by law. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Republic, Missouri, 
this _____ day of April, 2024. 
 
 
      __________________________________________ 
Attest:        Matt Russell, Mayor  
 
 
____________________________________ 
Laura Burbridge, City Clerk 
 
 

Approved as to Form:   

 

Megan McCullough, City Attorney  

 

Final Passage and Vote:   
 

 

25

Item 3.



 

Chapter 400 Comprehensive Plan And City Planning And Zoning Commission 
 

400.010 Created -- Composition -- Appointment -- Qualifications 
The Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Republic shall consist of seven (7) citizens 

commissioners and up to three (3) alternates appointed by the Mayor with the approval of a majority of 

the members of the City Council. Alternates may serve in the absence of or upon the disqualification of 

regular members. Alternates may also serve if one or more of the seven (7) commission positions is 

vacant. The Mayor, or Mayor Pro Tempore, as designated by the Mayor, may attend Planning and Zoning 

Commission meetings.; Aa member of the City Council, as selected by the City Council;, and the Planning 

and Development DirectorBUILDS Department Administrator, or his/her designee, shall attend all 

meetings of the Planning and Zoning Commission for the purpose of providing such assistance and advice 

as may be needed; provided however, such persons shall not be members of the Planning and Zoning 

Commission and shall not be entitled to vote upon any issue which may come before the Planning and 

Zoning Commission. All members of the Commission shall serve without compensation. 

 

26

Item 3.

https://republic.municipalcodeonline.com/book?type=ordinances&bookDataId=18582#name=400.010_Created_--_Composition_--_Appointment_--_Qualifications


27

Item 3.



28

Item 3.



29

Item 3.



30

Item 3.



 

 
 

AGENDA ITEM ANALYSIS 

 

 

Project/Issue Name: 24-14 An Ordinance of the City Council Authorizing the Mayor to Execute 
an Intergovernmental Agreement with the Missouri Department of Labor 
for Establishment of an Employee Apprenticeship Program. 

 
Submitted By: Duane Compton, Fire Chief 

 

Date: April 2, 2024 

 
Issue Statement 

 
Discussion and possible vote for permission for the City of Republic, Fire Department to enter 
into an agreement with the Missouri Department of Labor for the establishment of a Firefighter 
Apprenticeship program. 

Discussion and/or Analysis 

 
This program provides resources for both the employer and the employee. The employer 
benefits as part of a nationally recognized training program, assisting with recruitment, 
retention, policy guidance, and consistency. The employee benefits from the inclusion in a 
program that recognizes completion of training associated with the trades and labor group, 
providing proof of 
training, and leading to certification and college credit through verification of completed 
training. This program is through The Department of Labor Registered Apprenticeship Program 
and is administered by the Missouri Department of Labor.  
 
Approval of this Ordinance provides the City Administrator or his designee permission to sign 
and execute applicable documents associated with this agreement. After execution, the City 
could see a reimbursement from the State of Missouri for equipment and staff time for hiring 
and training of new employees.   
 

Recommended Action 

Staff recommends approval. 
 
 

31

Item 4.



BILL NO. 24-14  ORDINANCE NO. 24- 
 

BILL NO. 24-14 1 ORDINANCE NO. 24- 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE AN 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT WITH THE MISSOURI DEPARTMENT OF LABOR FOR 

ESTABLISHMENT OF AN EMPLOYEE APPRENTICESHIP PROGRAM 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Republic, Missouri, (“City” and/or “Republic”) is a municipal corporation 
and Charter City located in Greene County, Missouri, being duly created, organized, and existing under 
the laws of the State of Missouri; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the United States Department of Labor’s Office of Apprenticeship offers an 

apprenticeship program (“Program”) that includes, among other things, valuable resources for both the 
employer and employee relating to the topics of recruitment and training; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Program is a well-regarded, nationally recognized training program that will 

benefit the City by providing it with numerous resources and assistance in the areas of recruitment and 
retention, training, policy guidance and many other similar features; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City wishes to enter into an intergovernmental agreement with the Missouri 

Department of Labor to establish the apprenticeship program for the City, which is intended to be 
available to all qualifying City staff positions; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City’s employees will also benefit from the City’s participation in the Program by 

having access to training associated with their respective trade(s) and/or labor group(s), and the 
corresponding certifications or other higher education credits upon successful completion of those 
trainings.  

 
WHEREAS, the Council finds it in the best interest of the City to approve the IGA with the 

Department of Labor for their Apprenticeship program for staff training, recruitment, and retention 
assistance. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF REPUBLIC, MISSOURI, 
AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1: The Mayor, on behalf of the City, is authorized to enter into an Intergovernmental 
Agreement with the Missouri Department of Labor setting forth the terms and 
conditions that will govern the program available to qualifying City personnel, to 
be in substantially the same form as that attached to this Ordinance as 
“Attachment 1.”    

 
Section 2: The Mayor and/or City Administrator, on behalf of the City, is authorized to take 

the necessary steps to execute this Ordinance.  
 
Section 3: The WHEREAS clauses above are specifically incorporated herein by reference. 
  
Section 4:  The provisions of this Ordinance are severable, and if any provisions hereof are 

declared invalid, unconstitutional, or unenforceable, such determination shall not 
affect the validity of the remainder of this Ordinance.  

 

32

Item 4.



BILL NO. 24-14  ORDINANCE NO. 24- 
 

BILL NO. 24-14 2 ORDINANCE NO. 24- 

Section 5: This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage as 
provided by law. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Republic, Missouri, 

this __________ day of __________________, 2024. 
 
 
      __________________________________________ 
Attest:        Matt Russell, Mayor  
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Laura Burbridge, City Clerk 
 
 
Approved as to Form:   

 
Megan McCullough, City Attorney  

 

Final Passage and Vote: 

 

33

Item 4.



 

Page | 1 

Registered Apprenticeship Standards 
For Programs with Collective 

Bargaining Agreements 

Local Apprenticeship Standards 

 

CITY OF REPUBLIC 

IAFF LU 152 

213 N Main St 

Republic, MO 65738 

 

Occupation(s):  FIRE FIGHTER 

 

O*NET-SOC Code(s):  33-2011.00   RAPIDS Code(s):  (0195CB) 

 

Developed in Cooperation with the 
U.S. Department of Labor 
Office of Apprenticeship 

Approved by the 
U.S. Department of Labor  
Office of Apprenticeship 

 

Registered By:  signer1name   

                               

Signature:  signer1sig    

 

Title:  signer1title 

Office of Apprenticeship 

Date:  signer1date 

Registration Number:  psNumber 

                          

 

 
 
 

☐ Check here if these are revised standards 

3/7/2024

State Director

Tracy Laughery

2024-MO-128043

34

Item 4.



 

 

 

Page | 2 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

SECTION I - STANDARDS OF APPRENTICESHIP 

SECTION II - APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS 

SECTION III – VETERANS’ EDUCATIONAL ASSISTANCE 

SECTION IV PART 1 - COLLECTIVE BARGAINING PROVISIONS 

SECTION IV PART 2 - SIGNATURES 

    

 

SECTION I – STANDARDS OF APPRENTICESHIP 29 CFR § 29.5 

A. Responsibilities of the sponsor: City of Republic must conduct, operate, and administer this 
program in accordance with all applicable provisions of Title 29 Code of Federal Regulations 
(CFR) part 29, subpart A and part 30, and all relevant guidance issued by the Office of 
Apprenticeship (OA).  The sponsor must fully comply with the requirements and responsibilities 
listed below and with the requirements outlined in the document “Requirements for 
Apprenticeship Sponsors Reference Guide.” 

Sponsors shall: 

 Ensure adequate and safe equipment and facilities for training and supervision 
and provide safety training for apprentices on-the-job and in related instruction. 

 Ensure there are qualified training personnel and adequate supervision on the job. 

 Ensure that all apprentices are under written apprenticeship agreements 
incorporating, directly or by reference, these Standards and the document 
“Requirements for Apprenticeship Sponsors,” and that meets the requirements of 
29 CFR § 29.7.  Sponsors may utilize Form ETA 671 for this purpose and is 
available upon logging into RAPIDS. 

 Register all apprenticeship Standards with the U.S. Department of Labor, including 
local variations, if applicable. 

 Submit apprenticeship agreements within 45 days of enrollment of apprentices. 

 Arrange for periodic evaluation of apprentices’ progress in skills and technical 
knowledge, and maintain appropriate progress records. 

 Notify the U.S. Department of Labor within 45 days of all suspensions for any 
reason, reinstatements, extensions, transfers, completions and cancellations with 
explanation of causes.  Notification may be made in RAPIDS or using the contact 
information in Section K. 

 Make a good faith effort to obtain approval for educational assistance for a 
veteran or other individual eligible under chapters 30 through 36 of title 38, 
United States Code, and will not deny the application of a qualified candidate who 
is a veteran or other individual eligible for educational assistance described in the 
above for the purpose of avoiding making a good faith effort to obtain approval. 

 Provide each apprentice with a copy of these Standards, Requirements for 
Apprenticeship Sponsors Reference Guide, Appendix A, and any applicable 
written rules and policies, and require apprentices to sign an acknowledgment of 
their receipt. If the sponsor alters these Standards or any Appendices to reflect 

35

Item 4.



 

 

 

Page | 3 

changes it has made to the apprenticeship program, the sponsor will obtain 
approval of all modifications from the Registration Agency, then provide 
apprentices a copy of the updated Standards and Appendices and obtain another 
acknowledgment of their receipt from each apprentice.  

 Adhere to Federal, State, and Local Law Requirements -- The Office of 
Apprenticeship’s registration of the apprenticeship program described in these 
Standards of Apprenticeship on either a nationwide basis (under the National 
Program Standards of Apprenticeship) or within a particular State, and the 
registration of individual apprentices under the same program, does not exempt 
the program sponsor, and/or any employer(s) participating in the program, 
and/or the individual apprentices registered under the program from abiding by 
any applicable Federal, State, and local laws or regulations relevant to the 
occupation covered by these Standards, including those pertaining to 
occupational licensing requirements and minimum wage and hour requirements.  

The program’s Standards of Apprenticeship must also conform in all respects 
with any such applicable Federal, State, and local laws and regulations.  Any 
failure by the program to satisfy this requirement may result in the initiation of 
deregistration proceedings for reasonable cause by the Office of Apprenticeship 
under 29 CFR § 29.8.     

B. Minimum Qualifications - 29 CFR § 29.5(b)(10) 

An apprentice must be at least 18 years (Enter an age of at least 16 years) of age, except where a higher 
age is required by law, and must be employed to learn an apprenticeable occupation.   

There is an educational requirement of: 
Must be a High School graduate or equivalent. 
 
There is a physical requirement of:  
Vision defect cannot exceed 20/100 and must be corrected to 20/30 in both eyes; must be able to 
distinguish primary colors; must pass a post-offer medical examination including a hearing test; must 
be able to reach, hold and grip; must have lateral mobility; must possess the manual dexterity to use a 
computer and climb ladders; must be able to lift and carry a minimum of 50 pounds for a distance of at 
least 50 feet; must be able to drag and/or push and pull up to 165 pounds for a distance of at least 50 
feet; must be able to walk, sit or stand for prolonged periods; work at heights above 100 ft or higher as 
required by the emergency situation; walk, crawl, run, jump, twist, climb, bend, squat, kneel. 
 
Other Qualifications: Shall have current certification issued by the Missouri Division of Fire Safety in 
Firefighter I and II. Must currently possess Emergency Medical Technician (EMT) license or be able to 
obtain within six (6) month probationary period. 
 
A valid driver's license is required. 
 

C. Apprenticeship Approach and Term - 29 CFR § 29.5(b)(2)  

The apprenticeship program(s) will select an apprenticeship training approach.  The approach is 
notated in Appendix A, APPRENTICESHIP APPROACH.  

D. Work Process Schedule and Related Instruction Outline - 29 CFR § 29.5(b)(4) 

Every apprentice is required to participate in related instruction in technical subjects related to 
the occupation. Apprentices will be paid for hours spent attending related instruction classes.  
The Work Process Schedule and Related Instruction Outline are outlined in Appendix A.  

36

Item 4.



 

 

 

Page | 4 

E. Credit for Previous Experience - 29 CFR § 29.5(b)(12) 

Apprentice applicants seeking credit for previous experience gained outside the apprenticeship 
program must furnish such transcripts, records, affidavits, etc. that may be appropriate to 
substantiate the claim. City of Republic will evaluate the request for credit and make a 
determination during the apprentice’s probationary period. 

 

F. Probationary Period – 29 CFR § 29.5(b)(8) and (20) 

Every applicant selected for apprenticeship will serve a probationary period, which may not 
exceed 25 percent of the length of the program, or 1 year whichever is shorter.  The probationary 
period is notated in Appendix A, PROBATIONARY PERIOD.   

G. Ratio of Apprentices to Journeyworkers - 29 CFR § 29.5(b)(7) 

Every apprenticeship program is required to provide an apprenticeship ratio of apprentices to 
journeyworkers for adequate supervision.  The ratio is notated in Appendix A, RATIO OF 
APPRENTICES TO JOURNEYWORKERS.  

H. Apprentice Wage Schedule - 29 CFR § 29.5(b)(5)  

Apprentices must be paid a progressively increasing schedule of wages based on either a 
percentage or a dollar amount of the current hourly journeyworker wage rate.  The progressive 
wage schedule is notated in Appendix A, APPRENTICE WAGE SCHEDULE.  

I. Equal Employment Opportunity and Affirmative Action 

1. Equal Opportunity Pledge - 29 CFR §§ 29.5(b)(21) and 30.3(c)(1) 

City of Republic will not discriminate against apprenticeship applicants or 
apprentices based on race, color, religion, national origin, sex (including 
pregnancy, gender identity, and sexual orientation), sexual orientation, genetic 
information, or because they are an individual with a disability or a person 40-years 
old or older. 

City of Republic will take affirmative action to provide equal opportunity in 
apprenticeship and will operate the apprenticeship program as required under 
Title 29 of the Code of Federal Regulations, part 30. 

 

2. Affirmative Action Program - 29 CFR §§ 29.5(b)(21), 30.4-30.9 

City of Republic acknowledges that it will adopt an affirmative action plan in 
accordance with Title 29 CFR §§ 30.4-30.9 (required for sponsors with five or 
more registered apprentices by two years from the date of the sponsor’s 
registration or by two years from the date of registration of the program’s fifth 
(5th) apprentice).  Information and technical assistance materials relating to the 
creation and maintenance of an affirmative action plan will be made available on 
the Office of Apprenticeship’s website. 

3. Selection Procedures - 29 CFR § 30.10 

Every sponsor will adopt selection procedures for their apprenticeship programs, 
consistent with the requirements set forth in 29 CFR § 30.10(b).  The selection 
procedures for each occupation for which the sponsor intends to train 
apprentices are notated in Appendix A, SELECTION PROCEDURES.   

J. Complaint Procedures - 29 CFR §§ 29.5(b)(22), 29.7(k), 29.12, and 29 CFR § 30.14 

37

Item 4.



 

 

 

Page | 5 

If an applicant or an apprentice believes an issue exists that adversely affects the apprentice’s 
participation in the apprenticeship program or violates the provisions of the apprenticeship 
agreement or Standards, the applicant or apprentice may seek relief.  Nothing in these complaint 
procedures precludes an apprentice from pursuing any other remedy authorized under another 
Federal, State, or local law.  Below are the methods by which apprentices may send a complaint: 

For all issues covered by a Collective Bargaining Agreement (CBA), apprentices must seek 
resolution through the applicable procedures contained in the CBA.  (if applicable, see 
Requirements for Apprenticeship Sponsors Reference Guide) 

1. Complaints regarding discrimination.  Complaints must contain the 
complainant’s name, address, telephone number, and signature, the identity of 
the respondent, and a short description of the actions believed to be 
discriminatory, including the time and place.  Generally, a complaint must be filed 
within 300 days of the alleged discrimination.  Complaints of discrimination 
should be directed to the following contact: 

U.S. Department of Labor, Office of Apprenticeship 
200 Constitution Ave. NW, Washington, DC  20210 
Telephone Number: (202) 693-2614 
Email Address:  ApprenticeshipEEOcomplaints@dol.gov 
Point of Contact: Director, Division of Standards and Quality   

Attn:  Apprenticeship EEO Complaints 

You may also be able to file complaints directly with the EEOC, or State fair 
employment practices agency. 

2. Other General Complaints.  The sponsor will hear and attempt to resolve the 
matter locally if written notification from the apprentice is received within 15 days 
of the alleged violation(s).  The sponsor will make such rulings as it deems 
necessary in each individual case within 30 days of receiving the written 
notification:   

Name: Rachel Reich-Graef 

Address: 213 N Main St 

Republic, MO 65738 

Telephone Number: (417) 732-3104 

Email Address: humanresources@republicmo.com 

Any complaint described that cannot be resolved by the program sponsor to the 
satisfaction of all parties may be submitted to the Registration Agency provided 
below in Section K. 

K. Registration Agency General Contact Information 29 CFR § 29.5(b)(17) 

The Registration Agency is the United States Department of Labor’s Office of Apprenticeship. 
General inquiries, notifications and requests for technical assistance may be submitted to the 
Registration Agency using the contact information below:   

Name: Jeremy Sheets 

Address: DOL, Office of Apprenticeship 

Springfield, Missouri, 65806  

Telephone Number: 816-502-0292 

38

Item 4.

mailto:ApprenticeshipEEOcomplaints@dol.gov


 

 

 

Page | 6 

Email Address: sheets.jeremy.m@dol.gov 

 

L. Reciprocity of Apprenticeship Programs 29 CFR § 29.13(b)(7) 

States must accord reciprocal approval for Federal purposes to apprentices, apprenticeship 
programs and standards that are registered in other States by the Office of Apprenticeship or a 
Registration Agency if such reciprocity is requested by the apprenticeship program sponsor. 

Program sponsors seeking reciprocal approval must meet the wage and hour provisions and 
apprentice ratio standards of the reciprocal State. 

SECTION II - APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS 

☒ Appendix A – Work Process Schedule, Related Instruction Outline, Apprentice Wage Schedule, Ratio of Apprentices 
to Journeyworkers, Type of Occupation, Term of Apprenticeship, Selection Procedures, and Probationary Period 

☒ Appendix B – ETA 671 - Apprenticeship Agreement and Application for Certification of Completion of Apprenticeship 
(To be completed after registration)  

☐ Appendix C – Affirmative Action Plan (Required within two years of registration unless otherwise exempt per 29 
CFR §30.4(d))  

☐ Appendix D – Employer Acceptance Agreement (For programs with multiple-employers only) 

  

39

Item 4.



 

 

 

Page | 7 

SECTION III - VETERANS’ EDUCATIONAL ASSISTANCE AS MANDATED BY PUBLIC LAW 116-134 (134 STAT. 
276) 

Pursuant to section 2(b)(1) of the Support for Veterans in Effective Apprenticeships Act of 2019 (Pub. L. 116-134, 
134 Stat. 276), by signing these program Standards the program sponsor official whose name is subscribed below 
assures and acknowledges to the U.S. Department of Labor’s Office of Apprenticeship the following regarding certain 
G.I. Bill and other VA-administered educational assistance referenced below (and described in greater detail at the 
VA’s website at:  https://www.va.gov/education/eligibility) for which current apprentices and/or apprenticeship 
program candidates may be eligible: 

(1) The program sponsor is aware of the availability of educational assistance for a veteran or other 
eligible individual under chapters 30 through 36 of title 38, United States Code, for use in connection 
with a registered apprenticeship program; 

(2) The program sponsor will make a good faith effort to obtain approval for educational assistance 
described in paragraph (1) above for, at a minimum, each program location that employs or recruits 
an veteran or other eligible individual for educational assistance under chapters 30 through 36 of 
title 38, United States Code; and 

(3) The program sponsor will not deny the application of a qualified candidate who is a veteran or other 
individual eligible for educational assistance described in paragraph (1) above for the purpose of 
avoiding making a good faith effort to obtain approval as described in paragraph (2) above. 

NOTE:  The aforementioned requirements of Public Law 116-134 shall apply to “any program applying to become a 
registered apprenticeship program on or after the date that is 180 days after the date of enactment of this Act” (i.e., 
September 22, 2020).  Accordingly, apprenticeship programs that were registered by a Registration Agency before 
September 22, 2020, are not subject to these requirements.   

  

40

Item 4.



 

 

 

Page | 8 

SECTION IV PART 1 – COLLECTIVE BARGAINING PROVISIONS 

The employer or employer association must furnish to any union that is a collective bargaining agent of the employees 
to be trained a copy its application for registration and of these Standards, including all attachments. 
The City of Republic and IAFF LU 152 hereby adopt these Standards of apprenticeship on this 6th day of 
March, 2024 . 
 
 

sponsor1Sig      cba1Sig    

Signature of Management (designee)   Signature of Labor (designee) 

 

sponsor1Name       cba1Name 
Printed Name            Printed Name 

 

 

sponsor2Sig      cba2Sig    

Signature of Management (designee)   Signature of Labor (designee) 

 

sponsor2Name       cba2Name 
 Printed Name             Printed Name 

 

SECTION IV PART 2 – SIGNATURES 

OFFICIAL ADOPTION OF APPRENTICESHIP STANDARDS 

The undersigned sponsor hereby subscribes to the provisions of the foregoing Apprenticeship Standards formulated 
and registered by City of Republic , on this 6th day of March, 2024 
The signatories acknowledge that they have read and understand the document titled “Requirements for 
Apprenticeship Sponsors Reference Guide” and that the provisions of that document are incorporated into this 
agreement by reference unless otherwise noted. 
 

 

sponsor1Sig      sponsor2Sig    

Signature of Sponsor (designee)    Signature of Sponsor (designee) 

              

sponsor1Name       sponsor2Name 
 Printed Name     Printed Name 

  

Rachel Reich-Graef

Rachel Reich-Graef

41

Item 4.



Appendix A 
 

WORK PROCESS SCHEDULE 

AND 

RELATED INSTRUCTION OUTLINE 
 

Developed By: 
 

City of Republic Missouri 

 

 

For the Occupation of:  

FIREFIGHTER 
 
 

O*NET-SOC CODE:  33-2011.00  
RAPIDS CODE:  0195CB 

 
 

Developed in Cooperation with: 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF LABOR 
OFFICE OF APPRENTICESHIP 

  

42

Item 4.



City of Republic  
USDOL Registered Apprenticeship Program Standards 

 

 

Page |A-2 
 

Appendix A 
 

WORK PROCESS SCHEDULE 
FIRE FIGHTER 

 O*NET-SOC CODE:  33-2011.00 RAPIDS CODE:  0195CB 
 

This schedule is attached to and a part of the Standards for the above identified occupation. 
 

1. APPRENTICESHIP APPROACH 

 
☐     Time-based ☒     Competency-based ☐     Hybrid 

 

2. TERM OF APPRENTICESHIP 

The approach of Competency based dictates the term of this apprenticeship is 
approximately 3 years, completion/mastery of the identified competencies, and 
supplemented by  955 cumulative hours of related instruction.   

 

3. RATIO OF APPRENTICES TO JOURNEYWORKERS 

The apprentice to journeyworker ratio is:  1 Apprentice(s) to 1 Journeyworker(s). 
 

4. APPRENTICE WAGE SCHEDULE 

 The Apprentices shall be paid a progressively increasing schedule of wages based on 
either a percentage or a dollar amount of the current hourly journeyworker wage 
rate, as set at the time. (See Apprentice Agreement; ETA Form 671). 
 
These rates are subject to change at the discretion of the sponsor, through its local 
partnerships, CBA requirements or the purpose of addressing local labor market 
conditions and/or desire to register and/or co-register with a local registration 
agency. 
 
***The starting hourly wage for this program will not be less than the State of 
Missouri minimum wage 

  

5. PROBATIONARY PERIOD 

Every applicant selected for apprenticeship will serve a probationary period of   39 
weeks. 
 

  

43

Item 4.



City of Republic  
USDOL Registered Apprenticeship Program Standards 

 

 

Page |A-3 
 

6. SELECTION PROCEDURES 

 Applications for apprenticeship will be accepted as positions become available. These 
 selection procedures do not replace the company’s employment hiring process, but are 
 in addition to hiring policy. Every person requesting an application for apprenticeship 
 will have one made available. 
 

a.)  Each applicant will be required to review the Apprenticeship Program Standards 
and meet the minimum requirements as outlined in Section I., Paragraph B.  A copy 
of this work process will be provided to individuals selected for participation. 
 
b.)  Receipt of the properly completed apprenticeship application and 
documentation, along with pertinent supporting documents; (driver’s license and 
birth certificate, or other acceptable proof of minimum age) will constitute receipt of 
a completed application.   
 
c.)  The City of Republic will schedule interview and evaluation sessions with the 
applicants when job openings exist.  All applicants who have active applications on 
file that meet the minimum qualifications and have submitted the required 
documents will be notified of the date, time and place to appear. 
 
d.) The interviewer will utilize a standardized and consistent method to interview 
and evaluate applicants.  Standardized questions will be asked during the interview. 
 
e.) After completing the interview and evaluation of the applicants, the employer 
will make the appropriate recommendation for acceptance into the apprenticeship 
program based on The City of Republic employment policies and procedures. 
 

  f.)  Selected applicants must respond to the notice of selection within 48 hours of  
  notice.  If an applicant does not respond within 48 hours their name will be passed. 
 
  g.)   Upon selection to the registered apprenticeship program, selected applicants  
  will be registered into the RAPIDS 2.0 system. 
 
  h.)  Individuals selected for hire must sign a copy of the ETA form 671 (Appendix B). 

  

44

Item 4.



City of Republic  
USDOL Registered Apprenticeship Program Standards 

 

 

Page |A-4 
 

WORK PROCESS SCHEDULE 
FIREFIGHTER 

O*NET-SOC CODE:  33-2011.00 RAPIDS CODE:  0195CB 
 
DESCRIPTION:  Control and extinguish fires or respond to emergency situations where life, property, 
or the environment is at risk. Duties may include fire prevention, emergency medical service, 
hazardous material response, search and rescue, and disaster assistance. 
 

ON-THE-JOB TRAINING: 
 

Section-
30 Day 
Goals   

        

Task  
      

Completed 
Date 

Officer's 
Initials 

Know how to use portable and mobile radios, be able to speak clearly 
and orderly, understand the use of Fire Main and Ops Channels. 
Reference SOP Policy OPR-0033 and FF 1-year task book 
(Communications) for further details 

       /    /  

  

  

  
Don Gear and SCBA within two minutes.        /    /  
Understand how to fill out daily apparatus and medical check sheets 
utilizing the district I-Pad.  

       /    /  

 
Understand seat assignments and associated tasks.                                       

Reference probationary firefighter task book seat assignment chart. 
       /    /  

 

Understand how to use truck MCT. 
   A. Log-in/ Out  
   B. Self-dispatch  
   C. Map features and functions (locate on map/map drive direction) 
   D. Drop down tabs (on-scene, clear/available, out of service) 
Reference FF 1-year task book (Communications) for further details 

       /    /  

  

  

  

  

  
Understand procedure for two-in/two-out and lost/trapped firefighter. 
Reference SOP (Red) policy OPR-0003 and OPR-0007 

       /    /  

  

  

 

 

 
  

45

Item 4.



City of Republic  
USDOL Registered Apprenticeship Program Standards 

 

 

Page |A-5 
 

Section- 
60 Day 
Goals   

        

Task  
      

Completed 
Date 

Officer's 
Initials 

Know location and lengths of pre-connected hose lines on assigned 
apparatus. 

       /    /  

 
Start and operate rescue tools, understand limitations of such.        /    /  
Operate all power equipment on assigned apparatus (Saws, fans, lights, 
etc.) 

       /    /  

 
Know how to use thermal imaging device.        /    /  
Know location of all equipment on assigned apparatus.        /    /  
Operate generator and portable/scene lights on apparatus.        /    /  
Understand how to use and read CO detector on assigned apparatus         /    /  

Section- 
90 Day 
Goals   

        

Task  
      

Completed 
Date 

Officer's 
Initials 

Achieve performance standard 1 & 2 within time limits 
Reference probationary firefighter task book for standard. 

       /    /  

 
Understand contents of ALS drug box and be familiar with use of Zoll 
Cardiac Monitor, AED function and obtaining manual baseline vitals. 

       /    /  

  
Stabilize a vehicle using the following methods- 
   A Cribbing  
   B. Res-Q-Jacks  

       /    /  

  

 
Understand basics of rope rescue equipment and Z-Rig 

   A. Knots  

   B. Anchors  

   C. 3:1 Mechanical advantage  

       /    /  

  

  

  
Understand what information is required for incident reports. 

   A. EMS call 

   B. Motor vehicle accident  

   C. Fire  

   D. Carbon monoxide/ Smoke alarm 

       /    /  

  

  

  

  

 

46

Item 4.



City of Republic  
USDOL Registered Apprenticeship Program Standards 

 

 

Page |A-6 
 

Section 90 
Day Goals 
Continued   

        

Task  
      

Completed 
Date 

Officer's 
Initials 

Properly complete the following reports 
   A. Wildfire report  
   B.EMS charts  
   C. Training report 
   D. Daily log 

       /    /  

  

  

  

  
Perform the following task using the rescue tools 
   A. Remove vehicle glass 
   B. Remove vehicle door  
   C. Remove vehicle’s roof  
   D. Displace the vehicle’s dash  

       /    /  

  

  

  

  

  
 
Directions- After the probationary firefighter has successfully completed all 30/60/90-day goals. 
They shall begin working on their 1-year task book. This task book shall be completed on or 

before the probationary firefighters 1-year employment date. After successfully completing all 

tasks outlined in the book the probationary firefighter will be evaluated on their skills. 

 
 
Section- General knowledge 

 

Task 
Completed 

Date 
Officer's 
Initials 

Know the names of all five Board of Director's / /  

Explain who Assistant Chief Randy Mantle and Sergeant Jay Sampietro are 

and what apparatus dedicated to honoring them 

/ /  

  

Understand the different colored pages in the standard operating. 

policies book (SOP's) 

/ /  

  

Review all high-risk low frequency SOP’S / /  

Know the location of all fire stations / /  

Know the location of all major highways / /  

Be able to recite the address of station 1, 5, and 6 / /  

 

 
  

47

Item 4.



City of Republic  
USDOL Registered Apprenticeship Program Standards 

 

 

Page |A-7 
 

Section- General Engine Company Knowledge 
 
 

Task 
Completed 

Date 
Officer's 
Initials 

Understand and be able to recite the height of engine you are assigned to / /  

  

Understand and be able to recite the length of engine you are assigned to / /  

  

Understand and be able to recite the pumping capacity of the engine you are 

assigned to 

/ /  

  

Understand and be able to recite all pre-connected and spare hose carried. 

on the engine you are assigned to 

/ /  

  

Understand and be able to recite the water tank capacity of the engine you 

are assigned to 

/ /  

  

Explain each piece of equipment that is carried on the engine and 

what compartment it is stored in. 

/ /  

  

Understand location of knox box keys, knox FDC key, and password1 / /  

Start and operate all power tools located on assigned apparatus / /  

Understand how to use and read CO detector / /  

Run all scene lights and portable power equipment / /  

 
 
 
Section- General Brush Truck Knowledge 

 
 

Task 
Completed 

Date 
Officer's 
Initials 

Understand and be able to recite all hose carried on brush truck / /  

Understand and be able to recite water tank capacity on brush truck / /  

Explain each piece of equipment that is carried on the brush truck and 

what compartment it is stored in. 

/ /  

  

Understand location of knox box keys and password / /  

Start and operate all power tools located on assigned apparatus / /  

 

 

 

 
  

48

Item 4.



City of Republic  
USDOL Registered Apprenticeship Program Standards 

 

 

Page |A-8 
 

 

Section- General Truck Company Knowledge  

Task 
Completed 

Date 
Officer's 
Initials 

Understand and be able to recite the height of ladder truck / /  

Understand and be able to recite the length of the ladder truck / /  

Understand and be able to recite the pumping capacity of the ladder truck / /  

  

Understand and be able to recite all pre-connected and spare hose carried 

on the ladder truck 

/ /  

  

Understand and be able to recite the water tank capacity of the ladder truck / /  

  

Explain each piece of equipment this is carried on the ladder truck and 

what compartment it is stored in. 

/ /  

  

Understand location of knox box keys, knox FDC key, and password1 / /  

Start and operate all power tools located on assigned apparatus / /  

Run all scene lights and portable power equipment / /  

Demonstrate how to change the aerial from firefighting mode to rescue 

mode and understand what mode it stays in for day-to-day operations 

/ /  

  

Demonstrate how to change the aerial to operate as an elevated master 

stream 

/ /  

  

Demonstrates how to properly secure yourself to the aerial / /  

Understands the difference between the rear 5’’ intake 

and the passenger side 5’’ intake 

/ /  

  

 
Section- Communications  

 
 

Task 
Completed 

Date 
Officer's 
Initials 

Review radio traffic SOP (OPR-0033) / /  

Review proper etiquette for answering the department phone / /  

Turn the radio off and on, adjust the volume for use / /  

Demonstrate how to change channels and zones on portable/mobile radios / /  

  

Demonstrate how to turn on/off the scanning function on all portable, 

mobile, and VHF radios 

/ /  

  

Have a clear understanding of the following channels on all portable and 
mobile radios- 
- OPS Channels 

- Training Channels 

- Private channels 

/ /  

 

Demonstrate how to transmit a message on portable radio / /  

49

Item 4.



City of Republic  
USDOL Registered Apprenticeship Program Standards 

 

 

Page |A-9 
 

Task Completed 
Date 

Officer's 
Initials 

Verbalize transmitting a mayday call / /  

Explain what “Emergency traffic” or “Rushed traffic” means / /  

Demonstrate how to place apparatus en-route, on-scene, out of service, and 

clear and available on the truck MDT's 

/ /  

  

Understands the “locate on map” and “map drive direction” button on the 

truck MDT's 

/ /  

  

Demonstrates how to locate city utility fire hydrants on MDT's / /  

Demonstrate how to log in and out of the MDT’S / /  

Demonstrate how to locate a fire hydrant/Pre-Plan using active 911 / /  

Demonstrate how to locate a knox box/knox gate switch on active 911 / /  

 

Section- Scott Air Packs 
 

 

Task 
Completed 

Date 
Officer's 
Initials 

Complete full inspection of SCBA verbalizing all components / /  

Demonstrates how to properly sign into the SCBA using the SCOTT 

accountability card and explain the benefits of doing so 

/ /  

  

Demonstrates activating PASS device and resetting / /  

Demonstrates changing an air bottle / /  

Complete morning SCBA checks 

(Don face piece and breath air) 

/ /  

 

Demonstrates how to properly fill an air bottle and explain the differences. 

between 4500 psi bottles and 2216 psi bottles at LR 

/ /  

  

Become familiar with SCOTT RIT bag and items carried inside. 

Understand the difference between the high pressure and low-pressure side 

/ /  

/ /  
  

 

Section- Scott Air Packs Continued 
 
 

Task 
Completed 

Date 
Officer's 
Initials 

Demonstrates connecting RIT pack to a down firefighter 

High pressure side 

Buddy breather 

SCBA Mask change 

Regulator change 

  

/ /  

  

  

  

Review the SCOTT SIMS system that is in the shift commander’s truck. 

Understand the evacuation signal and how to knowledge on air pack 

Understand the importance of logging into your air pack each morning 

/ /  

  

  

50

Item 4.



City of Republic  
USDOL Registered Apprenticeship Program Standards 

 

 

Page |A-10 
 

Section- Engine Company Task  
 

Task 
Completed 

Date 
Officer's 
Initials 

Demonstrate how to properly connect to a hydrant within 60sec. 

Note- LDH shall be loaded on apparatus and candidate will start inside the 

cab 

/ /  

  

  

Demonstrate how to set up the engine to draft from a static source / /  

Demonstrate deploying a 1 ¾ pre-connect line from apparatus and pre-load 

door 

/ /  

  

Demonstrate advancing a 1 ¾ hose line into a structure 

Take position as the nozzleman. 

Take position as the backup man 

/ /  

  

  

Demonstrate different techniques for advancing a hose line 

Hip Grip 

Clamp 

Heel 

Crooked Lean 

/ /  

  

  

  

  

Understands what hand tools are needed for the nozzleman and backup man / /  

  

Demonstrate advancing an 1 ¾ hose line above grade, below grade, and at 

grade 

  

 

Demonstrates re-loading the 1 ¾ pre-connect line onto the apparatus / /  

Section- Engine Company Task Continued  
 

Task 
Completed 

Date 
Officer's 
Initials 

Demonstrate deploying a 2 ½ pre-connect line from apparatus and 

pre-load door 

/ /  

  

Demonstrate deploying a 2 ½ pre-connect line from apparatus for a 

defensive fire 

/ /  

  

Demonstrate advancing a 2 ½ hose line into a structure 

Take position as the nozzleman 

Take position as the backup man 

/ /  

  

  

Demonstrate different techniques for advancing a hose line 

Hip Grip 

Clamp 

Heel 

Crooked Lean 

/ /  

  

  

  

  

Understands what hand tools are needed for the nozzleman and backup man / /  

  

Demonstrate advancing an 2 ½ hose line above grade, below grade, and at 

grade 

/ /  

  

51

Item 4.



City of Republic  
USDOL Registered Apprenticeship Program Standards 

 

 

Page |A-11 
 

Demonstrates re-loading the 2 ½ pre-connect line onto the apparatus / /  

 
Section- Engine Company Task Continued 
 
 

Task 
Completed 

Date 
Officer's 
Initials 

Master Streams-   

Raise deck gun and flow water for defensive fire attack / /  

Demonstrate deploying a ground monitor for a defensive fire attack / /  

Foam Streams-   

Discuss the different types of foam carried on the apparatus / /  

Demonstrate setting up the pro-pack / /  

Demonstrate setting up an in-line foam inductor / /  

Produce a foam blanket using the following- 

Pro-Pack 

In-Line foam inductor 

/ /  

  

  

Demonstrates the following techniques for applying foam 

Rain down 

Roll on 

Bank down 

/ /  

  

  

  

Section- Engine Company Task Continued  
 
 

Task 
Completed 

Date 
Officer's 
Initials 

Mayday Procedure-   

Review standard operating procedure for lost/trapped firefighter 

Reference- Policy OPR-0007 (RED) 

/ /  

  

Verbalize transmitting a mayday 

Consider using the following- 

Who/What/Where- 

L.U.N.A.R- Location, Unit, Name, Assignment, Resources 

/ /  

  

  

  

Demonstrate self-rescue techniques/guidelines when lost/trapped 

Reference-Policy OPR-0007 (RED) Lost and Trapped Firefighter 

/ /  

  

Review standard operating procedure 2-In/2-Out and rapid intervention. 

Reference- Policy OPR-0003 (RED) Rapid Intervention Team (RIT) 

/ /  

  

Verbalize what equipment is carried in the RIT pack / /  

Demonstrate how to operate the pack tracker to locate a missing firefighter / /  

Demonstrate rescuing a down fireman and place them on air 

Mask change 

Regulator change 

Buddy Breather hook up 

/ /  

  

  

  

52

Item 4.



City of Republic  
USDOL Registered Apprenticeship Program Standards 

 

 

Page |A-12 
 

Section- Engine Company Task Continued  
 
 

Task 
Completed 

Date 
Officer's 
Initials 

Patient Care-   

Review medical clinical guidelines 

Reference- Onedrive "EMS Protocols & Forms"- "Clinical Guidelines" 

/ /  

  
Understand what equipment is carried on the Zoll monitor / /  

Demonstrate obtaining a manual blood pressure and vital signs / /  

Demonstrate how to obtain basic vital signs using the Zoll monitor / /  

Understand Zoll AED function for adult/pediatric patients / /  

Demonstrate how to obtain a 4 and 12 lead KED / /  

Participate in a mock code exercise / /  

Demonstrate how to properly package a patient on a backboard / /  

Demonstrate packaging a patient in a KED / /  

Understand contents carried in the ALS drug box / /  

Understand how to fill out monthly ALS check sheets / /  

Take the lead patient care roll on a medical scenario / /  

Take the lead patient care roll on a trauma scenario / /  
 

Section- Truck Company Task 

Task 
Completed 

Date 
Officer's 
Initials 

Ground Ladders-   

Demonstrate the procedure for inspecting a ground ladder / /  

Demonstrate raising and fully extending the following ladders- 

24' Extension ladder 

Roof ladder 

/ /  

  

  

Demonstrate position a 24’ extension ladder and ground ladder for the 

following- 

Rescue from a window 

Vertical ventilation Ill 

/ /  

  

  

  

Demonstrate performing a vent enter isolate search (VEIS) or (VES) / /  

Ventilation-   

Demonstrate horizontal ventilation using the following methods- 

Positive pressure gas/electric fan 

Negative pressure fan 

/ /  

  

  

Demonstrate vertical ventilation using the following methods- 

Axe 

Power saw/Chainsaw 

/ /  

  

  

 

53

Item 4.



City of Republic  
USDOL Registered Apprenticeship Program Standards 

 

 

Page |A-13 
 

 
Section- Truck Company Task Continued 

Task 
Completed 

Date 
Officer's 
Initials 

Forcible Entry-   

Demonstrate forcing an inward swinging door 

One firefighter method 

Two firefighter method 

/ /  

  

  

Demonstrate forcing an outward swinging door 

One firefighter method 

Two firefighter method 

/ /  

  

  

Search-   

Demonstrate the following searches- 

Right hand search 

Left hand search 

/ /  

  

  

Aerial Operations-   

Demonstrate how to set stabilizers for operating the aerial / /  

Demonstrate moving the aerial device Up/Down Right/Left Extend/Retract / /  

  

Demonstrate how to give controls to the tip person / /  

Explain what the load tip gauge is and why it is important / /  

Demonstrate climbing the aerial and securing yourself / /  
 

 
Section- Report Writing 

Task 
Completed 

Date 
Officer's 
Initials 

Complete the following reports/daily logs-   

Emergency medical call (fire programs) / /  

Emergency medical call (EMS charts) / /  

Motor vehicle accident (fire programs) / /  

House/Building fire (fire programs) / /  

Smoke detector install (Daily Log) / /  

Public relations event (PR) (Daily Log) / /  

Company training (Vector Solutions) / /  

Morning SCBA inspection (Vector Solutions) / /  

Pre-Plan (fire programs) / /  

 

 

 
 

54

Item 4.



City of Republic  
USDOL Registered Apprenticeship Program Standards 

 

 

Page |A-14 
 

Section- Rescue Task 

Task 
Completed 

Date 
Officer's 
Initials 

Demonstrates how to properly fill out a rope log / /  

Understand the difference between life safety rope and utility rope / /  

Describe all equipment carried in rope rescue hardware bag and its use / /  

Tie the following rope rescue knots-   

Figure-8-on a bight with safety within 15 sec. / /  

Figure-8 follow through with safety within 45 sec. / /  

Butterfly knot within 15 sec. / /  

Clove hitch knot within 15 sec. / /  

Water knot in webbing within 15 sec. / /  

Prusik cord loop within 15 sec. / /  

Munter hitch within 15 sec. / /  

Demonstrate constructing the following rope rescue anchors-   

Basket anchor / /  

Wrap 3 pull 2 anchor / /  

Tensionless hitch anchor / /  

Demonstrate the following-   

Demonstrate building a 3:1 mechanical advantage system / /  

Demonstrate how to build a 3:1 mechanical advantage system with 

change in direction 

/ /  

/ /  

Demonstrate building a lowering system / /  

Demonstrate constructing a belay system / /  
 

 
 
Section- Rescue Task Continued 

Task 
Completed 

Date 
Officer's 
Initials 

Rope rescue patient packaging-   

Demonstrates loading a patient into a stokes basket / /  

Demonstrates lashing a patient into a stokes basket / /  

Demonstrates preparing the stokes basket for low angle rescue / /  

Demonstrate placing a patient into a SKED / /  

Demonstrate securing a patient into a SKED / /  

 

55

Item 4.



City of Republic  
USDOL Registered Apprenticeship Program Standards 

 

 

Page |A-15 
 

RELATED INSTRUCTION OUTLINE 
FIRE FIGHTER 

O*NET-SOC CODE: 33-2011.00 RAPIDS CODE:  0195CB 
 
 

Related Technical Instruction provided by:   
 
Southwest MO Regional Fire Academy 
OR 
Individually accomplished via Alt. RTI sources per focus. 
 
 

Listed below are the standard hours needed to complete the Related Training Instruction in 
the Firefighter Apprenticeship Program training courses.  Instructional hours may vary 
depending on the apprentice’s competency and learning style through The City of Republic 
training method.  Mastery of the subject matter is monitored through successfully 
completing certification exams and practical demonstration of skills. 
 
Firefighter Fundamentals 1 & 2  
(Alt. RTI provided by IFSTA Essentials of Firefighting and Fire Department Operations) 

 
Chapter 1  Fire Fighter Safety  
Chapter 2  Communications 
Chapter 5  Fire Fighter Personal Protective Equipment 
Chapter 6  Portable Fire Extinguishers  
Chapter 7  Ropes and Knots 
Chapter 8  Ground Ladders  
Chapter 9  Forcible Entry  
Chapter 10  Structural Search and Rescue  
Chapter 11  Tactical Ventilation  
Chapter 12  Fire Hose 
Chapter 13  Hose Operations and Hose Streams  
Chapter 14  Fire Suppression  
Chapter 15  Overhaul, Property Conservation and Scene Preservation  
Chapter 17  Technical Rescue Support and Vehicle Extrication Operations 
Chapter 18  Foam Fire Fighting, Liquid Fires and Gas Fires 
Chapter 19  Incident Scene Operations 
Chapter 20  Fire Origin and Cause Determination  
Chapter 21  Maintenance and Testing Responsibilities  
Chapter 22  Community Risk Reduction 
 
  

56

Item 4.



City of Republic  
USDOL Registered Apprenticeship Program Standards 

 

 

Page |A-16 
 

BLS for Healthcare Providers (CPR) 
(Alt. RTI provided by American Heart Association) 
 
Rapid Assessment and Visual Survey 
CPR/AED for Adults, Children and Infants 
Obstructed Airways 
Opioid Overdoses 
Critical Thinking, Problem Solving, Communication and Teamwork 
The Emergency Medical Services System 
Legal Considerations 
Precautions 
 
 
Hazardous Materials Awareness/Operations 
(Alt. RTI provided by IFSTA Hazardous Materials For First Responders) 
 
Performing Assigned Tasks  
Donning PPE  
Emergency Decontamination 
Product Control – Remote Valve Shutoff  
Product Control – Absorption/Adsorption 
Product Control – Diking, Damming and Diversion  
Product Control – Retention  
Product Control – Dilution  
Product Control – Vapor Dispersion  
Product Control – Vapor Suppression 
 
 
Emergency Medical Technician (EMT) 
(Alt. RTI provided by Emergency Care and Transportation of the Sick and Injured) 
 
Chapter 1  EMS Systems  
Chapter 2  Workforce safety and wellness  
Chapter 3  Medical, Legal, and Ethical Issues  
Chapter 4  Communications and documentation  
Chapter 5  Medical Terminology 
Chapter 6  The human Body 
Chapter 7  Life Span development  
Chapter 8  Lifting and moving patients 
Chapter 9  Patient assessment 
Chapter 10  Airway management  
Chapter 11  Principles of pharmacology  
Chapter 12  Shock  
Chapter 13  BLS resuscitation  
Chapter 14  Medical overview   

57

Item 4.



City of Republic  
USDOL Registered Apprenticeship Program Standards 

 

 

Page |A-17 
 

Chapter 15  Respiratory emergencies  
Chapter 16  Cardiovascular emergencies  
Chapter 17  Neurologic emergencies  
Chapter 18  Gastrointestinal and urologic  
Chapter 19  Endocrine and hematologic  
Chapter 20  Immunologic emergencies  
Chapter 21  Toxicology 
Chapter 22 Psychiatric emergencies  
Chapter 23 Gynecologic emergencies  
Chapter 24 Trauma overview  
Chapter 25  Bleeding  
Chapter 26  Soft-tissue  
Chapter 27  Face and neck injuries  
Chapter 28  Head and Spine injuries  
Chapter 29  Chest injuries 
Chapter 30  Abdominal and genitourinary injuries  
Chapter 31  Orthopedic injuries  
Chapter 32  Environmental emergencies  
Chapter 33  Obstetrics and neonatal care  
Chapter 34 Pediatric emergencies  
Chapter 35 Geriatric emergencies  
Chapter 36  Patients with special challenges  
Chapter 37  Transport operations  
Chapter 38  Vehicle extrication and special rescue 
Chapter 39  Incident management  
Chapter 40  Terrorism response and disaster management  
Chapter 41  A team approach to health care 
 
Incident management system 100 (ICS-100) 
(Alt. RTI provided by FEMA Emergency Management Institute) 
 
Incident management system 200 (ICS-200) 
(Alt. RTI provided by FEMA Emergency Management Institute) 

 
Incident management system 700 (ICS-700) 
(Alt. RTI provided by FEMA Emergency Management Institute) 

 
Total Hours 955 

 

58

Item 4.



Page | B-1 

Appendix B 

ETA-671 APPRENTICESHIP AGREEMENT 

AND 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF LABOR, OFFICE OF 
APPRENTICESHIP 

APPLICATION FOR CERTIFICATION OF 
COMPLETION OF APPRENTICESHIP 

59

Item 4.



Program Registration and 
Apprenticeship Agreement 

U.S. Department of Labor 
Employment and Training Administration 
Office of Apprenticeship 

  APPRENTICE AGREEMENT AND REGISTRATION – SECTION II     OMB No. 1205-0223  Expiration Date: 06/30/2024  

PART A:  APPRENTICE’S INFORMATION 

1. First Name     Last Name 

Middle Name (Optional) Suffix (Optional) 

Address (No., Street, City, State, Zip Code)  

Telephone Number (Optional) E-mail Address (Optional) 

*Social Security Number 

- -  

Answer Both 4a. and 4b. below  

4. a. Ethnicity (Select One) 

Hispanic or Latino 

Not Hispanic or Latino 

Participant Did Not Self-Identify

b. Race (Select One or More) 

 American Indian or Alaska Native 

 Asian 

 Black or African American 

 Native Hawaiian or other 
 Pacific Islander 

 White 

 Participant Did Not Self-Identify 

5. Veteran Status (Select All
That Apply)

 Non Veteran  

 Veteran 

 Non Veteran, Other Eligible  
      Individual 

 Veteran, Eligible 

 Participant Did Not Self-
Identify 

6. Education Level (Select
One) 

 Not High School graduate 

 High School graduate 
(including equivalency) 

 Some College or Associate’s 
degree

 Bachelor's degree 

 Master’s degree 

 Doctorate or professional 
degree 

2. Date of Birth (Mo., Day, Yr.) 3. Sex (Select One) 

Male             Female 

Participant Did Not Self-
Identify 

7. Employment Status of Apprentice (Select One)

New Employee               Current Employee 

8. Did the apprentice complete a pre-apprenticeship program prior to their registration in this apprenticeship program?

 Yes   No 

If yes, please provide the Pre-Apprenticeship Program Name and Address: 

PART B:  PROGRAM SPONSOR’S INFORMATION 

1. Program Number 

Sponsor’s Name and Address (No., Street, City, State, Zip Code, County) 

Telephone Number       Cell Phone Number (Optional) 

E-mail Address

2.  Occupation (The work processes listed in the standards are part of 
this agreement.)

a. RAPIDS Code:

b. O*NET Code:

c. Interim Credentials Offered (i.e., Career Lattice Occupation)?

Page | B-2 60

Item 4.



a. Sponsor’s Principal Place of Business Address (If different from 
Sponsor’s address above)

3. Occupation Type 4. Term Length
(Hrs., Mos., Yrs.) 

5. Probationary Period 
(Hrs. or Wks.)

6. Credit for Previous On-the-
Job Learning Experience 
(Hrs. Mos., Yrs.):

a. Term Remaining 
(Hrs., Mos., Yrs.) 

7. Credit for
Previous Related 
Instruction
Experience
(Hrs., Mos., Yrs.) 

8. Date Apprenticeship 
Begins

a. Expected Completion
Date

9. Related Instruction Provider(s) Name and Address a. Total Length of Related Instruction 

b. Are Wages Paid During Related Instruction? c. Hours When Related Instruction Is Provided 

10. Progressive Wage Schedule:

a. Apprentice’s Entry Wage $ b. Journeyworker’s (i.e., Experienced Worker’s) Wage $

 

Period 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 

c. Wage Rate Units 
Duration 

(If Applicable) 

Competencies 
(If Applicable) 

d. Wage Rate 

Wage Rate 

11. Name and Contact Information of the Individual Designated by the Program Sponsor to Receive Complaints 

b. Employer’s Name and Address (If different from Sponsor’s 
address above)

Page | B-3 61

Item 4.



PART C:  AGREEMENT AND SIGNATURES 

The program sponsor’s Apprenticeship Standards, which the sponsor certifies are in conformity with the requirements for program registration 
contained in 29 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) part 29, subpart A and 29 CFR part 30, are attached and are hereby incorporated into this 
agreement.  The program sponsor and apprentice hereby agree to the terms of the Apprenticeship Standards that are incorporated as part of this 
agreement, as those Standards existed on the date of the agreement.   

These Apprenticeship Standards may be amended during the period of this agreement with the consent of the parties to the agreement, provided 
that such amendments are also in conformity with the requirements for program registration contained in 29 CFR part 29, subpart A and 29 CFR 
part 30.   

The apprentice will be accorded equal opportunity in all phases of apprenticeship employment and training by the program sponsor, without 
discrimination because of race, color, religion, national origin, sex (including pregnancy and gender identity), sexual orientation, age (40 or 
older), genetic information, or disability. 

This agreement may be canceled by either of the parties, citing cause(s), with written notice to the registration agency, in compliance with 29 
CFR part 29, subpart A. 

During the probationary period described in Part B above, this apprenticeship agreement may be cancelled by either party upon written notice 
to the registration agency.  After the probationary period, this agreement may be cancelled at the request of the apprentice, or suspended or 
cancelled by the sponsor, for good cause, with due notice to the apprentice and a reasonable opportunity for corrective action, and with written 
notice to the apprentice and to the Registration Agency of the final action taken.  

This apprenticeship agreement does not constitute a certification under 29 CFR part 5 for the employment of the apprentice on Federally 
financed or assisted construction projects.  Current certifications must be obtained from the Office of Apprenticeship (OA) or the recognized 
State Apprenticeship Agency.  

1. Signature of Apprentice Date 2. Signature of Parent/Guardian (If minor) Date 

3. Signature of Sponsor’s Representative(s) Date 4. Signature of Sponsor’s Representative(s) Date 

5. Signature of Employer’s Representative(s) Date 
(If Applicable)

6. Signature of Employer’s Representative(s) Date 
(If Applicable)

PART D:  TO BE COMPLETED BY REGISTRATION AGENCY 

1. Registration Agency and Address 2. Signature (Registration Agency) 3. Date Registered 

4. Apprentice Identification Number:

NOTE: The collection and maintenance of the data on ETA-671, Apprentice Agreement and Registration – Section II Form, is authorized 
under the National Apprenticeship Act, 29 U.S.C. 50, and 29 CFR part 29, subpart A.  The data is used for apprenticeship program statistical 
purposes and is maintained, pursuant to the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. 552a), in a systems of records entitled, DOL/ETA-31, The 
Enterprise Business Support System (EBSS) (encompassing RAPIDS), at the U.S. Department of Labor, Office of Apprenticeship.  Data may be 
disclosed to Federal, state, and local agencies and community-based organizations, including State Apprenticeship Agencies, to facilitate 
statistical research, audit, and evaluation activities necessary to ensure the success, integrity, and improvement of employment and training 
programs.  Data may also be disclosed to these organizations to determine an assessment of skill needs and program information, and in 
connection with federal litigation or when required by law. 

Definitions / Instructions 
Page | B-4 62

Item 4.



Part A: Apprentice’s Information 
Item 4a. Ethnicity 

Hispanic or Latino: A person of Cuban, Mexican, Puerto Rican, South or Central American, or other Spanish culture or origin, regardless 
of race.  The term, “Spanish origin,” can be used in addition to “Hispanic or Latino.” 

Item 4b. Race 
American Indian or Alaska Native: A person having origins in any of the original peoples of North and South America (including 
Central America) and who maintains tribal affiliation or community attachment. This category includes people who indicate their race 
as "American Indian or Alaska Native" or report entries such as Navajo, Blackfeet, Inupiat, Yup'ik, or Central American Indian groups or 
South American Indian groups. 
Asian: A person having origins in any of the original peoples of the Far East, Southeast Asia, or the Indian subcontinent including, for 
example, Cambodia, China, India, Japan, Korea, Malaysia, Pakistan, the Philippine Islands, Thailand, and Vietnam. This includes people 
who reported detailed Asian responses such as: "Asian Indian," "Chinese," "Filipino," "Korean," "Japanese," "Vietnamese," and "Other 
Asian" or provide other detailed Asian responses. 
Black or African American: A person having origins in any of the Black racial groups of Africa. It includes people who indicate their 
race as "Black or African American," or report entries such as African American, Kenyan, Nigerian, or Haitian. 
Native Hawaiian or Other Pacific Islander: A person having origins in any of the original peoples of Hawaii, Guam, Samoa, or other 
Pacific Islands. It includes people who reported their race as "Fijian," "Guamanian or Chamorro," "Marshallese," "Native Hawaiian," 
"Samoan," "Tongan," and "Other Pacific Islander" or provide other detailed Pacific Islander responses. 
White: A person having origins in any of the original peoples of Europe, the Middle East, or North Africa. It includes people who indicate 
their race as "White" or report entries such as Irish, German, Italian, Lebanese, Arab, Moroccan, or Caucasian. 

Item 5.  Veteran Status 
A Veteran is a person who has served in the active military, naval, or air service of the United States, and who was discharged or 
released therefrom under conditions other than dishonorable.    
A Non Veteran, Other Eligible Individual is a person who is a dependent spouse or child—or the surviving spouse or child—of a 
Veteran, and who is eligible for certain G.I. Bill and other VA-administered educational assistance benefits provided under Title 38 of the 
U.S. Code. 
A Veteran, Eligible is a Veteran who is eligible for certain G.I. Bill and other VA-administered educational assistance benefits provided 
under Title 38 of the U.S. Code. 

Item 8.  
Pre-Apprenticeship: A program or set of strategies designed to prepare individuals to enter and succeed in a Registered 
Apprenticeship program and has a documented partnership with at least one, if not more, Registered Apprenticeship program(s). 

Part B: Program Sponsor’s Information 
Item 1. A Program Number is a generated number assigned to a program sponsor when a program is registered in the Office of 

Apprenticeship’s Registered Apprenticeship Partners Information Data System (RAPIDS). 
Item 1. A Sponsor Name is any person, association, committee, or organization operating an apprenticeship program and in whose 

name the program is (or is to be) registered or approved. 
Item 1b. An Employer is any person or organization employing an apprentice whether or not such person or organization is a party to an 

Apprenticeship Agreement with the apprentice. 
Item 2. An Occupation refers to the occupation an apprentice will be trained in, and the occupation will be listed in the sponsor’s 

program standards.   
Item 2a. A RAPIDS Code is the numeric code of the occupation in the apprenticeable occupation list. 
Item 2b. An Occupational Information Network (O*NET) Code is an 8-digit code in the O*NET data system 

(https://www.onetonline.org/).   
Item 2c.       Interim Credentials (Certificate of Training) applies to career lattice occupations.  These credentials are issued by the 

Registration Agency upon request by the program sponsor. Interim credentials provide certification of competency attainment 
by an apprentice, but does not necessarily indicate completion of the program. 

Item 3.      Occupation Type refers to the following three training approaches listed below. 
Item 3a. A Time-based Approach measures skill acquisition through the individual apprentice’s completion of at least 2,000 hours of on-

the-job learning as described in a work process schedule. 
Item 3b. A Competency-based Approach measures skill acquisition through the individual apprentice’s successful demonstration of 

acquired skills and knowledge, as verified by the program sponsor. Programs utilizing this approach must still require apprentices 
to complete an on-the-job learning component of Registered Apprenticeship. The program standards must address how on-the-job 
learning will be integrated into the program, describe competencies, and identify an appropriate means of testing and evaluation 
for such competencies.  An apprentice must be registered in an approved competency-based occupation for 12 calendar months of 
on-the-job-learning. 

Item 3c.      A Hybrid Approach measures the individual apprentice’s skill acquisition through a combination of specified minimum number 
of hours of on-the-job learning and the successful demonstration of competency as described in a work process schedule. 

Item 4.         A Term Length (Hrs., Mos., Yrs.) of the occupation is based on the program sponsor’s training approach as approved by the  
Registration Agency.   

Item 5.  A Probationary Period (Hrs. or Wks.) is the number of hours or weeks of on-the-job learning during the apprentice’s 
probationary period.   A probationary period cannot exceed 25 percent of the term length of the occupation or one year, 
whichever is shorter. 

Item 6.  Credit for Previous On-the-Job Learning Experience (Hrs., Mos., Yrs.) is granted by the program sponsor based upon 
documented evidence provided by the apprentice.  An apprentice must complete a minimum of six months on-the-job learning 
regardless of credits for previous experience awarded.   

Item 6a. The Term Remaining (Hrs., Mos., Yrs.) is the difference between the term length of the on-the-job learning and the credits for 
previous experience awarded. 

Page | B-5
63

Item 4.



Item 7.  Credit for Previous Related Instruction Experience (Hrs., Mos., Yrs.) is granted by the program sponsor based upon 
documented evidence provided by the apprentice.   

Item 9a.  Total Length of Related Instruction is the duration spent in related instruction in technical subjects related to the occupation, 
which is recommended to be not less than 144 hours per year.   

Item 10.  Progressive Wage Schedule: 
Item 10a.  Apprentice’s Entry Wage (dollar amount paid): A sponsor enters this apprentice’s entry wage. 
Item 10b. Journeyworker’s (i.e., Experienced Worker’s) Wage: A sponsor enters the wage per unit (i.e., hourly, weekly, monthly, 

quarterly, semi-annually, or annually).  
Item 10c.  Wage Rate Units: A sponsor enters the apprentice schedule of pay for each advancement period based on the program sponsor’s  

 training approach (i.e., hourly, weekly, monthly, quarterly, semi-annually, annually, or competencies).   
Item 10d. Wage Rate: Sponsor selects either percent of journeyworker (i.e., experienced worker) wage, dollar amount of wage, or both the 

percent of journeyworker wage and dollar amount of wage.  If the sponsor selects “Both the percent of journeyworker wage and $ 
amount of wage,” the sponsor can enter a percentage or dollar amount for the wage in each period.  

Item 11.     Complaints: Identifies the individual or entity responsible for receiving complaints (29 CFR 29.7(k)). 

Part D: To Be Completed By Registration Agency 
Item 4.       Apprentice Identification Number, RAPIDS encrypts the apprentice’s social security number and generates a unique  

identification number to identify the apprentice.  It replaces the social security number to protect the apprentice’s privacy. 

*The submission of the apprentice’s social security number is requested.  The apprentice’s social security number will be used for program 
management purposes, such as verification of the apprentice’s period of employment and earnings to align with Department of Labor’s job
training and employment program performance indicators for measuring performance outcomes.  The Office of Apprenticeship will use wage
records through the State Wage Interchange System needs the apprentice’s social security number to match this number against the employers’
wage records.  Also, the apprentice’s social security number will be used, if appropriate, for purposes of the Davis Bacon Act of 1931, as amended, 
U.S. Code Title 40, Sections 276a to 276a-7, and Title 29 CFR part 5, to verify and certify to the U.S. Department of Labor, Wage and Hour Division, 
that the apprentice is a registered apprentice to ensure that the employer is complying with the geographic prevailing wage of the occupational 
classification.  Failure to disclose an apprentice’s social security number on this form will not affect the right to be registered as an apprentice.
Civil and criminal provisions of the Privacy Act apply to any unlawful disclosure of social security numbers, which is prohibited.

Persons are not required to respond to this collection of information unless it displays a currently valid OMB control number.  Public reporting 
burden for this collection of information is estimated to average five minutes per response, including the time for reviewing instructions, 
searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information.  The 
obligation to respond is required to obtain or retain benefits under 29 U.S.C. 50.  Send comments regarding this burden or any other aspect of 
this collection of information including suggestions for reducing this burden to the U.S. Department of Labor, Employment and Training 
Administration, Office of Apprenticeship, 200 Constitution Avenue, N.W., Room C-5321, Washington, D.C. 20210 (OMB Control Number 1205-
0223). 

Page | B-6 64

Item 4.



 

Program Registration and 
Apprenticeship Agreement 
Office of Apprenticeship 

U.S. Department of Labor 
Employment and Training Administration 

          Voluntary Disability Disclosure OMB No. 1205-0223 Expiration Date: 06/30/2024 

Please check one of the boxes below: 

☐ YES, I HAVE A DISABILITY (or previously had a disability) 

☐ NO, I DON’T HAVE A DISABILITY 

☐ I DON’T WISH TO ANSWER 

Your name: ______________________________ 

Date: ___________________________________ 

 Why are you being asked to complete this form?  

Because we are a sponsor of a registered apprenticeship program and participate in the National Registered 
Apprenticeship System that is regulated by the U.S. Department of Labor, we must reach out to, enroll, and 
provide equal opportunity in apprenticeship to qualified people with disabilities.[1]  To help us learn how well we 
are doing, we are asking you to tell us if you have a disability or if you ever had a disability.  Completing this 
form is voluntary, but we hope that you will choose to fill it out.  If you are applying for apprenticeship, any 
answer you give will be kept private and will not be used against you in any way.  

If you already are an apprentice within our registered apprenticeship program, your answer will not be used 
against you in any way.  Because a person may become disabled at any time, we are required to ask all of our 
apprentices at the time of enrollment, and then remind them yearly, that they may update their information.  You 
may voluntarily self-identify as having a disability on this form without fear of any punishment because you did 
not identify as having a disability earlier.   

How do I know if I have a disability?  

You are considered to have a disability if you have a physical or mental impairment or medical condition that 
substantially limits a major life activity, or if you have a history or record of such an impairment or medical 
condition.  Disabilities include, but are not limited to: blindness, deafness, cancer, diabetes, epilepsy, autism, 
cerebral palsy, HIV/AIDS, schizophrenia, muscular dystrophy, bipolar disorder, major depression, multiple 
sclerosis (MS), missing limbs or partially missing limbs, post-traumatic stress disorder (PTSD), obsessive 
compulsive disorder, impairments requiring the use of a wheelchair, and intellectual disability (previously called 
mental retardation). 

[1] Part 30 – Equal Employment Opportunity in Apprenticeship.  For more information about this form or the
equal employment obligations of Federal contractors, visit the U.S. Department of Labor’s Office of
Apprenticeship website at https://www.doleta.gov/OA/eeo/.

Page | B-7 65

Item 4.



U.S. DEPARTMENT OF LABOR 
OFFICE OF APPRENTICESHIP 

APPLICATION FOR CERTIFICATION OF COMPLETION OF APPRENTICESHIP 

(If Required please type or print all information, attach additional apprentices on separate sheet) 
(This Application is optional, for Sponsor utilizing Electronic Registration) 

Page | B-8

Sponsor Information 

Sponsor: Program #: 
Address: Contact Name: 

City, State, Zip: Phone: 

Apprentice Information 

Full Name of 
Apprentice: 
Apprentice 
Registration 
Number: 
Occupation: 
Term: 
Registration Date: 

Date of Completion: 
Completion Wage: 

Related Instruction Certification 

Related Instruction Hours completed: 
Related Instruction Furnished By: 

Teacher(s) or Director(s) of Related Instruction Certifying to above information: 

Name:        Address: 

Request for Certificate 

On behalf of the above-named sponsor, I hereby certify that the apprentice named in the 
application has satisfactorily completed and is working at the Journeyworker Level of 
his/her apprenticeship program as registered with the Office of Apprenticeship and hereby 
recommend the issuance of the Certificate of Completion of Apprenticeship 

Sponsor's Signature:   Date:  

Title:   

Office of Apprentice use only: 

       Date Entered in RAPIDS (if required):  

       Date Certificate Sent:   

66

Item 4.



U.S. DEPARTMENT OF LABOR 
OFFICE OF APPRENTICESHIP 

APPLICATION FOR CERTIFICATION OF COMPLETION OF APPRENTICESHIP 

(If Required please type or print all information, attach additional apprentices on separate sheet) 
(This Application is optional, for Sponsor utilizing Electronic Registration) 

Page | B-9

Authentication of Requests for Certificate of Completion of Apprenticeship 

Where the Office of Apprenticeship is the Registration Agency, issuance of a Certificate of Completion of 
Apprenticeship to apprentices upon satisfactory completion of the requirements of the apprenticeship 
program as established in these Standards, the sponsor certifies to the Registration Agency and requests the 
awarding of a Certificate of Completion of Apprenticeship to the completing apprentice(s).  Such requests are 
completed either electronically using the Registered Apprenticeship Partner Information System (RAPIDS) or 
in writing using this form from the sponsor to the appropriate field office.   

General Guidance 

The sponsor will verify that the apprentice has completed all requirements of apprenticeship including a 
signed copy of transcripts from the sponsor, provider or sponsor of the related instruction.  The field office 
representative shall have in evidence an electronic or written Application for Certification of Completion of 
Apprenticeship. 

When a large number of apprentices are completing at the same time from the same occupation, one 
application form from the sponsor can be used with an attached list of pertinent information for the 
completing apprentices.  When the sponsor has more than one occupation or more than one employer, the 
sponsor should complete separate forms for each occupation and employer, following the procedure above. 

The occupation identified, must be the occupation title as listed in the most current List of Officially 
Recognized Apprenticeable Occupations.  For sponsors who use a slightly different occupational title, OA staff 
may use the sponsor’s title as long as the officially recognized occupational title is included in parenthesis 
under the sponsor’s occupational title.  Please see attached “sample” for reference. 

The term “journeyman, journeyworker, journeyperson, etc.” should not be included in the occupational title. 
These terms are used to describe a level of competency rather than an occupational title. 

In rare instances where a program sponsor may utilize such a term above in their occupational title and that 
terminology is consistently used within their organization and training materials, OA staff may use that 
terminology on the sponsor’s occupational title as long as the officially recognized occupational title is listed 
in parenthesis under the sponsor’s title.  The practice of using a level of competency in the occupational title 
should be discouraged when possible. 

The sponsor’s name on the Certificate of Completion of Apprenticeship shall be as it is registered and 
approved in their apprenticeship standards. 

The date completed shall be the date of completion as indicated on the request form. 

Issuance of Replacement OA Certificate of Completion of Apprenticeship 

Replacement certificate requests shall be verified with undeniable proof that an original certificate was either 
issued or requested by the sponsor.  This shall be verified through OA’s records or the program sponsor’s 
records.  In the event a field office has no proof, yet a program sponsor does, or vice versa, a copy of that proof 
shall be sent to the field office and included in the program folder.  The term “Replacement Certificate” shall 
be printed in 12 pt. font size on the replacement certificate in the space centered between the last line of type 
and the U.S. Department of Labor seal. 

The Certificate of Completion of Apprenticeship shall not be used for any other purpose than completion of a 
Registered Apprenticeship program. 

67

Item 4.



 

 

Page | 1 

Requirements for Apprenticeship Sponsors 

Reference Guide 

 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 

SECTION I - STANDARDS OF APPRENTICESHIP . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  1 

A. RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE SPONSOR . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  1 

B. MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  4 

C. APPRENTICESHIP APPROACH AND TERM . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  4 

D. WORK PROCESS SCHEDULE AND RELATED INSTRUCTION OUTLINE . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  4 

E. CREDIT FOR PREVIOUS EXPERIENCE . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  5 

F. PROBATIONARY PERIOD . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  6 

G. RATIO OF APPRENTICES TO JOURNEYWORKERS . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  6 

H. APPRENTICE WAGE SCHEDULE . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  6 

I. EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY AND AFFIRMATIVE ACTION PROGRAM . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  6 

J. COMPLAINTS PROCEDURES . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  8 

K. OFFICE OF APPRENTICESHIP GENERAL CONTACT INFORMATION . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  9 

SECTION II - APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  9 

SECTION II PART 1 - COLLECTIVE BARGANING PROVISIONS (IF APPLICABLE) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  9 

SECTION III - VETERANS’ EDUCATIONAL ASSISTANCE . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  10 

SECTION IV - SIGNATURES . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  10 

SECTION V - DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  10 

GLOSSARY OF TERMS . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  10 
 

This document accompanies and supplements the “Apprenticeship Standards” developed by the U.S. 
Department of Labor Office, Employment and Training Administration, Office of Apprenticeship.  
Sponsors are required to comply with the requirements in Title 29 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) 
part 29, subpart A and part 30 at all times, and part 29, subpart A and part 30 shall control in the 
event of conflict or ambiguity with this document.  In addition to the requirements listed in the 
Apprenticeship Standards, sponsors should be aware of and must comply with the additional 
requirements listed in this document.  There are two types of Boilerplate Standards, one for the 
programs jointly operated with a union, and one for those programs operating without a union. 

Page 1 of the Boilerplate Standards is for Government usage and left blank.  The OA 
Administrator registers the National Apprenticeship Standards and certifies National 
Guidelines for Apprenticeship Standards.  Regional or State Director register local standards. 

68

Item 4.



 

 

Page | 2 

SECTION I – STANDARDS OF APPRENTICESHIP 29 CFR § 29.5 

A. RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE SPONSOR: 

Apprenticeship Agreement:  Prior to signing the apprenticeship agreement, each selected 
applicant must be given an opportunity to read and review the sponsor’s Apprenticeship 
Standards approved by the Office of Apprenticeship, the sponsor’s written rules and policies, 
the apprenticeship agreement, and the sections of any collective bargaining agreement (CBA) 
that pertain to apprenticeship.  After selection of an applicant for apprenticeship, but before 
employment as an apprentice or enrollment in related instruction, the apprentice must be 
covered by a written apprenticeship agreement, which must be submitted to the Office of 
Apprenticeship.  Such submission can be done electronically through the Registered 
Apprenticeship Partner Information Data System (“RAPIDS”), using the Apprentice 
Electronic Registration process, or on ETA Form 671.  Sponsors will receive their username 
and login information for RAPIDS upon registration.  The Sponsor must advise the 
Registration Agency within 45 days of the execution of each new apprenticeship agreement.  
The sponsor also must provide a copy of the completed apprenticeship agreement to the 
apprentice, the employer, and the union, if any.  The sponsor must provide the Office of 
Apprenticeship a signed copy of ETA Form 671 indicating that the employer (if not the 
sponsor), the union (if applicable), and the apprentice have received the completed 
apprenticeship agreement.  If the apprentice is a Veteran, the sponsor must provide an 
additional copy to a veteran’s state approving agency, for any veteran apprentice desiring 
access to benefits to which they are entitled. 

Safety and Health Training:  All apprentices must receive instruction in safe and healthful 
work practices.  Both on the job and related instruction are to comply with the Occupational 
Safety and Health Administration standards promulgated by the Secretary of Labor under 29 
U.S.C. 651 et seq., or State standards that have been found to be at least as effective as the 
Federal standards. 

Maintenance of Records:  Program sponsors are responsible for maintaining, at a minimum, 
the following records: summary of the qualifications of each applicant; basis for evaluation 
and for selection or rejection of each applicant, including applications, tests, and test results; 
records pertaining to interviews; the invitation to self-identify as an individual with a 
disability; records of each apprentice’s On-the-Job Learning (“OJL”); related instruction 
reviews and evaluations; progress evaluations; record of job assignments, including job 
assignments in components of the occupation; records pertaining to the promotion, 
demotion, transfer, layoff, termination, rates of pay, other forms of compensation, conditions 
of work, hours of work, hours of training provided, and any personnel records relevant to 
equal employment opportunity (“EEO”) complaints filed with the Office of Apprenticeship or 
with other enforcement agencies.  The sponsor must maintain all records related to 
compliance with EEO standards required by 29 CFR § 30.3.  Program sponsors must also 
maintain all records relating to apprenticeship applications (whether selected or not), 
including, but not limited to, the sponsor’s outreach, recruitment, interview, and selection 
process.  Sponsors must also retain records related to reasonable accommodations. 

All records retained pursuant to part 30 must clearly identify the race, sex, ethnicity 
(Hispanic or Latino/non–Hispanic or Latino), and when known, disability status of each 
apprentice, and where possible, the race, sex, ethnicity, and disability status of each applicant 
for apprenticeship.  Each sponsor required under 29 CFR § 30.4 to develop and maintain an 
affirmative action program must retain both the written affirmative action plan and 

69

Item 4.



 

 

Page | 3 

documentation of its component elements set forth in 29 CFR §§ 30.5, 30.6, 30.7, 30.8, 30.9, 
and 30.11.  All such records are the property of the sponsor and must be maintained for a 
period of five (5) years from the date of the making of the record or the personnel action 
involved, whichever occurs later.  Records must be made available to the Office of 
Apprenticeship upon request in such form as the Office of Apprenticeship may determine is 
necessary to ascertain whether the sponsor has complied or is complying with its obligations. 

Transfer:  The transfer of an apprentice between apprenticeship programs and within an 
apprenticeship program must be based on agreement between the apprentice and the 
affected apprenticeship committees or program sponsors and must comply with the following 
requirements: 

(1) The transferring apprentice must be provided a transcript of related instruction and OJL 
by the committee or program sponsor; (2) Transfer must be to the same occupation; and (3) 
A new apprenticeship agreement must be executed when the transfer occurs between the 
program sponsors.  The apprentice must receive credit from the new sponsor for the training 
already satisfactorily completed. 

Registration, Cancellation, Suspension, and Deregistration:  The Office of Apprenticeship 
may initiate deregistration of a sponsor’s standards upon request of the sponsor or for failure 
of the sponsor to abide by the provisions herein and those contained in its Apprenticeship 
Standards.  Such deregistration actions will be in accordance with the Office of 
Apprenticeship’s applicable regulations and procedures. 

The sponsor must notify each apprentice of the cancellation of the program and its effect on 
active apprentices.  If the Registration Agency requests the deregistration of the 
apprenticeship program, the sponsor will notify active apprentice(s) within 15 days of the 
effective date of the deregistration.  The sponsor’s notification to its apprentices must specify 
(1) the effective date of deregistration; (2) that such cancellation automatically deprives 
apprentices of individual registration; (3) that the deregistration removes the apprentice 
from coverage for Federal purposes, and; (4) that all apprentices may contact the Office of 
Apprenticeship for information regarding potential transfer to other registered 
apprenticeship programs. 

Where the Office of Apprenticeship, as a result of a compliance review, complaint 
investigation, or other reason, determines that the sponsor is not operating its 
apprenticeship program in accordance with part 30, the Office of Apprenticeship must notify 
the sponsor in writing of the specific violation and offer technical assistance or suspend the 
sponsor’s right to register new apprentices if the sponsor fails to implement a compliance 
action to correct the specific violation. 

Amendments and Modifications:  A sponsor must submit a request to its Office of 
Apprenticeship to amend its Apprenticeship Standards or an apprenticeship agreement.  
Amendments may be requested by contacting the Office of Apprenticeship using its preferred 
contact information as listed in Section K of the Apprenticeship Standards and must be 
agreed upon by all parties to the original Standards (i.e., the employer, committee, and 
union—note that individual apprentices are not parties to the Standards).  Amendments and 
modification may include notice of transfers, suspensions, and cancellations of 
apprenticeship agreements and a statement of the reasons therefore.  A copy of each 
amendment or modification adopted must be furnished by the sponsor to each apprentice, 
the Office of Apprenticeship, union (if applicable), and the apprentice to whom the 
amendment or modification applies.  

70

Item 4.



 

 

Page | 4 

Compliance with Federal Law:  The sponsor and all entities must comply with all applicable 
Federal law and regulations in operating the apprenticeship program. 

B. MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS: 

An apprentice must be at least 16 years old unless applicable law requires a higher age.   
Sponsors may note additional minimum qualifications in Section B of their apprenticeship 
standards where appropriate.  Sponsors are prohibited from using discriminatory minimum 
qualifications. 

C. APPRENTICESHIP APPROACH AND TERM: 

The term of the occupation will be stated in Appendix A of the work process schedule and 
standards as time-based, hybrid, or competency-based with an OJL attainment of either hours 
or years, as applicable, supplemented by the required hours of related instruction.  Sponsors 
that wish to register multiple occupations should attach a completed Appendix A for each 
occupation. 

Requests for Certificate of Completion of Apprenticeship:  The sponsor must certify the 
completion to OA and request a Certificate of Completion of Apprenticeship for the 
completing apprentice(s).  Such requests are completed either electronically or in writing 
using the Application for Certification of Completion of Apprenticeship Form in Appendix B. 

Request for a Certificate of Training:  A Certificate of Training (Interim Credential) may be 
requested from OA, only for a registered apprentice who has been certified by the sponsor as 
having successfully met the requirements to receive an interim credential as identified in the 
sponsor’s standards.  OA requires that a record of completed OJL and related instruction for 
the apprentice accompany such requests.  Insert interim credentials in Work Process 
Schedule and Related Instruction Outline at Appendix A. 

D. WORK PROCESS SCHEDULE AND RELATED INSTRUCTION OUTLINE: 

1. Work Process Schedule.  As part of Appendix A, all sponsors must include a statement 
setting forth a schedule of the work processes in the occupation or industry divisions in 
which the apprentice is to be trained and the approximate time to be spent at each 
process.  Sponsor(s) with multiple occupations must complete an Appendix A for each 
occupation.  The sponsor may modify the work processes to meet local needs prior to 
submitting these Standards to the Office of Apprenticeship for approval.  For free 
technical assistance in compiling a work process schedule, including numerous 
templates and examples, visit: www.apprenticeship.gov. 

2. Related Instruction Outline.  As part of Appendix A, all sponsors must include an 
outline of an organized and systematic form of instruction designed to provide the 
apprentice with the knowledge of the theoretical and technical subjects related to the 
apprentice’s occupation.  A minimum of 144 hours for each year of apprenticeship is 
recommended.  This instruction may be accomplished through media such as 
classroom, occupational or industry courses, electronic media, or other instruction.  
Generally, a Related Instruction Outline should include a list of the anticipated courses, 
the learning objectives, and the estimated number of hours that each course will last.  
For free technical assistance with compiling a Related Instruction Outline, visit:  
www.apprenticeship.gov. 

  

71

Item 4.

http://www.apprenticeship.gov/
http://www.apprenticeship.gov/


 

 

Page | 5 

In addition to the OJL, during the apprenticeship, the apprentice must receive related 
instruction in all phases of the occupation necessary to develop the skill and proficiency 
of a journeyworker.  Every apprentice is required to participate in related instruction 
in technical subjects related to the job as outlined as in Appendix A of the 
Apprenticeship Standards.  Sponsors are not obligated to compensate apprentices for 
time spent in related instruction.  Sponsors must specify in Section D of the Standards 
whether related instruction will be compensated.  Sponsor's payment or agreement to 
pay apprentices for time spent in related instruction must comply with all applicable 
Federal, State, and local laws and regulations related to apprentice wages. 

The sponsor must secure the instructional aids and equipment it deems necessary to 
provide quality instruction.  In cities, towns, or areas having no vocational schools or 
other schools that can furnish related instruction, the sponsor may require apprentices 
to complete the related instruction requirement through electronic media or other 
instruction approved by the Office of Apprenticeship.  The sponsor must inform each 
apprentice of the availability of college credit, if applicable. 

To the extent possible, related instruction should be closely correlated with the 
practical experience and training received on the job.  The sponsor must monitor and 
document the apprentice’s progress in related instruction classes.  The sponsor must 
ensure that related instruction providers meet the State Department of Education’s 
requirements for a vocational-technical instructor in the State of registration, or be a 
subject matter expert, such as a journeyworker.  All related instruction providers must 
have training in teaching techniques and adult learning styles which may occur before 
or after the apprenticeship instructor has started to provide the related technical 
instruction. 

E. CREDIT FOR PREVIOUS EXPERIENCE: 

Sponsors that provide apprentice applicants seeking credit for previous experience gained 
outside the supervision of the sponsor must accept the request at the time of application and 
request appropriate records and documentation to substantiate the claim.  Prior to 
completion of the probationary period, the amount of credit to be awarded will be 
determined after review of the apprentice’s previous work and training/education record 
and evaluation of the apprentice’s performance and demonstrated skill and knowledge 
during the probationary period.  An apprentice granted credit must be advanced to the wage 
rate designated for the period to which such credit accrues.  The sponsor may grant credit 
toward the term of apprenticeship to new apprentices.  The Office of Apprenticeship must be 
advised of any credit granted and the wage rate to which the apprentice is advanced within 
45 days.  Such notifications can be made in RAPIDS.  The granting of advanced standing must 
apply to all applicants equally.  If the sponsor plans to establish specific requirements for an 
apprentice to receive advanced standing, the sponsor should use the additional lines in 
Section E of the Apprenticeship Standards. 

F. PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 

During the probationary period, either the apprentice or the sponsor may terminate the 
apprenticeship agreement, without stated cause, by notifying the other party in writing.  The 
sponsor will keep the records for each probationary apprentice.  Records may consist of 
periodic reports regarding progression made in both the OJL and related instruction, and any 
disciplinary action taken during the probationary period.  Any probationary apprentice 
evaluated as satisfactory after a review of the probationary period must be given full credit 

72

Item 4.



 

 

Page | 6 

for the probationary period and continue in the program. 

When notified that an apprentice’s related instruction or on-the-job progress is found to be 
unsatisfactory, the sponsor will determine whether the apprentice should continue in a 
probationary status and may require the apprentice to repeat a process or series of processes 
before advancing to the next wage classification. 

After the probationary period, the apprenticeship agreement may be cancelled at the request 
of the apprentice or may be suspended or cancelled by the sponsor for reasonable cause after 
documented due notice to the apprentice and a reasonable opportunity for corrective action.  
For all cancellations, the sponsor must provide written notice to the apprentice and, within 
45 days, notice to the Office of Apprenticeship of the action taken. 

G. RATIO OF APPRENTICES TO JOURNEYWORKERS: 

In Appendix A, the prospective sponsor must establish a ratio of apprentice(s) to one or more 
journeyworker(s), except where such ratios are expressly prohibited by a CBA.  The sponsor 
must comply with the registered ratio at all times. 

H. APPRENTICE WAGE SCHEDULE: 

Apprentices must be paid a progressively increasing schedule of wages during their 
apprenticeship based on the acquisition of increased skill and competence on the job and in 
related instruction.  The progressive wage schedule, which may include fringe benefits, will be 
an increasing percentage of the fully proficient or journeyworker wage rate as provided for 
in Section H and Appendix A of the Apprenticeship Standards.  The journeyworker wage rate 
will serve as the terminal wage that an apprentice will receive upon completion of the 
apprenticeship program.  The entry wage must not be less than the minimum wage set by the 
Fair Labor Standards Act (including overtime), where applicable, unless a higher wage is 
required by other Federal or State law or regulation, or by collective bargaining agreement.  
The number of steps in the progressive wage scale, as depicted in Appendix A, may vary based 
on the length and complexity of the registered apprenticeship.  The schedule of wages must 
increase consistent with the skills acquired by the apprentice. 

I. EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY AND AFFIRMATIVE ACTION PROGRAM: 

1. Equal Employment Opportunity Affirmative Obligations.  Sponsors are required to 
comply with the equal opportunity pledge in Section I and II of the Apprenticeship 
Standards.  Sponsors with five or more registered apprentices must develop an 
affirmative action plan within two years of registration as required by 29 CFR § 30.4 
and update the plan upon the completion of workforce analyses required by 29 CFR 
§§30.5(b) and 30.7(d)(2), unless it is exempt from doing so under § 30.4(d)(2).  In 
particular, Federal agencies and Federal contractors should consult with OA to see if 
they qualify for an exemption or if their current Affirmative Action Plans are applicable 
under the part 30 requirements. 

All sponsors have a duty to take affirmative steps to provide equal opportunity in 
apprenticeship according to 29 CFR § 30.3(b).  The sponsor will designate an individual 
or individuals responsible for overseeing the sponsor’s commitment to equal 
opportunity in registered apprenticeship, for monitoring apprenticeship activity to 
ensure compliance with EEO requirements, to maintain required records, and to 
generate reports.  In addition to providing apprentices with the Equal Opportunity 

73

Item 4.



 

 

Page | 7 

Pledge contained in Section 1., sponsors must: post the pledge so that it is accessible to 
all apprentices and applicants, including posting through electronic media; conduct 
orientation and periodic information sessions (including anti-harassment training) for 
individuals involved in the apprenticeship program, including apprentices and 
journeyworkers who regularly work with apprentices; and maintain records to 
demonstrate compliance.  Sponsors must engage in universal outreach and 
recruitment, including developing and updating an annual list of recruitment sources 
that will generate referrals from all demographic groups within the relevant recruitment 
area, identify a contact person, mailing address, telephone number, and email address 
for each recruitment source, and provide recruitment sources with advanced notice of 
apprenticeship openings.  Sponsors must maintain apprenticeship programs free from 
harassment, intimidation and retaliation, including providing required anti-
harassment training and addresses the right of apprentices to file a harassment 
complaint under 29 CFR § 30.14.  Sponsors must make all facilities and apprenticeship 
activities available without regard to race, color, religion, national origin, sex, sexual 
orientation, age (40 or older), genetic information, or disability except that if the 
sponsor provides restrooms or changing facilities, the sponsor must provide separate or 
single-user restrooms and changing facilities to assure privacy between the sexes.  
Sponsors must establish and implement procedures for handling and resolving 
complaints about harassment and intimidation.  Sponsors must comply with Federal 
and State EEO laws. 

2. Discrimination/Retaliation Prohibited.  It is unlawful for a sponsor of a registered 
apprenticeship program to discriminate against an apprentice or applicant for 
apprenticeship on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, sex, sexual 
orientation, age (40 or older), genetic information, or disability with regard to: 
recruitment, outreach and selection procedures, hiring and/or placement, upgrading, 
periodic advancement, promotion, demotion, transfer, layoff, termination, right of 
return from layoff, and rehiring.  Additionally, sponsors are prohibited from 
discrimination in rotation among work processes; imposition of penalties or other 
disciplinary action; rates of pay or any other form of compensation and changes in 
compensation; conditions of work; hours of work and hours of training provided; job 
assignments; leaves of absence, sick leave, or any other leave; and any other benefit, 
term, condition, or privilege associated with apprenticeship.  The Office of 
Apprenticeship will look to the legal standards and defenses applied under the Federal 
laws listed at 29 CFR § 30.3(a)(2) in determining whether a sponsor has engaged in an 
unlawful discriminatory practice. 

It is also unlawful to intimidate, threaten, coerce, retaliate against, or discriminate 
against a participant in an apprenticeship program because the individual has: (1) filed 
a complaint alleging a violation of 29 CFR part 30; (2) opposed a practice prohibited by 
the provisions of 29 CFR part 30 or any other Federal or State equal opportunity law; 
(3) furnished information to, or assisted or participated in any manner, in any 
investigation, compliance review, proceeding, or hearing under 29 CFR part 30 or any 
Federal or State equal opportunity law; or (4) otherwise exercised any rights and 
privileges under the provisions of 29 CFR part 30. 

3. Selection Procedures.  Sponsors are prohibited from using discriminatory selection 
procedures.  The Office of Apprenticeship will review the selection procedures 
provided in Section I to ensure compliance with 29 CFR § 30.10.  Selection Procedures 

74

Item 4.



 

 

Page | 8 

are required no matter how many apprentices are registered in the program.  In sum, 
selection procedures must:  (1) comply with the Uniform Guidelines on Employee 
Selection Procedures, including the requirements to evaluate the impact of the selection 
procedure on race, sex, and ethnic groups and, if any selection procedure results in an 
adverse impact against one of those groups, demonstrating that the procedure is job 
related and consistent with business necessity; (2) be uniformly and consistently 
applied to all applicants and apprentices within each selection procedure utilized; (3) 
comply with title I of the ADA and the EEOC’s implementing regulations at part 1630, 
which includes that procedures must not screen out or tend to screen out individual(s) 
with disabilities unless the selection criteria is job related and consistent with business 
necessity; and (4) be facially neutral in terms of any protected category under part 30. 

J. COMPLAINT PROCEDURES: 

Section J of the Apprenticeship Standards addresses four types of complaints; complaints 
covered by a CBA, complaints not covered by a CBA, complaints to the appropriate Office of 
Apprenticeship, and complaints alleging discrimination.  Space is provided for the sponsor to 
fill-in the appropriate contact information for the contact person the sponsor wishes to 
designate to resolve disputes not governed by a CBA.  The Office of Apprenticeship is 
responsible for resolving complaints that allege discrimination, or, that could not be resolved 
by the sponsor and do not involve a matter covered by a CBA.  Space is provided for the Office 
of Apprenticeship to fill-in its preferred contact information.  Nothing in these complaint 
procedures precludes an apprentice from pursuing any other remedy authorized under 
another Federal, State, or local law. 

EEO Complaint Procedures (29 CFR § 30.14).  An apprentice, applicant for apprenticeship, 
or authorized representative of an apprentice or applicant may file a complaint with the 
Registration Agency if the apprentice or applicant believes that: 

 The apprentice or applicant has been discriminated against or harassed on the basis 
of race, color, religion, national origin, age (40 or older), genetic information, 
disability, sex, or sexual orientation with regard to apprenticeship. 

 The apprentice or applicant has been retaliated against for the following: 

o Filing a complaint alleging a violation of 29 CFR part 30; 

o Opposing a practice prohibited by 29 CFR part 30 or federal or state equal 
opportunity law; 

o Furnishing information to, or assisting or participating in, an investigation or 
proceeding under 29 CFR part 30 or federal or state equal opportunity law; 

o Exercising any rights and privileges under 29 CFR part 30; or 

o Equal opportunity standards with respect to the apprentice’s selection or any 
other benefit, term, condition, or privilege associated with apprenticeship have 
not been followed in the operation of an apprenticeship program. 

Complaints regarding discrimination.  Sponsors must provide written notice to all 
applicants for apprenticeship and all apprentices of their right to file a discrimination 
complaint and the procedures for doing so.  The notice must include the address, phone 
number, and other contact information for the Registration Agency that will receive and 
investigate complaints filed under this part.  The notice must be provided in the application 

75

Item 4.



 

 

Page | 9 

for apprenticeship and must be displayed in a prominent, publicly available location where 
all apprentices will see the notice.  The notice must contain the specific wording set forth at 
29 CFR § 30.14(b). 

Other general complaints.  J.2 addresses complaints concerning issues covered by the 
apprenticeship agreement or standards, but not covered by a CBA or concerning 
discrimination or other equal opportunity matter.  The sponsor will hear and attempt to 
resolve the matter locally if written notification from the apprentice is received within the 
timeframe described in J.2.  Either party to the apprenticeship agreement may consult with 
the Registration Agency for an interpretation of any provision of these standards over which 
differences occur. 

Such complaints must be in writing, signed by the complainant or the authorized 
representative, and must be submitted within 60 days of any final sponsor decision.  The 
complaint must set forth the specific matter(s) complained of and state the relevant facts and 
circumstances.  Copies of any pertinent documentation must accompany the complaint. 

K. OFFICE OF APPRENTICESHIP GENERAL CONTACT INFORMATION: 

The Registration Agency is either the National Office of Apprenticeship or the local OA 
representative in which the standards are registered.  General Contact information will be 
provided as part of the registration process. 

SECTION II – APPENDICES AND ATTACHMENTS 

Appendix A - Work Process Schedule, Related Instruction Outline, Apprentice Wage Schedule, Ratio 
of Apprentices to Journeyworkers, Type of Occupation, Term of Apprenticeship, Selection Procedures 
and Probationary Period: See Sections D, F, G, H, and I of this Reference Guide.  Sponsor(s) with 
multiple occupations must complete an Appendix A for each occupation. 

Appendix B (ETA Form 671 – Apprenticeship Agreement and Application for Certification of 
Completion of Apprenticeship:  May be completed in RAPIDS after program registration. 

Appendix C (Affirmative Action Plan (AAP):  Sponsors are required to develop an AAP within two 
years of registration for programs with (5) five or more registered apprentices.  Information and 
technical assistance materials relating to the creation and maintenance of an affirmative action 
plan will be made available on the Office of Apprenticeship’s website. 

Appendix D (Employer Acceptance Agreement):  A sample agreement has been provided for 
employers who choose to sign on under the sponsor’s approved standards.  Please use Appendix D 
when developing standards for multiple employers. 

SECTION II PART 1 – COLLECTIVE BARGAINING PROVISIONS (IF APPLICABLE) 

Section II Part 1 is for sponsors registering a program where the apprentices will be covered by 

a CBA.  Such sponsors must furnish to the appropriate union a copy of its completed 

Apprenticeship Standards as well as all attachments.  Normally, the appropriate union officials 

should sign in the designated spaces.  However, if the union elects not to participate in the 

registration process, the Office of Apprenticeship will allow 45 days to receive union comments 

76

Item 4.



 

 

Page | 10 

before registering the program. 

SECTION III - VETERANS’ EDUCATIONAL ASSISTANCE AS MANDATED BY PUBLIC LAW 116-

134 (134 STAT. 276) 

Pursuant to section 2(b)(1) of the Support for Veterans in Effective Apprenticeships Act of 2019 
(Pub. L. 116-134, 134 Stat. 276), Registered Apprenticeship program sponsors are required to 
provide a written assurance that the sponsor: (1) is aware of the availability of educational 
assistance for a veteran or other eligible individual under chapters 30 through 36 of title 38, 
United States Code, for use in connection with a registered apprenticeship program; (2) will make 
a good faith effort to obtain approval for educational assistance described in paragraph (1) above 
for, at a minimum, each program location that employs or recruits an veteran or other eligible 
individual for educational assistance under chapters 30 through 36 of title 38, United States 
Code; and (3) will not deny the application of a qualified candidate who is a veteran or other 
individual eligible for educational assistance described in paragraph (1) above for the purpose 
of avoiding making a good faith effort to obtain approval as described in paragraph (2) above.  

This requirement applies to “any program applying to become a registered apprenticeship 
program on or after the date that is 180 days after the date of enactment of this Act” (i.e., 
September 22, 2020).  Accordingly, apprenticeship programs that were registered by a 
Registration Agency before September 22, 2020, are not subject to this requirement. 

SECTION IV – SIGNATURES 

The Program Sponsor(s) may designate the appropriate person(s) to sign the Standards on their 

behalf. 

SECTION V – DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT (Optional) 

Program Sponsors may indicate their preference and authorization for OA staff to share the Work 

Process Schedule and Related Instruction Outline in Appendix A with other entities seeking to 

establish Apprenticeship Programs. 

GLOSSARY OF TERMS 

1. APPRENTICE: Means a worker at least 16 years of age, except where a higher minimum age 
standard is otherwise fixed by law, who is employed to learn an apprenticeable occupation 
as provided in §29.4 under standards of apprenticeship fulfilling the requirements of §29.5. 

2. APPRENTICESHIP AGREEMENT: Means a written agreement, complying with §29.7, 
between an apprentice and either the apprentice’s program sponsor, or an apprenticeship 
committee acting as agent for the program sponsor(s), which contains the terms and 
conditions of the employment and training of the apprentice. 

3. APPRENTICESHIP APPROACHES: 

a. COMPETENCY-BASED APPROACH:  Measures skill acquisition through the individual 
apprentice’s successful demonstration of acquired skills and knowledge, as verified by 
the program sponsor.  Programs utilizing this approach must still require apprentices to 
complete an on-the-job learning component of Registered Apprenticeship.  The program 

77

Item 4.



 

 

Page | 11 

standards must address how on-the-job learning will be integrated into the program, 
describe competencies, and identify an appropriate means of testing and evaluation for 
such competencies. 

b. HYBRID APPROACH:  Measures the individual apprentice’s skill acquisition through a 
combination of specified minimum number of hours of on-the-job learning and the 
successful demonstration of competency as described in a work process schedule. 

c. TIME-BASED APPROACH:  Measures skill acquisition through the individual 
apprentice’s completion of at least 2,000 hours of on-the-job learning as described in a 
work process schedule. 

4. CERTIFICATE OF COMPLETION OF APPRENTICESHIP:  The credential issued by the Office 
of Apprenticeship to those registered apprentices certified and documented as having 
successfully completed the apprentice training requirements outlined in these standards of 
apprenticeship. 

5. EMPLOYER:  Means any person or organization employing an apprentice whether or not 
such person or organization is a party to an Apprenticeship Agreement with the apprentice. 

6. EMPLOYER ACCEPTANCE AGREEMENT:  Means an agreement between the sponsor and an 
undersigned participating employer, which agrees to carry out the intent, purpose, rules and 
decisions of the sponsor established under an approved set of Registered Apprenticeship 
Standards. 

7. JOURNEYWORKER:  Means a worker who has attained a level of skill, abilities and 
competencies recognized within an industry as having mastered the skills and competencies 
required for the occupation.  (Use of the term may also refer to a mentor, technician, specialist 
or other skilled worker who has documented sufficient skills and knowledge of an 
occupation, either through formal apprenticeship or through practical on-the-job experience 
and formal training.) 

8. TRAINING REQUIREMENTS: 

a. ON-THE-JOB LEARNING (OJL):  Tasks learned on-the-job, in which the apprentice must 
become proficient before a completion certificate is awarded.  The learning must be 
through structured, supervised work experience. 

b. RELATED INSTRUCTION:  Means an organized and systematic form of instruction 
designed to provide the apprentice with the knowledge of the theoretical and technical 
subjects related to the apprentice’s occupation.  Such instruction may be given in a 
classroom, through occupational or industrial courses, or by correspondence courses of 
equivalent value, electronic media, or other forms of self-study approved by the Office of 
Apprenticeship. 

c. WORK PROCESS SCHEDULE:  An outline of the tasks in which the apprentice will receive 
supervised work experience and training on the job, and the allocation of the 
approximate amount of time to be spent in each major process. 

9. REGISTERED APPRENTICESHIP PARTNERS INFORMATION DATA SYSTEM (RAPIDS):  A 
Federal system that provides for the automated collection, retention, updating, retrieval, and 
summarization of information related to apprentices and apprenticeship programs. 

10. SPONSOR:  Means any person, association, committee, or organization operating an 
apprenticeship program and in whose name the program is (or is to be) registered or 
approved. 

78

Item 4.



 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM ANALYSIS 
 

Project/Issue Name: 24-15 An Ordinance of the City Council Amending Title VII (“Utilities”), 
Chapter 715 (“Sewers And Sewage Disposal”), Article 715-II (“Use Of 
The Publicly-Owned Treatment Works”), Section 715.130 (”Connection 
to the Publicly Owned Treatment Works”) of the Municipal Code of the 
City of Republic, Missouri. 

Submitted By: David Cameron – City Administrator 

Date: April 2, 2024 
 

 

Issue Statement 

Requirement of the Missouri Code of State Regulations (CSR) for connection to publicly owned treatment 

works. 

 

Discussion and/or Analysis 

 

During the Missouri Department of Natural Resources (MDNR) review of Chapter 715 of the Municipal 

Code of the City of Republic as part of the State Revolving Loan Fund application and approval. MDNR 

found that the sewer use requirements do not comply with state regulations 10 CSR 20-4.040(16) which 

states that all users are to connect to the system within 90 days of service availability.  Currently section 

715.130 requires the connection to be made within 180 days of service availability.  This ordinance 

amendment corrects the maximum allowable time to be in accordance with state regulation. 

 

Recommended Action 

Staff recommends approval. 

79

Item 5.



BILL NO. 24-15  ORDINANCE NO. 24- 
 

BILL NO. 24-15  ORDINANCE NO. 24- 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL AMENDING TITLE VII (“UTILITIES”), CHAPTER 715 (“SEWERS 
AND SEWAGE DISPOSAL”), ARTICLE 715-II (“USE OF THE PUBLICLY-OWNED TREATMENT WORKS”), 

SECTION 715.130 (“CONNECTION TO THE PUBLICLY OWNED TREATMENT WORKS”) OF THE MUNICIPAL 
CODE OF THE CITY OF REPUBLIC, MISSOURI 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Republic, Missouri, (“City” or “Republic”) is a municipal corporation and 

Charter City located in Greene County, Missouri, being duly created, organized, and existing under the 
laws of the State of Missouri; and 
 

WHEREAS, in an effort to fund the remaining amount(s) owed by the City on the wastewater 
treatment system improvements, and as recently approved by this Council, the City is in the process of 
applying for State Revolving Loan Funds through the Missouri Department of Natural Resources (MDNR); 
and 

WHEREAS, MDNR notified the City that during its review of Chapter 715 of the Municipal Code of 
the City of Republic, as part of the State Revolving Loan Fund application and approval process, MDNR 
found that the sewer use requirements currently codified in Chapter 715 of the Municipal Code do not 
comply with state regulation 10 CSR 20-4.040(16) which requires all users to connect to the system within 
90 days of service availability;  

 
WHEREAS, currently, Republic Code Section 715.130 requires the connection to be made within 

180 days of service availability; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council finds it necessary and in the best interest of the City to amend Republic 

Code Section 715.130 to align with the above-referenced state regulation, in order to maximize the 
likelihood of approval of the City’s application for the SRF funds.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF REPUBLIC, MISSOURI, 
AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1: Title VII (“Utilities”), Chapter 715 (“Sewers And Sewage Disposal”), Article 715-II 
(“Use Of The Publicly-Owned Treatment Works”),  Section 715.130 (“Connection 
To The Publicly Owned Treatment Works”) of the Municipal Code of the City of 
Republic, Missouri is hereby amended to read as follows: 

 
Title VII Utilities 

715.130 Connection To The Publicly Owned Treatment Works 

A. The owner of all houses, buildings or properties used for human 

occupancy, employment, recreation or other purpose, situated in the City 

or in any area where there is an availability of sewers in a jurisdiction with 

which the City has an interjurisdictional sewage treatment agreement 

and abutting on any street, alley or right-of-way in which there is now 

located or may in the future be located a sanitary sewer of the City, is 

hereby required, at his/her expense, to install suitable toilet facilities 

therein and to connect such facilities directly with the proper sanitary 

sewer in accordance with the provisions of this Chapter within one 

80

Item 5.



BILL NO. 24-15  ORDINANCE NO. 24- 
 

BILL NO. 24-15  ORDINANCE NO. 24- 

hundred eighty (180) ninety (90) days after sewer service is available, 

provided such sanitary sewer is within three hundred (300) feet of all 

structures used for human occupancy, employment, recreation or other 

purposes. In the event there is no sanitary sewer within three hundred 

(300) feet of the structure, the owner may request permission of the City 

to construct and maintain an adequate on-site wastewater treatment 

system installation at the owner's expense, until such time as a sanitary 

sewer is made available. At which time a public sanitary sewer does 

become available, the owner shall connect the building sewer to the 

public sanitary sewer. The owner shall remove the septage from the 

sewage tank and dispose of it in an approved manner, and the sewage 

tank shall be abandoned and filled with suitable material or be removed.  

B. No person shall make any connection to the POTW, either direct or 

indirect, without written permission from the Director nor reconnect 

wastewater services when such services have been disconnected for non-

payment of a bill for wastewater services unless such bill for wastewater 

services, including charges for disconnection, has been paid in full.  

C. No person shall tap into any sanitary sewer line of the POTW except by 

using an approved tapping method and an approved connection fitting 

unless otherwise approved by the Director. The Director shall develop 

reasonable rules and regulations on tapping and connecting procedures. 

These rules and regulations shall take force and effect five (5) days after 

the same shall be filed in the office of the City Clerk.  

D. The building sewer shall be constructed and conform to the requirements 

of the Building and Plumbing Codes or other applicable rules and 

regulations of the City. The building sewer shall be constructed of 

Schedule 40 or heavier polyvinyl chloride (PVC), cast-iron soil pipe or any 

other material as approved by the Director with an inside diameter of no 

less than four (4) inches. Joints of the building sewer shall be watertight 

and rootproof. Joints for PVC pipe can be either the gasketed type or glue 

on. If the joints are to be glued, then an approved primer/cleaner and 

solvent-type cements shall be used. The primer/cleaner shall be purple in 

color for identification purposes. Ninety-degree ells or bends shall not be 

allowed at any point of the building sewer. At the point where the 

building drain connects to the building sewer, there shall be a tee or wye 

and a cleanout extended above the flow line of the building sewer and 

the line brought up above the surface of the surrounding ground. The 

pipe shall have an approved cap or screw-in plug to be used for access. 

The building sewer shall be laid at a minimal slope of one quarter (1/4) 

inch of fall per foot of horizontal distance and may not be located within 

two (2) feet of a side property line unless the sanitary sewer main is 

positioned along the side property line. The connection of the building 

81

Item 5.



BILL NO. 24-15  ORDINANCE NO. 24- 
 

BILL NO. 24-15  ORDINANCE NO. 24- 

drain to the building sewer shall be made at a point not less than three 

(3) feet from the foundation and not more than five (5) feet from the 

foundation. The cleanout must be of the same size of pipe as the building 

sewer up to the foundation. All pipe and fittings must be installed with 

granular pipe embedding, consisting of crushed or chipped limestone 

with a nominal size of not less than one-half (1/2) inch or greater than 

one (1) inch. Bedding material shall be used to provide a uniform trench 

bottom. A minimum bedding of two (2) inches above and below the 

exterior of the pipe is required. When the building sewer runs in excess 

of one hundred (100) linear feet, additional cleanouts shall be installed a 

maximum of one hundred (100) linear feet apart. The building sewer shall 

not be installed in the same trench as the water supply line. Water service 

pipe and building sewer shall be separated by five (5) feet of undisturbed 

or compacted earth. An eighteen-inch vertical separation shall be 

required between the building sewer and water supply line. Where this 

vertical separation cannot be complied with, then the building sewer and 

water supply line shall be without joints or connections until a five-foot 

separation is obtained. When existing conditions do not allow specified 

separation, sealed encasement shall be provided for either line until 

separation is achieved. Building sewers laid under drives, parking lots or 

traffic areas shall be either encased in metal conduit or shall be covered 

with a minimum of six (6) inches of crushed or chipped limestone, as 

specified herein, on all sides of the pipe, or the pipe shall be cast iron or 

ductile iron.  

E. The maintenance and repairs of the building sewer shall be the 

responsibility of the owner to the point of connection with the City's 

sanitary sewer main. This shall include when the building sewer crosses 

any street, road, highway, alley or right-of-way.  

F. For building sewers constructed or replaced after January 1, 2016, a 

minimum 12-gauge single strand copper clad steel high-strength 

conductive tracer wire with HDPE insulation shall be installed directly 

above and adjacent to the customer's building sewer line, where such 

piping is located within the public right-of-way. Wire splices shall be 

made with either rigid fittings or weatherproof connectors specifically 

designed for direct burial. Electric ground shall be established by splicing 

on to existing tracer wire where available or using a minimum one-inch 

copper grounding rod driven into the trench bottom near the sewer 

main. The tracer wire shall be installed directly above the building sewer 

line and taped every ten (10) feet using poly tape. The tracer wire shall 

be extended to the surface adjacent to the building clean out and housed 

within a protective enclosure constructed of Schedule 40 PVC pipe and a 

Schedule 40 PVC threaded clean out or an alternately constructed 

82

Item 5.



BILL NO. 24-15  ORDINANCE NO. 24- 
 

BILL NO. 24-15  ORDINANCE NO. 24- 

housing as may be approved by the City. The protective enclosure shall 

be extended to grade, installed so it is easily accessible but shall not be 

located within any driving or parking surface unless rigid clean-out fittings 

are used. 

1. This provision shall apply to building sewers operating under 

pressure or vacuum except that protective housings for accessing 

the tracer wire shall be located adjacent to the associated pump 

vault.  

G. A separate and independent building sewer shall be provided for every 

building and each individual premises intended to be maintained and 

owned separately, except where one (1) building may stand at the rear 

of another building in an interior lot and no public sanitary sewer is 

available or can be constructed to the rear building through any street, 

alley or right-of-way, in which case the building sewer from the front 

building may be extended to the rear building.  

H. Whenever possible, the building sewer shall be brought to the building 

drain at an elevation that will permit gravity flow into the building sewer. 

In all buildings in which any building drain is too low to permit gravity flow 

to the sanitary sewer, the sanitary sewage carried by the building drain 

shall be lifted by an approved means and discharged to the building drain 

or the nearest point that will permit gravity flow to the sanitary sewer. In 

any and all cases where the building drain or the drain of any plumbing 

fixture that drains by gravity is at a lower elevation than the highest 

elevation of the closest upstream manhole, which is part of the sanitary 

sewer main to which the building sewer is connected, a backwater valve 

shall be installed on the building sewer. A backwater valve shall also be 

installed on the upstream portion of the building sewer if at any point of 

the building sewer there is a connection of a pressurized discharge line 

from a pump used to carry water from a building subdrain to the building 

sewer. All bearing parts of backwater valves shall be of corrosion-

resistant material. Backwater valves shall comply with ASME A112.14.1, 

CSA CAN/CSA-B181.1 or CSA CAN/CSA-B181.2. Backwater valves shall be 

so constructed as to provide a mechanical seal against backflow. 

Backwater valves, when fully opened, shall have a capacity not less than 

that of the pipes in which they are installed. Backwater valves shall be 

installed so that access is provided to the working parts for service and 

repair.  

I. Old building sewers may be used in connection with a new building only 

when the old building sewer is constructed per this Section. Building 

sewers constructed of any non-approved materials shall be abandoned 

and disconnected at the point of connection to the public sanitary sewer.  

83

Item 5.



BILL NO. 24-15  ORDINANCE NO. 24- 
 

BILL NO. 24-15  ORDINANCE NO. 24- 

J. The Public Works Director shall be notified twenty-four (24) hours before 

the building sewer and connection to the public sanitary sewer is ready 

for inspection. The ditch shall not be backfilled until the inspection is 

made with approval given. Documentation of the location of the lateral 

shall be made at the time of inspection and shall be transferred to a 

permanent recordkeeping system established to document the same. A 

building sewer line inspection fee as provided for in the fee schedule 

found in Section 805.100 shall be submitted to the City prior to inspection 

or approval for service. The City may refuse to give sanitary sewer service 

for failure to conform to the requirements contained herein. 

EXPLANATION:   Matter shown above in bold-face/underlined font (except for Chapter 

title(s)) is added language.  Matter shown above in strikethrough font is deleted language. 

 
Section 2: All other Sections of the Municipal Code of the City of Republic, Missouri, not 

specifically referenced in this Ordinance, shall remain unmodified and in full force 
and effect. 

 
Section 3: The City Administrator or his/her designee, on behalf of the City, is authorized to 

take the necessary steps to execute this Ordinance.  
 
Section 4:  The WHEREAS clauses above are specifically incorporated herein by reference. 
 
Section 5: The provisions of this Ordinance are severable, and if any provisions hereof are   

declared invalid, unconstitutional, or unenforceable, such determination shall not 
affect the validity of the remainder of this Ordinance.  

 
Section 6: This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage as 

provided by law. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Republic, Missouri, 
this _____ day of May, 2024. 
 
 
      __________________________________________ 
Attest:        Matt Russell, Mayor  
 
 
____________________________________ 
Laura Burbridge, City Clerk 
 
 

Approved as to Form:   

84

Item 5.



BILL NO. 24-15  ORDINANCE NO. 24- 
 

BILL NO. 24-15  ORDINANCE NO. 24- 

 

Megan McCullough, City Attorney  

 

Final Passage and Vote:   
 

 

85

Item 5.



 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM ANALYSIS 
 

Project/Issue Name: 24-16 An Ordinance of the City Council Authorizing the Mayor to 
Execute an Intergovernmental Agreement with the Republic R-III School 
District and Drury Properties Inc. for Right of Way Access and Other 
Related Obligations as part of the New Republic Intermediate School 
Project. 

Submitted By: Karen Haynes, Planning Manager – Community Development 

Date: April 2, 2024 
 

 

Issue Statement 

Agreement to secure ROW and access for a Public Street to serve the new Republic Middle School. 

 

Discussion and/or Analysis 

This agreement formalizes the conditions for which access and improvements will be made for access to 

the Republic Middle School at FR 107 and US Highway 60.  The property owner who is providing ROW in 

exchange for like square footage from the school will have access changes as per MODOT standards and 

this agreement formalizes the conditions for all parties.  The property exchange will occur between the 

School District and DPI.  Once the School District completes the construction and improvements for access 

the School District will dedicate the right-of-way and public street infrastructure. 

This is one of two IGA’s executed for improvements and access along Highway 60.  The access point 

identified as a future signalized intersection as part of the 2027 6 lane expansion of Highway 60 will have 

all the necessary right-of-way (ROW) for a fully expanded intersection.  The ROW will be dedicated to the 

city for public street access and the city will provide ROW to MODOT as needed for the improvements for 

2027. 

 

Recommended Action 

Staff recommends approval. 

86

Item 6.



BILL NO. 24-16  ORDINANCE NO. 24- 
 

BILL NO. 24-16 1 ORDINANCE NO. 24- 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE AN 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT WITH REPUBLIC R-III SCHOOL DISTRICT AND DRURY PROPERTIES 
INC. FOR RIGHT OF WAY ACCESS AND OTHER RELATED OBLIGATIONS AS PART OF THE NEW REPUBLIC 

INTERMEDIATE SCHOOL PROJECT 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Republic, Missouri, (“City” and/or “Republic”) is a municipal corporation 
and Charter City located in Greene County, Missouri, being duly created, organized, and existing under 
the laws of the State of Missouri; and, 

 
WHEREAS, Drury Properties, Inc. (“Drury”) currently owns approximately 2.12 acres of improved 

real property located near the intersection of existing Farm Road 107 and U.S. Highway 60 in Republic 
(the “Property”); and 

 
WHEREAS, the Republic School District (“School District”) is currently planning for construction of 

a new school building on certain real property it owns immediately to the north of the Property; and 
 
WHEREAS, in order to ensure safe and adequate access to the new school, once constructed, 

certain infrastructure and improvements must be made to various areas surrounding the Property, 
including portions of the Property itself; and  

 
WHEREAS, among the improvements needed is the realignment of existing Farm Road 107 and 

the construction of a new intersection at the realigned Farm Road 107 and U.S. Highway 60, which will 
require right-of-way access to a portion of the Property; and  

 
WHEREAS, the School District has agreed to convey its interest in approximately 0.86 acres of its 

land to Drury in exchange for Drury’s agreement to grant the City right-of-way access to the affected 
portion of the Property; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City wishes to enter into an Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) with Drury and 

the School District in order to set forth the terms and conditions under which the parties will grant the 
necessary access, complete the applicable construction and improvements and subsequently dedicate the 
agreed upon right-of-way and public street infrastructure; and   
 

WHEREAS, the Council finds it in the best interest of the City to approve of the IGA with Drury 
and the School District, as it will help to advance the priority of ensuring safe, adequate access to and 
from the new intermediate school at the impacted location. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF REPUBLIC, MISSOURI, 
AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1: The Mayor, on behalf of the City, is authorized to enter into an Intergovernmental 
Agreement with Republic R-III School District and Drury Properties, Inc. setting 
forth the terms and conditions under which the parties will grant the necessary 
access, complete the applicable construction and improvements and 
subsequently dedicate the agreed upon right-of-way and public street 
infrastructure, to be in substantially the same form as that attached to this 
Ordinance as “Attachment 1.”    

 

87

Item 6.



BILL NO. 24-16  ORDINANCE NO. 24- 
 

BILL NO. 24-16 2 ORDINANCE NO. 24- 

Section 2: The Mayor and/or the City Administrator, on behalf of the City, is authorized to 
take the necessary steps to execute this Ordinance.  

 
Section 3: The WHEREAS clauses above are specifically incorporated herein by reference. 
  
Section 4:  The provisions of this Ordinance are severable, and if any provisions hereof are 

declared invalid, unconstitutional, or unenforceable, such determination shall not 
affect the validity of the remainder of this Ordinance.  

 
Section 5: This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage as 

provided by law. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Republic, Missouri, 
this __________ day of __________________, 2024. 
 
 
      __________________________________________ 
Attest:        Matt Russell, Mayor  
 
 
____________________________________ 
Laura Burbridge, City Clerk 
 
 
Approved as to Form:   

 
Megan McCullough, City Attorney  

 

Final Passage and Vote: 

 

88

Item 6.



1 
HB: 4865-8624-8343.4 

LAND EXCHANGE AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

This Land Exchange and Development Agreement (“Agreement”) is entered into 2 

April 2024, by and among the City of Republic, Missouri, a municipal corporation and Charter 

City located in Greene County, Missouri, being duly organized and existing under the laws of the 

State of Missouri (“City”), the Greene County Reorganized School District No. 3, a public school 

district and political subdivision of the State of Missouri, also known as the Republic School 

District (“District”), and Drury Properties, Inc., a Missouri corporation (“Drury”). City, District, 

and Drury may be referred to together as “the Parties.” 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, Drury currently owns the improved real property located at 5905 U.S. Hwy 

60 near the intersection of existing Farm Road 107 and U.S. Highway 60 in Republic, Missouri, 

as shown on Exhibit A hereto (the “Drury Property I”); and 

WHEREAS, Drury currently owns the improved real property located at 5745 U.S. 

Highway 60 in Republic, Missouri, as shown on Exhibit B hereto (the “Drury Property II”); and 

WHEREAS, District currently owns the unimproved real property adjacent to and north 

of the Drury Property I (the “District Property”) and District is planning for construction of a new 

school building on the District Property; and 

WHEREAS, The Missouri Highways and Transportation Commission (“MHTC”) owns 

and maintains U.S. Highway 60 as a limited access highway, and as a cooperative endeavor with 

City, District and Drury, MHTC has acknowledged a need for a break in access in U.S. Highway 

60 for a realigned Farm Road 107 on U.S. Highway 60; and 

WHEREAS, in order to ensure safe and adequate access to the new school, once 

constructed, certain infrastructure and other improvements must be made to various areas 

surrounding the Drury Property I, including portions of the Drury Property I itself; and 

WHEREAS, among those necessary improvements is the realignment of existing Farm 

Road 107 and the construction of a new intersection at the realigned Farm Road 107 and U.S. 

Highway 60, which will require right-of-way access to a portion of the Drury Property I; and 

WHEREAS, the District has agreed to convey to Drury approximately 0.86 acres (37,735 

square feet) of land located immediately to the north of the Drury Property I, as described on 

Exhibit C), in exchange for Drury conveying to the City a portion of the Drury Property I 

consisting of approximately 0.6 acres, as described on Exhibit D; and 

WHEREAS, in exchange for good and valuable consideration, the sufficiency of which is 

acknowledged by the Parties, upon completion of the transfer of the aforementioned 0.86 acres of 

property from District to Drury, Drury will transfer the aforementioned 0.6 acres of property to 

the City, pursuant to the terms and conditions set forth herein. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises, conditions, and 

agreements set forth herein, the Parties mutually acknowledge and agree as follows: 

89

Item 6.



2 
HB: 4865-8624-8343.4 

1. Consideration and Terms. In exchange for Drury’s transfer to City of the fee 

simple interest in the approximately 0.6 acres of real property described on Exhibit D by the deed 

the form of which is attached as Exhibit E (the “Drury Deed”), and in exchange for District’s 

transfer to Drury of the 0.86 acres of real property described on Exhibit C by the deed the form of 

which is attached as Exhibit F (the “District Deed”), each such exhibit expressly incorporated as 

though fully set forth at length in this Agreement, the Parties agree to the following terms: 

a) Construction of the new/realigned Farm Road 107 may commence upon 

recordation of the District Deed, or, alternatively, upon recordation of the 

of the Drury Deed. 

b) The Parties agree that the current access to U.S. Highway 60 from the Drury 

Property I will remain intact and unencumbered until such time as the 

alternate access points outlined in this Agreement are constructed. Further, 

access to the improvements currently located at the Drury Property I, 

including the building and parking spaces/areas, will remain intact and 

unencumbered until such time as the alternate access points are provided. 

Until that time, access to the building located at the Drury Property I will 

be unimpeded, as will all parking spaces, including those existing parking 

areas to the south and east of the building. 

c) To the extent fencing on the Property must be removed or altered in 

connection with construction of the new/realigned Farm Road 107, Drury, 

at the cost and expense of City, shall be entitled to replacement/repair of 

such fencing in an agreeable configuration, for the purpose of securing the 

business that currently operates from the building on the Drury Property I. 

d) The Parties recognize that Drury shall have the right to immediate use of 

the property deeded to Drury by District, upon completion of such transfer. 

e) Access points: 

i. Drury shall have full ingress to and egress from the Drury Property 

I along the newly constructed/realigned Farm Road 107, at 300 feet 

from the centerline of U.S. Highway 60. Drury recognizes and 

acknowledges that MHTC intends to construct a fully signalized 

intersection at U.S. Highway 60 and the newly 

constructed/realigned Farm Road 107 during the year 2027, at which 

time Drury’s access may become inherently or in fact restricted to 

right in, right out access, which shall not in any way constitute a 

breach of this Agreement. 

ii. Drury shall have secondary full access in an agreeable location to 

the north of the Drury Property I to service the Drury Property I from 

the portion of Farm Road 107 that is being constructed. The 

construction of such secondary full access will be at no cost or 

expense to Drury, but shall rather be fully paid for by City. The 

90

Item 6.



3 
HB: 4865-8624-8343.4 

rights of Drury granted under this provision may, at Drury’s option, 

be recorded in the form of a memorandum set forth as Exhibit G. 

iii. Drury and City acknowledge that both access points referenced 

above will be constructed to the new right-of-way line from the 

roadway, and further that if additional grading is needed beyond 

those right-of-way lines to service the Drury Property I, such work 

shall be provided in conjunction with the project. 

iv. Drury acknowledges that MHTC intends to provide access to the 

Drury Property II at the nearest lane of U.S. Highway 60 (to be a 

shared access with the property located at 5731 U.S. Highway 60) 

(the “Drury Property II Access”). City and District will cooperate 

with Drury to ensure MHTC provides such access. The Drury 

Property II Access will be located at or near the existing access 

located at the eastern property line of Drury Property II.  Drury 

acknowledges that a traffic study may be required at or prior to the 

time of development of the Drury Property II, depending upon the 

use(s) and development plan of the Drury Property II. City and 

District will cooperate with Drury to obtain MHTC’s 

acknowledgement that the results of such traffic study will require 

an expansion of the current access to U.S. Highway 60 at the 

property located at 5731 U.S. Highway 60. The rights of Drury 

granted under this provision may, at Drury’s option, be recorded in 

the form of a memorandum set forth as Exhibit G. 

v. At no cost to Drury, an additional access to the Drury Property II 

shall be provided along a future backage road extension of Farm 

Road 107, in conjunction with development of the Drury Property 

II, 5731 U.S. Highway 60, or the development of the City-owned 

parcel located to the north, provided that funds for such access are 

available to City and approved by the City Council. The access 

referenced in this sub-paragraph is expressly contingent upon 

availability of funds and approval by City Council of the specified 

uses for those funds. The rights of Drury granted under this 

provision may, at Drury’s option, be recorded in the form of a 

memorandum set forth as Exhibit G. 

f) The City agrees to install (1) a waterline extension along the northern 

property line to the northwest comer of the Drury Property I with a flush 

hydrant for future development; (2) a flush hydrant on the existing main 

located along the eastern property line of the Drury Property I; and (3) a 

fiber optics cable along the northern property line to the northwest comer of 

the Drury Property I. The Parties acknowledge and agree that this work is 

considered ancillary to the road construction referenced herein and 

District’s installation of waterline and fiber optics to service the new school 

building on the District Property. 

91

Item 6.



4 
HB: 4865-8624-8343.4 

g) It is understood and agreed by the Parties that City’s agreements contained 

herein regarding infrastructure and other improvements to various areas 

surrounding the Drury Property I to provide access to the District Property 

serves as consideration for District’s transfer of the portion of the District 

Property described in Exhibit C to Drury. The Parties further understand 

and agree that if Drury transferred the real property described in Exhibit D 

to District, that District would then immediately transfer the same to City 

as consideration for City’s agreements contained herein, and that the direct 

transfer to City from Drury is being done as a matter of convenience for the 

Parties. 

h) Closing of the transfers (the “Closing”) under the Drury Deed and the 

District Deed will be completed at Hogan Land Title (1605 E Sunshine, 

Springfield, MO 65804), on or about 1 May 2024; provided, however, the 

Parties acknowledge and agree that as a condition precedent to any Party’s 

obligation to commence and complete the Closing, MHTC and the Parties 

shall have executed a memorandum of understanding setting forth the 

Parties’ and MHTC’s understandings as to the matters concerning MHTC 

described in this Agreement. Each of Drury and City shall be responsible 

for their own costs of inspection, title review, recording, legal expenses and 

any other cost associated with the transfer of the respective real property. 

2. Terms of Real Property Transfer.  The following terms shall govern the transfers 

under the Drury Deed and the City Deed: 

a) The real property described in Exhibits C and D are being conveyed and 

accepted “as is” without any warranty as to title or condition. 

b) Drury represents and warrants that it is the fee simple owner of the 

approximately 0.6 acres of real property described on Exhibit D and has the 

full capacity, right, power, and authority to transfer the same to City. 

c) District represents and warrants that it is the fee simple owner of the 0.86 

acres of real property described on Exhibit C and has the full capacity, right, 

power, and authority to transfer the same to Drury. 

d) District and Drury each represent that: 

i. It has not, and will not prior to the Closing, encumber, pledge, assign 

to interest in, or enter into any obligation or lease or rental agreement 

with respect to the real property it is transferring without the prior 

written consent of the other Party, which consent shall not be 

unreasonably withheld. 

ii. It has not, and will not prior to the Closing, make any alteration to 

the physical condition of its respective real property being 

transferred without the prior written consent of the other party, 

which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld. 

92

Item 6.



5 
HB: 4865-8624-8343.4 

iii. All valid bills and claims for labor and services furnished to or for 

the benefit of the respective real property being transferred and for 

any period prior to the Closing shall be paid in full by the Closing.   

iv. To the best of the party’s knowledge, there is no claim, suit, action, 

arbitration, legal, or other proceeding, or governmental investigation 

pending which affects its respective real property being transferred 

and none are threatened of which the party has knowledge or should 

have knowledge. 

v. The representations, warranties, covenants, and agreements 

contained in this Agreement shall survive Closing and the delivery 

of the deeds, without limitation. 

3. Public Entity Immunity. The City and District preserve all immunities, sovereign, 

governmental and otherwise, recognized by law. Nothing in this Agreement or any transactions 

under this Agreement shall be construed or deemed in any way as a waiver by the City or District 

of sovereign immunity or governmental immunity recognized under common law, state law, 

ordinances, regulations, the Missouri Constitution, or the United States Constitution, including but 

not limited to§ 537.600 RSMo., et seq. 

4. Law and Venue. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of 

Missouri. Any lawsuit, claim, or other action filed by or against one or both of the Parties to this 

Agreement relating in any way to the interpretation of this Agreement or to the exercise of rights 

and/or duties under this Agreement, shall have proper venue solely in the Circuit Court of Greene 

County, Missouri, 

5. Assignment.  No party may assign their rights or obligations under this Agreement 

without the prior written consent of the other party.  Except, the right of Drury under this 

Agreement as recorded in the land records of Greene County shall attach to and be conveyed to 

any subsequent owner of the Drury Property I or Drury Property II. 

6. Severability. A determination by a court of competent jurisdiction that any clause, 

sentence, paragraph, section, or part of this Agreement is unconstitutional, invalid or otherwise 

unenforceable shall not affect in any way the validity or enforceability of the remaining clauses, 

sentences, paragraphs, sections or parts of this Agreement. 

7. Entire Understanding. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between 

the Parties hereto and there are no other understandings, written or oral, relating to the subject 

matter hereof, and may not be changed, modified or amended, in whole or in part, except in writing 

signed by the Parties. 

8. Headings. The headings formatted in bold herein are merely for purposes of 

convenience and reference only, and do not constitute material terms of this Agreement. 

9. Incorporation of Whereas Clauses. The “WHEREAS” clauses in this Agreement 

above are incorporated into this paragraph by reference as though fully set forth at length herein 

and form a material part of this Agreement. 

93

Item 6.



6 
HB: 4865-8624-8343.4 

10. Notice.  All notices and requests required or authorized under this Agreement will 

be given in writing either (i) by personal delivery, or (ii) by commercial courier service, or (iii) by 

electronic mail in “portable document format” (“.pdf”), with delivery being completed on actual 

delivery occurring or delivery receipt being received by the sender, directed to the respective 

addresses of the Parties described below, with the date on which any such notice is received by the 

addressee being deemed the date of notice (and with each Party waiving any claim of failure to 

provide notice if provided in any other manner in the event notice is actually received): 

If to City: City of Republic 

Attn: Karen Haynes 

204 N. Main Avenue 

Republic, MO 65738 

Email: khaynes@republicmo.com  

  

If to District: Republic School District 

Attn: Superintendent 

636 N. Main Avenue 

Republic, MO 65738 

Email: Matt.Pearce@republicschools.org  

  

If to Drury: Drury Properties, Inc. 

C/O RMMC CPAs 

4035 S. Fremont Avenue 

Springfield, MO 65804 

Email: mitch@druryproperties.com  

  

 With a copy to (such copy not to constitute notice): 

  

 Husch Blackwell LLP 

Attn: Michael A. Cosby 

3810 E. Sunshine, Suite 300 

Springfield, MO 65809 

Email: michael.cosby@huschblackwell.com   

  

 

  

94

Item 6.

mailto:khaynes@republicmo.com
mailto:Matt.Pearce@republicschools.org
mailto:mitch@druryproperties.com
mailto:michael.cosby@huschblackwell.com


7 
HB: 4865-8624-8343.4 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties caused this Land Exchange and Development 

Agreement to be executed in their respective hand and upon their behalf. 

CITY OF REPUBLIC, MISSOURI DRURY PROPERTIES, INC. 

  

  

By       By:        

 Matthew Russell, Mayor  

 Name:        

Date:         

 Title:        

ATTEST:  

 Date:        

  

       GREENE COUNTY REORGANIZED 

SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 3 

Laura Burbridge, City Clerk  

  

Date:        By:        

  

APPROVED AS TO FORM: Name:        

  

 Title:        

        

Megan McCullough, City Attorney Date:        

  

Date:        ATTEST: 
  

  

  

  

 By:        

  

 Name:        

  

 Title:        

  

 Date:        

  

 

 

  

95

Item 6.



8 
HB: 4865-8624-8343.4 

EXHIBIT A 

PROJECT LOCATION AND PROPERTY OWNERS 

DRURY PROPERTY I 

DISTRICT 

 

[TO BE PROVIDED] 

 

  

96

Item 6.



9 
HB: 4865-8624-8343.4 

EXHIBIT B 

PROJECT LOCATION AND PROPERTY OWNERS 

DRURY PROPERTY II 

 

[TO BE PROVIDED] 

 

  

97

Item 6.



10 
HB: 4865-8624-8343.4 

EXHIBIT C 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

0.86 ACRES FROM DISTRICT TO DRURY 

[TO BE PROVIDED] 

 

  

98

Item 6.



11 
HB: 4865-8624-8343.4 

EXHIBIT D 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

0.6 ACRES FROM DRURY TO CITY 

[TO BE PROVIDED] 

 

  

99

Item 6.



12 
HB: 4865-8624-8343.4 

EXHIBIT E 

FORM OF DEED 

0.6 ACRES FROM DRURY TO CITY 

[TO BE PROVIDED] 

 

 

  

100

Item 6.



13 
HB: 4865-8624-8343.4 

EXHIBIT F 

FROM OF DEED 

0.86 ACRES FROM DISTRICT TO DRURY 

[TO BE PROVIDED] 

 

  

101

Item 6.



14 
HB: 4865-8624-8343.4 

EXHIBIT G 

FORM OF MEMORANDUM 

DRURY’S RIGHTS 

[TO BE PROVIDED] 

 

 

102

Item 6.



103

Item 6.



104

Item 6.



105

Item 6.



106

Item 6.



107

Item 6.



1 
HB: 4873-1230-0466.1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

________________________________________________________________________ 

SPACE ABOVE THIS LINE IS FOR RECORDER’S USE ONLY 

 

TITLE OF DOCUMENT: GENERAL WARRANTY DEED 

 

DATE OF DOCUMENT: 1 May 2024 

 

GRANTOR:   DRURY PROPERTIES, INC. 

 

GRANTOR’S ADDRESS: C/O RMMC CPAs 

4035 S. Fremont Avenue 

Springfield, MO 65804     

 

GRANTEE:    THE CITY OF REPUBLIC, MISSOURI 

 

GRANTEE’S ADDRESS: 204 N. Main Avenue 

Republic, MO 65738 

 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: Page 2 

 

 

This cover page is attached solely for the purpose of complying with the requirements stated in 

Sections 59.310.2, RSMo of the Missouri Recording Act.  The information provided on this cover 

page shall not be construed as either modifying or supplementing the substantive provisions of the 

attached General Warranty Deed.  In the event of a conflict between the provisions of the attached 

General Warranty Deed and the provisions of this cover page, the attached General Warranty 

Deed shall prevail and control. 

 

  

108

Item 6.



2 
HB: 4873-1230-0466.1 

GENERAL WARRANTY DEED 

 

THIS INDENTURE, effective as of 1 May 2024, is made by and between the Greene Drury 

Properties, Inc., a Missouri corporation, having its principal offices at 4035 S. Fremont Avenue, 

Springfield, MO 65804 (“Grantor”), and The City of Republic, Missouri, a Missouri Political 

Subdivision, having its principal offices at 204 N. Main Avenue, Republic, MO 65738 

(“Grantee”). 

 

WITNESSETH, that Grantor, in consideration of the sum of Ten Dollars and Zero Cents 

($ 10.00), to it paid by Grantee, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, 

does by these presents grant, bargain, and sell, convey, and confirm, unto Grantee, its successors 

and assigns, the following-described lots, tracts, or parcels of land lying, being, and situate in the 

County of Greene, and State of Missouri (the "Property"): 

 

A Variable Width Right-of-Way being a part of the Northeast Quarter (NE¼) of the 

Southeast Quarter (SE¼) and part of the Southeast Quarter (SE¼) of the Southeast Quarter 

(SE¼) of Section 2, Township 28 North, Range 23 West, in the City of Republic, Greene 

County, Missouri, being a part of the tract of land recorded in the Greene County Recorder's 

Office in Book 2008 at Page 021115-08, more particularly described as follows: 

 

COMMENCING at the Northeast corner of said SE¼; thence S01°45'20"W, along the East 

line of said NE¼ of the SE¼, a distance of 1,237.75 feet for a POINT OF BEGINNING; 

thence continuing S01 °45'20"W, along said East line, a distance of 29.31 feet to a point 

on the North right-of-way line of US Highway 60, as it now exists; thence S59°03'56"W, 

along said North right-of-way line, a distance of 41.41 feet; thence S57°27'40"W, along 

said North right-of-way line, a distance of 279.80 feet; thence N32°27'28"W, a distance of 

133.93 feet to a point on the South line of said NE¼ of the SE¼; thence S88°47'14"E, along 

said South line, a distance of 45.19 feet; thence N03°10'27"E, a distance of 58.97 feet; 

thence N88°15'59"E, a distance of 69.42 feet; thence N05°36'42"E, a distance of 29.66 

feet; thence S32°30'27"E, a distance of 78.17 feet; thence N85°30'36"E, a distance of 92.02 

feet; thence N57°26'49"E, a distance of 106.41 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING. 

 

Containing 25,777 square feet (0.592 acres), more or less, and subject to any rights-of-way, 

easements, and restrictions of record.    

 

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD, the described premises, with all and singular the rights, 

privileges, appurtenances, and immunities thereto belonging or in anywise appertaining, unto 

Grantee and unto its successors and assigns forever, Grantor hereby covenanting: that it is lawfully 

seized of an indefeasible estate in fee in the premises herein conveyed; that it has good right to 

convey the same; that the premises are free and clear from any encumbrance done or suffered by 

it or those under whom it claims except as set forth herein; and, that Grantor will warrant and 

defend the title of the premises unto Grantee and unto its successors and assigns forever, against 

the lawful claims and demands of all persons,  

 

 

109

Item 6.



3 
HB: 4873-1230-0466.1 

SUBJECT TO: all easements, restrictions, reservations, and other agreements and matters 

of record, if any; taxes and assessments, general and special, not now due and payable; and, the 

rights of the public in and to the parts thereof in streets, roads, or alleys. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Grantor has caused these presents to be signed as of the day 

and year first above written. 

 

 

BY GRANTOR: 

 

DRURY PROPERTIES, INC. 

 

 

 

By:         

Mitchell Drury, Vice President 

 

 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

 

STATE OF MISSOURI  ) 

) ss 

COUNTY OF GREENE   ) 

 

On  ____ Apil 2024, before me appeared Mitchell Drury, personally known to me, who 

being by me duly sworn, did say that he is the Vice President of the Drury Properties Inc., and that 

the foregoing instrument was signed on behalf of Drury Properties Inc., and that he acknowledged 

said instrument to be the free act and deed of Drury Properties Inc., and that it was executed for 

the consideration stated therein and no other. 

 

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal in 

the county and state aforesaid the day and year written above. 

 

 

 

 

       

Notary Public 

Name:        

 

 

 

 

My Commission Expires:     

110

Item 6.



1 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

________________________________________________________________________ 

SPACE ABOVE THIS LINE IS FOR RECORDER’S USE ONLY 

 

TITLE OF DOCUMENT: GENERAL WARRANTY DEED 

 

DATE OF DOCUMENT: 1 May 2024 

 

GRANTOR:   GREENE COUNTY REORGANIZED  

SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 3 

(REPUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT) 

 

GRANTOR’S ADDRESS: 636 N. Main Avenue 

Republic, MO 65738     

 

GRANTEE:    DRURY PROPERTIES, INC. 

 

GRANTEE’S ADDRESS: C/O RMMC CPAs 

4035 S. Fremont Avenue 

Springfield, MO 65804 

 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: Page 2 

 

 

This cover page is attached solely for the purpose of complying with the requirements stated in 

Sections 59.310.2, RSMo of the Missouri Recording Act.  The information provided on this cover 

page shall not be construed as either modifying or supplementing the substantive provisions of the 

attached General Warranty Deed.  In the event of a conflict between the provisions of the attached 

General Warranty Deed and the provisions of this cover page, the attached General Warranty 

Deed shall prevail and control. 

 

  

111

Item 6.



2 
 

GENERAL WARRANTY DEED 

 

THIS INDENTURE, effective as of the 1st day of May, 2024, is made by and between the 

Greene County Reorganized School District No. 3, also known as the Republic School District, a 

public school district and political subdivision of the State of Missouri, having its principal offices 

at 636 N. Main Avenue, Republic, MO 65738 (“Grantor”), and Drury Properties, Inc., a 

corporation registered in the State of Missouri, having its principal offices at 1788 County Road 

347, Jackson, MO 63755 (“Grantee”). 

 

WITNESSETH, that Grantor, in consideration of the sum of Ten Dollars and Zero Cents 

($ 10.00), to it paid by Grantee, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, 

does by these presents grant, bargain, and sell, convey, and confirm, unto Grantee, its successors 

and assigns, the following-described lots, tracts, or parcels of land lying, being, and situate in the 

County of Greene, and State of Missouri (the "Property"): 

 

A tract of land being a part of the Northeast Quarter (NE¼) of the Southeast Quarter 

(SE¼) of Section 2, Township 28 North, Range 23 West, in the City of Republic, Greene 

County, Missouri, being a part of the tract of land recorded in the Greene County 

Recorder’s Office in Book 2022 at Page 050613-22, more particularly described as 

follows: 

 

COMMENCING at the Northeast corner of said SE¼; thence S01º45’20”W, along the 

East line of said NE¼ of the SE¼, a distance of 765.47 feet for a POINT OF 

BEGINNING; thence continuing S01º45’20”W, along said East line, a distance of 196.82 

feet; thence S84º57’06”W, a distance of 207.57 feet; thence S05º36’42”W, a distance of 

256.83 feet; thence N32º30’27”W, a distance of 257.93 feet; thence N12º29’33”E, a 

distance of 14.14 feet; thence N57º29’33”E, a distance of 71.57 feet; thence along a 

tangent curve to the right having a radius of 117.0 feet, an arc length of 69.97 feet, a 

central angle of 34º15’47” and a chord distance of 68.93 feet which bears N74º37’26”E; 

thence S88º14’40”E, a distance of 50.94 feet; thence along a tangent curve to the left 

having a radius of 190.00 feet, an arc length of 298.45 feet, a central angle of 90º00’00” 

and a chord distance of 268.70 feet which bears N46º45’20”E to the POINT OF 

BEGINNING.     

 

Containing 37,737 square feet (0.866 acres), more or less, and subject to any rights-of-

way, easements, and restrictions of record.    

 

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD, the described premises, with all and singular the rights, 

privileges, appurtenances, and immunities thereto belonging or in anywise appertaining, unto 

Grantee and unto its successors and assigns forever, Grantor hereby covenanting: that it is lawfully 

seized of an indefeasible estate in fee in the premises herein conveyed; that it has good right to 

convey the same; that the premises are free and clear from any encumbrance done or suffered by 

it or those under whom it claims except as set forth herein; and, that Grantor will warrant and 

defend the title of the premises unto Grantee and unto its successors and assigns forever, against 

the lawful claims and demands of all persons,  

 

112

Item 6.



3 
 

 

SUBJECT TO: all easements, restrictions, reservations, and other agreements and matters 

of record, if any; taxes and assessments, general and special, not now due and payable; and, the 

rights of the public in and to the parts thereof in streets, roads, or alleys. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Grantor has caused these presents to be signed as of the day 

and year first above written. 

 

 

BY GRANTOR: 

 

GREENE COUNTY REORGANIZED SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 3 

 

 

 

By: ______________________________  Print: ________________________ 

President, Board of Education 

 

 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

 

STATE OF MISSOURI  ) 

) ss 

COUNTY OF GREENE   ) 

 

On this ____ day of ___________, 2024, before me appeared _______________________, 

personally known to me, who being by me duly sworn, did say that he/she is the President of the 

Board of Education of the Greene County Reorganized School District No. 3, and that the 

foregoing instrument was signed and sealed on behalf of said District, and that he/she 

acknowledged said instrument to be the free act and deed of said District, and that it was executed 

for the consideration stated therein and no other. 

 

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal in 

the county and state aforesaid the day and year written above. 

 

 

 

 

____________________________ 

Notary Public 

Name:        

 

 

 

 

My Commission Expires: _________________________ 

113

Item 6.



Error! Unknown document property name. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

COVER PAGE 

 

MEMORANDUM OF FUTURE LAND RIGHTS 

 

 

Date:  __ April 2024 

 

Grantors: THE CITY OF REPUBLIC, MISSOURI 

  THE MISSOURI HIGHWAYS AND TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 

 

Grantee: DRURY PROPERTIES, INC. 

 

Grantee’s Address: C/O RMMC CPAs 

4035 S. Fremont Avenue 

Springfield, MO 65804 

 

Legal Descriptions: As set forth on Exhibit A. 

 

This cover page is attached solely for the purpose of complying with the requirements stated in §§ 

59.310.2; 59.313.2 RSMo 2001 of the Missouri Recording Act.  The information provided on this 

cover page shall not be construed as either modifying or supplementing the substantive provisions of 

the attached Memorandum of Future Land Rights.  In the event of a conflict between the provisions 

of the attached Memorandum of Memorandum of Future Land Rights and the provisions of this 

cover page, the attached Memorandum of Memorandum of Future Land Rights shall prevail and 

control. 

114

Item 6.



Error! Unknown document property name. 

 MEMORANDUM OF FUTURE LAND RIGHTS 

 

THIS MEMORANDUM OF FUTURE LAND RIGHTS (this “Memorandum”) is made 

and entered into as of __ April 2024, by and among the City of Republic, Missouri, a municipal 

corporation and Charter City located in Greene County, Missouri, (“City”), The Missouri 

Highways and Transportation Commission (“MHTC”) and Drury Properties, Inc., a Missouri 

corporation (“Drury”). 

 

 RECITALS: 

 

A. Dury is the owner of those certain parcel of real estate located at 5905 U.S. Hwy 

60, Republic, Greene County, Missouri (“Drury Property I”) and located at 5745 U.S. Highway 

60 in Republic, Greene County, Missouri (“Drury Property II”) each of which is legally described 

on the attached Exhibit A. 

 

B. Drury and City, together with other parties entered into a Land Exchange and 

Development Agreement dated 2 April 2024, which agreement contained certain obligations of 

City and rights of Dury impacting Drury Property I (the “Drury Property I Rights”). 

 

C. Drury, City and MHTC, together with other parties entered into a Memorandum 

of Understanding dated __ April 2024, which contained MHTC’s acknowledgment regarding 

certain ingress and egress right of Drury impacting Drury Property II (the “Drury Property II 

Rights”). 

 

D. By this Memorandum, the parties desire to provide notice of the Drury Property I 

Rights and the Drury Property II Rights. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, City, MHTC and Drury hereby give notice as follows: 

 

1. Drury shall have secondary full access in an agreeable location to the north of the 

Drury Property I to service the Drury Property I from the portion of the new Farm Road 107 that 

will be constructed. The construction of such secondary full access will be at no cost or expense 

to Drury, but shall rather be fully paid for by City. 

 

2. MHTC intends to provide access to the Drury Property II at the nearest lane of 

U.S. Highway 60 (to be a shared access with the property located at 5731 U.S. Highway 60) (the 

“Drury Property II Access”). City will cooperate with Drury to ensure MHTC provides such 

access. The Drury Property II Access will be located at or near the existing access located at the 

eastern property line of Drury Property II.  Drury acknowledges that a traffic study may be 

required at or prior to the time of development of the Drury Property II, depending upon the 

use(s) and development plan of the Drury Property II.  

 

3. At no cost to Drury, an additional access to the Drury Property II shall be provided 

along a future backage road extension of the new Farm Road 107, in conjunction with 

development of the Drury Property II, 5731 U.S. Highway 60, or the development of the City-

115

Item 6.



Error! Unknown document property name. 

owned parcel located to the north, provided that funds for such access are available to City and 

approved by the City Council. The access referenced in this sub-paragraph is expressly 

contingent upon availability of funds and approval by City Council of the specified uses for those 

funds. 

 

4. This Memorandum is not a complete summary of the parties agreements.  This 

Memorandum shall in no way modify, supplement or abridge the separate agreements and 

understanding of the parties, which shall be fully binding upon the parties.   

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have caused this Memorandum of Future 

Land Rights to be duly executed as of the day and year first above written. 

 
CITY OF REPUBLIC, MISSOURI DRURY PROPERTIES, INC. 
  
  
By:        By:        
Matthew Russell, Mayor Mitchell Drury, Vice-President 
  
ATTEST:  
  
  
       MISSOURI HIGHWAYS AND  
Laura Burbridge, City Clerk TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
  
APPROVED AS TO FORM:  
 By:        
 Stacey Reese, District Engineer 
        
Megan McCullough, City Attorney  
  
  
 
STATE OF MISSOURI  ) 

) ss. 
COUNTY OF ________________ ) 
 

On __ April 2024, before me personally appeared Matthew Russell, to me personally 
known, who, being by me duly sworn, did say that he is the Mayor of The City of Republic, 
Missouri, and that the foregoing instrument was signed on behalf of The City of Republic, 
Missouri, by authority of its City Councils; and Matthew Russell acknowledged said instrument 
to be the free act and deed of The City of Republic, Missouri,. 
 

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal 
in the County and State aforesaid, the day and year first above written. 
 

My term expires:           
        Notary Public 
              
       Printed Name 

116

Item 6.



Error! Unknown document property name. 

 
STATE OF MISSOURI  ) 

) ss. 
COUNTY OF ________________ ) 
 

On __ April 2024, before me personally appeared Mitchell Drury, to me personally 
known, who, being by me duly sworn, did say that he is the Vice President of Drury Properties, 
Inc., and that the foregoing instrument was signed on behalf of Drury Properties, Inc., by 
authority of its shareholders and directors; and Mitchell Drury acknowledged said instrument to 
be the free act and deed of Drury Propertied, Inc. 
 

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal 
in the County and State aforesaid, the day and year first above written. 
 

My term expires:           
        Notary Public 
              
       Printed Name 
STATE OF MISSOURI  ) 

) ss. 
COUNTY OF ________________ ) 
 

On __ April 2024, before me personally appeared Stacey Reese, to me personally known, 
who, being by me duly sworn, did say that she is the Missouri Highways and Transportation 
Commission, and that the foregoing instrument was signed on behalf of Missouri Highways and 
Transportation Commission, by authority of the State of Missouri; and Stacey Reese 
acknowledged said instrument to be the free act and deed of Missouri Highways and 
Transportation Commission. 
 

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal 
in the County and State aforesaid, the day and year first above written. 
 

My term expires:           
        Notary Public 
              
       Printed Name 

  

117

Item 6.



Error! Unknown document property name. 

 EXHIBIT A 

 

DRURY PROPERTY I 

 

[LEGAL DESCRIPTION TO BE PROVIDED] 

 

 

DRURY PROPERTY II 

 

[LEGAL DESCRIPTION TO BE PROVIDED] 

 

 

 

 

118

Item 6.



 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM ANALYSIS 
 

Project/Issue Name: 24-17 An Ordinance of the City Council Authorizing the Mayor to 
Execute an Intergovernmental Agreement with the Missouri Highways 
and Transportation Commission and Drury Properties Inc. for Right of 
Way Access and Other Related Obligations as part of the New Republic 
Intermediate School Project. 

Submitted By: Karen Haynes, Planning Manager – Community Development 

Date: April 2, 2024 
 

 

Issue Statement 

Agreement to secure ROW and access for a Public Street to serve the new Republic Middle School. 

 

Discussion and/or Analysis 

This agreement formalizes the conditions for which access and improvements will be made for access to 

the Republic Middle School at FR 107 and US Highway 60.  The property owner who is providing ROW in 

exchange for like square footage from the school will have access changes as per MODOT standards and 

this agreement formalizes the conditions for all parties. 

This is one of two IGA’s executed for improvements and access along Highway 60.  The access point 

identified as a future signalized intersection as part of the 2027 6 lane expansion of Highway 60 will have 

all the necessary right-of-way (ROW) for a fully expanded intersection.  The ROW will be dedicated to the 

city for public street access and the city will provide ROW to MODOT as needed for the improvements for 

2027. 

 

Recommended Action 

Staff recommends approval. 

119

Item 7.



BILL NO. 24-17  ORDINANCE NO. 24- 
 

BILL NO. 24-17 1 ORDINANCE NO. 24- 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE AN 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT WITH THE MISSOURI HIGHWAYS AND 

TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION AND DRURY PROPERTIES INC. FOR RIGHT OF WAY 
ACCESS AND OTHER RELATED OBLIGATIONS AS PART OF THE NEW REPUBLIC 

INTERMEDIATE SCHOOL PROJECT 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Republic, Missouri, (“City” and/or “Republic”) is a municipal 
corporation and Charter City located in Greene County, Missouri, being duly created, organized, 
and existing under the laws of the State of Missouri; and, 

 
WHEREAS, Drury Properties, Inc. (“Drury”) currently owns approximately 2.12 acres of 

improved real property located near the intersection of existing Farm Road 107 and U.S. Highway 
60 in Republic (the “Property”); and 

 
WHEREAS, the Missouri Highways And Transportation Commission (“MHTC”) is currently 

planning for expansion of U.S. Highway 60 to six lanes near the location of the future Republic 
Intermediate School Property; and 

 
WHEREAS, among the improvements needed is the realignment of existing Farm Road 

107 and the construction of a new intersection at the realigned Farm Road 107 and U.S. Highway 
60, which will require right-of-way access to a portion of the Property; and  

 
WHEREAS, among the improvements needed is the realignment of existing Farm Road 

107 and the construction of a new intersection at the realigned Farm Road 107 and U.S. Highway 
60, which will require right-of-way access to a portion of the Property; and  

 
WHEREAS, the School District has agreed to convey its interest in approximately 0.86 

acres of its land to Drury in exchange for Drury’s agreement to grant the City right-of-way access 
to the affected portion of the Property; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City will then provide the necessary right-of-way to the Missouri 

Department of Transportation as needed for the improvements in or around 2027; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City wishes to enter into an Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) with 

Drury, the School District, and MHTC in order to set forth the terms and conditions under which 
the parties will grant the necessary access, complete the applicable construction and 
improvements and subsequently dedicate the agreed upon right-of-way and public street 
infrastructure; and   
 

WHEREAS, the Council finds it in the best interest of the City to approve of the IGA with 
Drury, the School District and MHTC, as it will help to advance the priority of ensuring safe, 
adequate access to and from the new intermediate school at the impacted location. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
REPUBLIC, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1: The Mayor, on behalf of the City, is authorized to enter into an 
Intergovernmental Agreement with Republic R-III School District, Drury 
Properties, Inc., and the Missouri Highways and Transportation 
Commission setting forth the terms and conditions under which the parties 
will grant the necessary access, complete the applicable construction and 

120

Item 7.



BILL NO. 24-17  ORDINANCE NO. 24- 
 

BILL NO. 24-17 2 ORDINANCE NO. 24- 

improvements and subsequently dedicate the agreed upon right-of-way 
and public street infrastructure, to be in substantially the same form as that 
attached to this Ordinance as “Attachment 1.”    

 
Section 2: The Mayor and/or the City Administrator, on behalf of the City, is authorized 

to take the necessary steps to execute this Ordinance.  
 
Section 3: The WHEREAS clauses above are specifically incorporated herein by 

reference. 
  
Section 4:  The provisions of this Ordinance are severable, and if any provisions hereof 

are declared invalid, unconstitutional, or unenforceable, such 
determination shall not affect the validity of the remainder of this Ordinance.  

 
Section 5: This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage 

as provided by law. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of 
Republic, Missouri, this __________ day of __________________, 2024. 
 
 
     
 __________________________________________ 
Attest:        Matt Russell, Mayor  
 
 
____________________________________ 
Laura Burbridge, City Clerk 
 
 
Approved as to Form:   

 
Megan McCullough, City Attorney  

 

Final Passage and Vote: 

 

 

121

Item 7.



 

 
 
 
 
  

 

 

3025 East Kearney Street 
P.O. Box 868 
Springfield, Missouri 65801  
417.895.7600 
Fax: 417.895.7637 
1.888.ASK MODOT (275.6636) 

Missouri Department of Transportation 
 

Our mission is to provide a world-class transportation system that is safe, 
innovative, reliable and dedicated to a prosperous Missouri. 

www.modot.org 

 
TO:  CITY OF REPUBLIC 
  REPUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT 
  DRURY PROPERTIES, INC 
 
FROM:  Stacy Reese 
  District Engineer 
  
DATE:  March 18, 2024 
 
SUBJECT: Missouri Highways and Transportation Commission 
  US 60 at FR 107, near Station 273+10 
  Greene County  
  Memorandum of Understanding 
 
 
US 60 is owned and maintained by the Missouri Highways and Transportation Commission 
(MHTC) as a limited access highway. In cooperation with the City of Republic (City), the Republic 
School District (School District), and Drury Properties (Drury), a break in access will be needed 
for a new alignment of FR 107 on US 60 near Station 273+10.  
 
Drury owns the property on the north side of US 60 at Station 273+10. The School District is 
working to build an interim right-in, right-out access road near Station 273+10 to facilitate the 
construction of a new school building which is located north of the Drury property. The location of 
the intersection on US 60 is also amiable to MHTC as the location is in agreeance to a future 
MHTC project, J8S3159, for relocating the intersection of FR 107 south of US 60. The future FR 
107, both north and south of US 60, will be a publicly accessible roadway after the public 
improvements have been built; the new public right of way will be deeded to the respective 
agencies once the final plats are filed per agency processes. For the interim right-in, right-out 
access road to be built, the current right of access entry to the Drury property will need to be 
“shifted & widened” to allow for the new right-in, right-out access. A permit from MHTC will be 
needed by Drury and the School District. Future access to the Drury property will then need to be 
provided from the new FR 107 north of US 60, to be located not more than 300’ from the existing 
centerline of US 60 and outside of what will be MHTC right of way, and secondary access will be 
provided by the City from a future backage road that will be a local public street and that generally 
parallel’s the US 60 alignment on the north side of the Drury property.   
 
Agreements will be executed between MHTC and Drury with the understanding of the following 
statements: 
 

1. MHTC, the City, and the School District, understand that the City and the School District 
does not “own” the real estate adjacent to the break in limited access location currently. 
The City and School District does not have title to the real estate. It is a dedicated public 
right-of-way per proposed plats that will be recorded once public improvements are 
completed and final plats are filed. 

 

122

Item 7.



 
 
 
 

 
 
2. MHTC, the City, the School District, and Drury understands that the initial construction of 

FR 107 north of US 60 will be performed by a private contractor and paid for by the School 
District. The School District will be responsible for the design, construction, and all costs 
associated with the project, which will include access to the property owned by Drury at 
5905 W US Highway 60 from the new FR 107 (such access to be allowed at 300 feet from 
the centerline of US Highway 60 but not closer than 300 feet (as the centerline exists as 
of date of this memorandum)). The roadways will be constructed to State or City 
specifications, where applicable, and upon completion the roadway will be accepted by 
the City northwesterly of US 60, provided the roadway meets City standards and 
specifications and as per City policies and procedures. This design will need to be 
approved by MHTC and City prior to construction and a permit will be needed before 
construction can commence. 

 
3. MHTC, the City, the School District, and Drury understands that upon completion and 

acceptance of FR 107 north of US 60 by the City northwesterly of US 60, the City will be 
responsible for the continued operation and maintenance of the road improvements on 
the public rights of way adjoining the state right of way.  

 
4. MHTC, the City, the School District and Drury understands that the property owned by 

Drury at 5745 W US Highway 60 will be provided a shared access to Highway 60 at one 
property line with adjacent property either east or west, such access will be permitted by 
MHTC and may require a Traffic Study dependent on the use and development of the 
property. The understandings of the parties reflected in this paragraph, may at the option 
of Drury, be recorded in the land records of Greene County so as to attach to the property 
owned by Drury at 5745 W US Highway 60. 

 
5. The City and the School District understand that the residential access to Highway 60 

serving 5849 US Highway 60 must be closed for the planned improvements and access 
to the school development.  The City and School District agree to provide an alternate 
access to the property with the planned improvements via the local public street backage 
road and to endeavor to remove the direct access to Highway 60. The City and School 
District agree to participate with MHTC should the securement of said access become a 
legal proceeding. MHTC agrees to allow the permitting of planned improvements for the 
School Access provided that they meet the minimum MHTC requirements and standard 
specifications.  Access may be permitted for construction but not utilized until such a time 
that the private driveway access is removed. 

 
This memorandum of understanding is needed to ensure that all parties involved with the break 
in limited access are in concurrence with the project and subsequent transfer of ownership. MHTC 
is prepared to issue a permit for the new access construction project after the agreement has 
been fully executed by the City, the School District, and Drury, and MHTC has approved the 
improvement plans.  
 
Signatures below confirm and acknowledge agreement with the memorandum of understanding.  
 
 
 
 
 

123

Item 7.



 
 
 
 

Confirmed and Acknowledged By:  
 
MISSOURI HIGHWAYS AND  
TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
 
__________________________________ 
 
Printed: ___________________________ 
 
Title: _____________________________ 
 
Date: _____________________________ 
 
 
CITY OF REPUBLIC 
 
__________________________________ 
 
Printed: ___________________________ 
 
Title: _____________________________ 
 
Date: _____________________________ 
 
 
 
 

REPUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
__________________________________ 
 
Printed: ___________________________ 
 
Title: _____________________________ 
 
Date: _____________________________ 
 
 
DRURY PROPERTIES, INC. 
 
__________________________________ 
 
Printed: ___________________________ 
 
Title: _____________________________ 
 
Date: _____________________________ 
 
 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

124

Item 7.



 
 
 
 

Exhibit A 
 

Project Location and Property Owners 
  

 

Drury 
Properties, 

Inc 

Republic School District  
(Greene County 

Reorganized School District) 

City of Republic 

Approximate 
location of new 

FR 107 
alignment north 

of US 60 at 
Station 273+10 

125

Item 7.



 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM ANALYSIS 
 

Project/Issue Name: 24-18 An Ordinance of the City Council Authorizing the Mayor to 
Execute an Intergovernmental Agreement with the Republic R-III School 
District and Springfield Evergreen Holdings, LLC for Installation and 
Maintenance of Sewer Infrastructure to Service the New Republic 
Intermediate School Project. 

Submitted By: Karen Haynes, Planning Manager – Community Development 

Date: April 2, 2024 
 

 

Issue Statement 

Agreement to own and maintain off-site infrastructure. 

 

Discussion and/or Analysis 

This agreement formalizes the conditions for which sewer infrastructure will be constructed and 

dedicated to the City.  Two off-site easements were required for the installation of sewer main to service 

the new middle school property.  Each of the 2 Ordinances authorizing the execution of an IGA with the 

school district serves to formalize that the school district will construct the improvements in the 

easements that they secured.  Once they are accepted for service, the city will own and maintain the 

sewer infrastructure in the easements.  This infrastructure serves the school and will also provide an 

additional point of sewer service to surrounding properties.  There are two separate agreements for the 

same sewer main with the difference being the easement is located on 2 separate parcels owned by two 

different property owners. 

 

Recommended Action 

Staff recommends approval. 

126

Item 8.



BILL NO. 24-18  ORDINANCE NO. 24- 
 

BILL NO. 24-18 1 ORDINANCE NO. 24- 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE AN 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT WITH THE REPUBLIC R-III SCHOOL DISTRICT AND SPRINGFIELD 

EVERGREEN HOLDINGS, LLC FOR INSTALLATION AND MAINTENANCE OF SEWER INFRASTRUCTURE TO 
SERVICE THE NEW REPUBLIC INTERMEDIATE SCHOOL PROJECT 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Republic, Missouri, (“City” and/or “Republic”) is a municipal corporation 

and Charter City located in Greene County, Missouri, being duly created, organized, and existing under 
the laws of the State of Missouri; and, 

 
WHEREAS, Springfield Evergreen Holdings, LLC (“Evergreen”) currently owns real property located 

near 6139 West US Highway 60 in Republic, Missouri (the “Property”); and 
 
WHEREAS, the Republic School District (“School District”) is currently planning for construction of 

a new Intermediate School building on certain real property it owns immediately adjacent to the Property 
(the “Project”); and 

 
WHEREAS, as part of the Project, sewer main for connection to the future Intermediate School 

needs to be installed through the Property; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City seeks to enter into an intergovernmental cooperative agreement (“IGA”) with 

the School District and Evergreen to set forth the terms and conditions pursuant to which the parties will 
perform installation, maintenance, and the granting of easements for the water main infrastructure; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Council finds it in the best interest of the City to approve of the IGA with the School 

District and Evergreen, as it will help to ensure the safe, correct and efficient installation and maintenance 
of water main infrastructure needed for the Project. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF REPUBLIC, MISSOURI, 
AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1: The Mayor, on behalf of the City, is authorized to enter into an Intergovernmental 
Agreement with Republic R-III Schools and Springfield Evergreen Holdings, LLC 
setting forth the terms and conditions under which the parties will grant an 
easement and identify responsibility of installation and maintenance of water 
main infrastructure, to be in substantially the same form as that attached to this 
Ordinance as “Attachment 1.”    

 
Section 2: The Mayor and/or City Administrator, on behalf of the City, is authorized to take 

the necessary steps to execute this Ordinance.  
 
Section 3: The WHEREAS clauses above are specifically incorporated herein by reference. 
  
Section 4:  The provisions of this Ordinance are severable, and if any provisions hereof are 

declared invalid, unconstitutional, or unenforceable, such determination shall not 
affect the validity of the remainder of this Ordinance.  

 
Section 5: This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage as 

provided by law. 

127

Item 8.



BILL NO. 24-18  ORDINANCE NO. 24- 
 

BILL NO. 24-18 2 ORDINANCE NO. 24- 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Republic, Missouri, 

this __________ day of __________________, 2024. 
 
 
      __________________________________________ 
Attest:        Matt Russell, Mayor  
 
 
____________________________________ 
Laura Burbridge, City Clerk 
 
 
Approved as to Form:   

 
Megan McCullough, City Attorney  

 

 

Final Passage and Vote: 

 

128

Item 8.



Page 1 of 14 

 

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
 

THIS DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is entered into this ________ day of 
_________________, 2024, by and between the City of Republic Missouri (“City”), the Green County 
Reorganized School District No. 3, also known as the Republic R-III School District (“District”), and 
Springfield Evergreen Holdings, LLC (“Owner”).  City, District, and Owner are sometimes referred to 
herein individually as the “Party” or collectively as the “Parties.” 
 

WITNESSETH: 
 

WHEREAS, City is a municipal corporation and Charter City in Greene County, Missouri, and 
 

WHEREAS, District is a public school district and political subdivision of the State of Missouri, 
and 
 

WHEREAS, Owner is a limited liability company incorporated in the State of Missouri, and 
 
WHEREAS, Owner is currently the owner of real property in the City of Republic located at 6139 

W. Hwy. 60, legally described in the attached “Exhibit A”, which is incorporated by this reference into 
this Agreement, (“Property”), and  

 
WHEREAS, District is currently the owner of real property in the City of Republic located at 

6139 W. Highway 60, legally described in the attached “Exhibit B”, which is incorporated by this 
reference into this Agreement, (“Property”), and 

 
WHEREAS, District and City are in the process of developing improvements to the District 

Property and other surrounding infrastructure that will benefit the public, and 
 

WHEREAS, District and City have recognized the opportunity to partner on the construction of 
a sanitary sewer line connecting to City’s main sanitary sewer line, benefiting the District property and 
the City’s overall sanitary sewer system, pursuant to § 70.220, RSMo., and 
 

WHEREAS, in order for District to fully develop the District Property, a sanitary sewer line needs 
to be constructed on the Property, and 
 

WHEREAS, the purpose of this Agreement is to memorialize the Parties’ agreed upon 
respective responsibilities for improvements on or to the Property benefiting the District Property and 
City’s sanitary sewer system. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the covenants and agreements hereinafter set forth, 
the Parties mutually agree as follows: 
 

1. Ability to Contract:  Owner represents and warrants that it has the ability to enter into this 
Agreement, and holds all ownership interest in the Property required to execute this 
Agreement and to fulfill all terms contained herein. City represents and warrants that it has 
the ability to enter into this Agreement and fulfill all terms contained herein. District represents 

129

Item 8.



Page 2 of 14 

 

and warrants that it has the ability to enter into this Agreement and fulfill all terms contained 
herein. 
 

2. Work Under This Agreement:  In exchange for Owner’s promises herein, City and District agree 
that each shall provide for, arrange, construct, complete, plan, or coordinate the respective 
improvements described in this Agreement of which each is respectively responsible 
(“Improvements”). 

a. Sanitary Sewer Improvements:  District shall plan, construct, and complete a sanitary 
sewer line on the Property as depicted in the attached “Exhibit C”, which is 
incorporated by this reference into this Agreement, (“Sanitary Sewer Improvements”). 
The Sanitary Sewer Improvements shall be connected on the south end to the City’s 
main sanitary sewer line. Upon completion of construction, inspection by City, and 
approval by City, City shall assume ownership of the Sanitary Sewer Improvements and 
all appurtenances thereto. Construction of the Sanitary Sewer Improvements, 
connection to the City’s main sanitary sewer line, and transfer of ownership to City 
shall be completed no later than [date] (“Construction Period”). Nothing contained 
herein shall be construed to restrict District’s right to construct the Sanitary Sewer 
Improvements at any time prior to the expiration of the Construction Period or to 
continue constructing the Sanitary Sewer Improvements after the Construction Period, 
so long as District is making substantial and continuing progress toward completion of 
the Sanitary Sewer Improvements.  Further, the Construction Period shall be extended 
as necessary to accommodate delayed progress of the Sanitary Sewer Improvements 
due to changes in work, any act or omissions of Owner or its employees, agents, or 
representatives that are contrary to this Agreement or any other cause that is not 
reasonably foreseen or beyond the control of District, its subcontractors, or suppliers 
including, but not limited to acts of God, acts of a government authority, natural or 
manmade disaster, delay in the transportation or shortages of materials or equipment, 
abnormal weather conditions or labor disputes. 

b. Fencing Improvements: District shall plan, construct, and complete the fencing 

removal or erection depicted in the attached “Exhibit D”, which is incorporated by this 

reference into this Agreement, (“Fencing”). District shall be responsible for the proprer 

disposal of all fence materials associated with the removal of the fencing along the 

southern boundary of the Property. The Fencing will be completed in conjunction with 

the Sanitary Sewer Improvements and within the Construction Period. Nothing 

contained herein shall be construed to restrict District’s right to construct the Fencing 

at any time prior to the expiration of the Construction Period or to continue 

constructing the Fencing after the Construction Period, so long as District is making 

substantial and continuing progress toward completion of the Fencing.  Further, the 

Construction Period shall be extended as necessary to accommodate delayed progress 

of the Fencing due to changes in work, any act or omissions of Owner or its employees, 

agents, or representatives that are contrary to this Agreement or any other cause that 

is not reasonably foreseen or beyond the control of District, its subcontractors, or 

suppliers including, but not limited to acts of God, acts of a government authority, 

130

Item 8.



Page 3 of 14 

 

natural or manmade disaster, delay in the transportation or shortages of materials or 

equipment, abnormal weather conditions or labor disputes. 

c. Work Performed: Subject to any commitments made or other obligations agreed to by 

District, District will be the sole judge of the work required to fully and properly 

complete the Sanitary Sewer Improvements and Fencing, and meet any other 

obligations of District under this Agreement, including but not limited to, the work to 

be performed, the contractors or subcontractors hired to do the work to be performed, 

the engineer(s) selected, the construction methods used, equipment, materials and 

supplies to be used, the location and quality of the work. 

3. Costs of the Improvements: 

a. District shall be solely responsible for all costs of the plans and/or drawings for the 
Sanitary Sewer Improvements and Fencing, as well as all costs of construction of the 
same.  

4. Tax Consequences:  No warranty or representation of any kind as to the tax consequences, 
potential or actual, if any, is made by the Parties under this Agreement or in connection with 
this Agreement. 
 

5. Ownership in Improvements:  District will have and gain ownership rights in the Sanitary Sewer 
Improvements located on the Property until such time as ownership of the Sanitary Sewer 
Improvements is assumed by City, and construction of the Fencing is completed, respectively. 
Upon completion of the Fencing, Owner will have and gain ownership rights in the Fencing and 
assume full responsibility for the same. Other than the Fencing as described herein, Owner will 
neither have nor gain any ownership or other interest in Improvements by way of or under this 
Agreement. 

 
6. Easements: Owner agrees to execute the easement shown in the attached “Exhibit E”, which 

is incorporated by this reference into this Agreement, in favor of City. Owner further agrees 
that during such time as District is constructing the Sanitary Sewer Improvements, District is 
considered an assignee of City pursuant to the easement shown in Exhibit E. Owner further 
agrees to execute any easements and/or rights-of-way reasonably required by City and District, 
in order to perform the work contemplated by this Agreement on the Property, including any 
temporary construction easements required for the Fencing.  Prior to construction, Owner 
shall provide any such easements to City and District. 
 

7. Conflict of Interest: No salaried officer or employee of the City or District, no member of the 
City Council, and no member of District’s Board of Education, shall have a financial interest, 
direct or indirect, in this Agreement. 
 

8. Entire Agreement: This Agreement contains the entire agreement between the Parties and 
supersedes all prior and contemporaneous written or oral agreements unless excluded herein. 
This Agreement may not be modified or amended other than in writing signed by the Parties. 
 

131

Item 8.



Page 4 of 14 

 

9. Default and Termination: If, through any cause, any Party shall default on its obligations under 
this Agreement by (1) failing to timely fulfill its duties defined herein, (2) violating any of the 
covenants, agreements, or stipulations herein, or (3) becoming insolvent, any other Party shall 
deliver written notice of the default to the defaulting Party.  If the defaulting Party fails to cure 
the default within thirty (30) days of receiving notice from one of the other Parties (or such 
longer period of time as is reasonably necessary to effect a cure, provided the defaulting Party 
initiates efforts to cure the default as soon as practicably possible and continues pursuit of the 
same to completion), then any of the non-defaulting Parties shall have the right to terminate 
this Agreement by giving at least five (5) business days prior written notice of such termination, 
specifying the effective date thereof.  If a non-defaulting Party elects to terminate under this 
provision, the defaulting Party shall be responsible to the non-defaulting Parties for all of the 
non-defaulting Parties’ actual costs in the Sanitary Sewer Improvements and Fencing, up to 
and including the date of termination. 
 

10. Jurisdiction and Venue:  This Agreement shall be taken and deemed to have been fully 
executed and made by the parties herein and governed by the laws of the State of Missouri for 
all purposes and intents.  Venue under this Agreement or any disputes that come from it shall 
be in the Circuit Court of Greene County, Missouri. 
 

11. Dispute:  In the event of any dispute arising out of or relating to this Agreement, the Parties 

agree to meet and confer in good faith in an effort to resolve the dispute prior to commencing 

any litigation. The Parties may also agree to, but are not required to, mutually participate in 

mediation. In the event of any litigation and/or dispute resolution arising out of or related to 

this Agreement, each Party will be responsible for its own costs. 

 

12. Liability:  Owner acknowledges and agrees that the type of work to be performed under this 
Agreement may cause temporary damage to the Property. District and City agree to restore or 
repair any such damage to the Property caused by District or City, their respective workers, 
subcontractors, or representatives in the course of completing the Sanitary Sewer 
Improvements and Fencing. For purposes of this section, the final Sanitary Sewer 
Improvements and Fencing constructed in accordance with this Agreement shall not be 
considered “damages” to the Property. Each party shall have and maintain during the term of 
this Agreement sufficient property, liability, property damage, and other types of insurance to 
protect against any damages that may be incurred during the course of construction of the 
Sanitary Sewer Improvements and Fencing. 
 

13. Independent Contractor: The Parties to this Agreement are entirely separate and independent 
from each other. This Agreement shall not be construed as creating any type of joint venture 
or partnership between the Parties. 
 

14. Execution:  The Parties agree that signatures transmitted by facsimile or scanned and emailed 
shall have the legal effect of original signatures. In addition to facsimile or scanned and email 
signatures, this Agreement may be executed by the Parties in accordance with the applicable 
version of the Uniform Electronic Transactions Act (“UETA”) and the Electronic Signatures in 
Global and National Commerce Act (“ESIGN”). The Parties hereto agree to conduct 

132

Item 8.



Page 5 of 14 

 

transactions by electronic means and hereby affirmatively consent to use electronic records to 
memorialize and execute this Agreement and any alterations thereto. At the request of any 
party, the Parties shall promptly exchange executed original counterparts of this Agreement 
or any amendment. 
 

15. Survival:  This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the Parties and their 
respective heirs, personal representatives, successors and assigns as provided in this 
Agreement. The Parties acknowledge and agree that the rights and benefits afforded to Owner 
under this Agreement shall run with the Property and shall be enforceable by and for the 
benefit of any and all successor owners of the Property without further consideration to or 
consent by the City and District.  The Parties acknowledge and agree that at the request of any 
party, a memorandum of this Agreement shall be duly executed by the Parties and recorded 
in the real estate records of Greene County, Missouri; provided, however, this Agreement shall 
be binding and enforceable as between the City, District, and any current or future owner of 
the Property without recording thereof. 
 

16. Headings:  The headings in this Agreement are for convenience of reference only and shall not 
limit or otherwise affect the meaning thereof. 
 

17. Whereas Clauses: The “whereas” clauses stated above are incorporated by reference as 
though fully set forth herein, and shall be considered material terms of this Agreement. 
 

18. Assignment: This Agreement may not be assigned by any party without the prior written 
consent of all Parties. 
 

19. Public Entity and Officer Immunity and Defenses: In no event shall the language or 

requirements of this Agreement constitute or be construed as a waiver or limitation of any 

rights or defenses with regard to applicable sovereign, governmental, official, or any individual 

immunities and any other protections or defenses as provided by federal and state 

constitutions, statutes, and laws. The procurement and maintenance of insurance shall not be 

construed as waiving any such defense otherwise available. 

 

20. Severability Clause: A determination of invalidity or unconstitutionality by a court of 
competent jurisdiction of any clause, sentence, paragraph, section, or part, of this Agreement 
shall not affect the validity of the remaining parts to this Agreement. 
 

21. Contingent Upon Funds and Approval: This Agreement is expressly contingent and conditioned 
upon (1) the allocation of sufficient funds for City to use toward its obligations under this 
Agreement, and (2) the approval of the City Council for the City of Republic, Missouri, by duly 
executed Ordinance.  The City agrees to obtain approval(s) of its City Council for the allocation 
of estimated funds as well as any other contingencies necessary to fulfill its obligations under 
this Agreement prior to or concurrent with execution of the Amendment. Owner 
acknowledges and agrees it has no standing or right of action against City in the event City is 
unable to perform its obligations under this Agreement as a result of insufficient funds or 
disapproval by its City Council.  

133

Item 8.



Page 6 of 14 

 

 
22. Supplemental Agreements/Additional Action: The Parties agree to cooperate fully, to execute 

any supplemental agreements, and to take other additional actions reasonably necessary or 
appropriate to give full force and effect to the terms and intent of this Agreement. 
 

23. Waiver: The waiver by one Party of any provision or breach of this Agreement shall not be 
deemed a waiver of any other provision or breach of this Agreement. 
 

24. Contract Documents:  The Agreement shall consist of the following: 
a. This Development Agreement, fully executed; 
b. Exhibit A – Owner Property description; 
c. Exhibit B – District Property description; 
d. Exhibit C – Depiction of Sanitary Sewer Improvements;  
e. Exhibit D – Depiction of Fencing; 
f. Exhibit E – Sanitary Sewer Easement; and 
g. Any other properly executed amendments or addendums hereto. 

 
25. Notices:  Any notice, request or demand provided for in this Agreement shall be deemed to 

have been given when the same shall have been personally delivered to the following offices 
or when notice is received after being deposited in the United States Mail, Registered or 
Certified, with postage thereon prepaid as follows: 

 
To City:   
 
City of Republic, Missouri 
Attn:  City Administrator 
213 North Main Street 
Republic, Missouri 65738 
DCameron@RepublicMO.com 
 
To Owner: 
 
Springfield Evergreen Holdings, LLC 
Attn: B. Scott Hinkle, Esq. 
3750 Osage Beach Parkway 
P.O. Box 1710 
Osage Beach, MO 65065 
Shinkle@health-systems-inc.com 

 

To District:  
 
Republic R-III School District 
Attn:  Dr. Matt Pearce 
636 North Main Street 
Republic, MO 65738 
Matt.Pearce@republicschools.org 

 
***Signatures appear on next page*** 

 
 
 
 
 

134

Item 8.



Page 7 of 14 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Agreement to be executed as of the day 
and year first above written. 
 

REPUBLIC R-III SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
____________________________________ 
(Signature) 
 
 
____________________________________ 
(Printed Name) 
 
 
____________________________________ 
(Title) 
 
______________________ 
(Date) 

CITY OF REPUBLIC 
 
 
___________________________________ 
David Cameron, City Administrator 
 
___________________ 
(Date)  
 
 
___________________________________ 
Attest:  Laura Burbridge, City Clerk 
 
___________________ 
(Date)  
 
Approved as to Form: 
 
__________________________________ 
Megan McCullough, City Attorney 
 
___________________ 
(Date) 

SPRINGFIELD EVERGREEN HOLDINGS, LLC 

 

____________________________________ 

(Signature) 

____________________________________ 

(Printed Name) 

____________________________________ 

(Title) 

______________________ 

(Date) 

  

135

Item 8.



Page 8 of 14 

 

Exhibit A 
 
All that part of Southwest Quarter of the Southeast Quarter of Section 2, Township 28 North, Range 
23 West of the Fifth Principal Meridian, City of Republic, Greene County, Missouri, as described in 
Book 1548, Page 1495 of the Greene County Recorder’s Office and being more particularly described 
as follows:  
 
Commencing at the Northwest corner of the Southwest Quarter of the Southeast Quarter of Section 
2, Township 28 North, Range 23 West of the Fifth Principal Meridian, City of Republic, Greene 
County, Missouri; thence, along the North line of said Quarter-Quarter section, South 88°47’05” East, 
1332.52 feet to the Northeast corner of said Quarter-Quarter section; thence, along the East line of 
said Quarter-Quarter section , South 01°46’00” West, 267.61 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING; 
thence continuing along said East line South 01°46’00” West, 560.66 feet to the Northerly right-of-
way line of U.S. Highway 60; thence along said Northerly right-of-way line the flowing three (3) 
courses: South 57°32’30” West, 15.90 feet; thence South 10°44’25” West, 4.67 feet; thence South 
57°30’47” West, 388.10 feet; thence leaving said Northerly line, North 32°26’35” West, 467.38 feet; 
thence North 57°33’25” East, 722.42 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING. 
 
  

136

Item 8.



Page 9 of 14 

 

Exhibit B 
 
All of the North One-Half (N½) of the Southeast Quarter (SE¼) in Section 2, Township 28 North, 
Range 23 West, in the City of Republic, Greene County, Missouri.  
 
EXCEPT for that part deeded in Book 2008 at Page 21115-08, more particularly described as follows:  
Commencing at the Northeast corner of the Southeast Quarter (SE¼) of the Southeast Quarter (SE¼) 
of Section 2, Township 28 North, Range 23 West; thence S89°50'11”W, with the North line of said 
SE¼ of the SE¼, 100.53 feet (99 feet deed) to the Northerly right-of-way line of US Highway 60 for a 
true Point of Beginning; thence S56°14'00”W, with said right-of-way line, 200.00 feet; thence 
N33°46'00”W, 132.90 feet (130 feet deed) to said North line of the SE¼ of the SE¼; thence 
N89°50'11”E, with said North line, 44.97 feet to an existing North/South fence; thence N01°31'09”E, 
with said North/South fence, 58.83 feet to an existing East/West fence; thence N86°49'13”E, with 
said East/West fence, 70.42 feet to an existing North/South fence; thence N04°12'43”E, with said 
North/South fence, 287.36 feet to an existing East/West fence; thence N83°51'23”E, with said 
East/West fence and its extension, 207.14 feet to the East line of said SE¼; thence S00°30'02”W, with 
said East line, 304.64 feet to said Northerly right-of-way line of US Highway 60; thence S57°45'32”W, 
with said right-of-way line, 41.33 feet; thence S56°14'00”W, with said right-of-way line, 79.58 feet to 
the true Point of Beginning. 
 
Containing 79.405 acres, more or less, and subject to any rights-of-way, easements, and restrictions 
of record. 
 
  

137

Item 8.



Page 10 of 14 

 

Exhibit C 
 
See attached document.  
 
 
 
 
  

138

Item 8.



Page 11 of 14 

 

Exhibit D 
 
See attached document.  
 
 
  

139

Item 8.



Page 12 of 14 

 

Exhibit E 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SANITARY SEWER EASEMENT 

 

 THIS INDENTURE, made on the __________ day of _________________, 2024, by and 

between Springfield Evergreen Holdings, LLC, a limited liability corporation chartered in the State of 

Missouri, hereinafter called “Grantor”, and the City of Republic, Missouri, a municipal corporation in the 

County of Greene, State of Missouri, whose mailing address is 213 N. Main Street, Republic, Missouri, 

65738, hereinafter called “Grantee”. 
 

 WITNESSETH, that Grantors, in consideration of the sum of One Dollar ($1.00) and other good 

and valuable consideration, paid by Grantee, the receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, do by these 

presents grant, bargain and convey to Grantee, its successors and assigns, the following described easement, 

with the right, privilege and authority to Grantee, its successors and assigns, to locate, construct, maintain, 

repair, reconstruct, replace, operate, extend, patrol, and/or remove its present or future sanitary sewer lines, 

manholes, sewerage pump stations, and appurtenances thereof, on, through, under and across the following 

described lands in the County of Greene, State of Missouri, to-wit: 

 

See attached legal description. 

 

 
The Grantee covenants to maintain the easement in good repair so that no permanent damage will result 
from its use to the adjacent land of the Grantor or Grantor's successors and assigns.  Grantor covenants to 
and with Grantee that subject to existing easements, if any, Grantor is lawfully seized and possessed of said 
lands, and have a good and lawful right and power to sell and convey said easement.  The grant and other 
provisions of this easement shall constitute a covenant running with the land for the benefit of the grantee, 
its successors and assigns.  Reserving however to the owner of the fee underlying this easement herein 
granted the continued use of the surface of said real property, subject to the condition that the erecting of 
building, walls, fences, and other structures, the planting or growing of trees or shrubs, the changing of 
surface grade, or the installation of privately-owned pipelines shall be prohibited unless written permission 
if first obtained from the Grantee. 

140

Item 8.



Page 13 of 14 

 

    IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Grantor has hereunto caused this instrument to be executed the day 

and year first above written. 
 

____________________________________     

Printed Name and Title 

_________________________________ 

Signature  

 

 

STATE OF MISSOURI         ) 
           )SS 

COUNTY OF ________________) 

 

 On this ___ day of _________________, 20  before me personally appeared     

   , to me known to be the ___________________ of Springfield 

Evergreen Holdings, LLC., and who executed the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged that he/she 

executed the same on behalf of Springfield Evergreen Holdings, LLC. as his/her free act and deed. 

 
 IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal at my office 
in __________________, Missouri the day and year first above written. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
My term expires:____________________/s/ ________________________________ 
 Notary Public 
                                                                         
                                                                         ________________________________ 
                                                                                  Print Name 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Accepted by the City of Republic under the provisions of Section 120.140 of the Municipal Code on this 
       day of                                     , 20      . 
 
 
      
Signature 
 
                                                             
Printed Name and Title 

 

141

Item 8.



Page 14 of 14 

 

A Perpetual 15.0’ Sanitary Sewer Easement being a part of the Southwest Quarter (SW¼) of the 
Southeast Quarter (SE¼) of Section 2, Township 28 North, Range 23 West, in Tract 1 of Handi-Rak 
Minor Sub, recorded in Plat Book AAA at Page 269, in the City of Republic, Greene County, Missouri, 
being a part of the tract of land recorded in the Greene County Recorder’s Office in Book 2015 at 
Page 024934-15, more particularly described as follows: 
 
COMMENCING at the Northeast corner of said SW¼ of the SE¼, said point also being the Northeast 
corner of Tract 2 of said Minor Sub; thence S01°45'00"W, along the East line of said Tract 2, a 
distance of 267.61 feet to the Northeast corner of said Tract 1 for a POINT OF BEGINNING; thence 
continuing S01°45'00"W, along the East line of said Tract 1, a distance of 18.14 feet; thence 
S57°32'25"W, a distance of 18.14 feet; thence S01°45'00"W, a distance of 529.70 feet; thence 
N88°15'12"W, a distance of 15.00 feet; thence N01°45'00"E, a distance of 537.64 feet to a point on 
the North line of said Tract 1; thence N57°32'25"E, along said North line, a distance of 36.28 feet to 
the POINT OF BEGINNING. 
 
Containing 8,413 square feet, more or less, and subject to any rights-of-way, easements, and 
restrictions of record. 
 
 

142

Item 8.



 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM ANALYSIS 
 

Project/Issue Name: 24-19 An Ordinance of the City Council Authorizing the Mayor to 
Execute an Intergovernmental Agreement with the Republic R-III School 
District and Great Escape Beer Works LLC for Installation and 
Maintenance of Sewer Infrastructure to Service the New Republic 
Intermediate School Project. 

Submitted By: Karen Haynes, Planning Manager – Community Development 

Date: April 2, 2024 
 

 

Issue Statement 

Agreement to own and maintain off-site infrastructure. 

 

Discussion and/or Analysis 

This agreement formalizes the conditions for which sewer infrastructure will be constructed and 

dedicated to the City.  Two off-site easements were required for the installation of sewer main to service 

the new middle school property.  Each of the 2 Ordinances authorizing the execution of an IGA with the 

school district serve to formalize that the school district will construct the improvements in the easements 

that they secured and that once they are accepted for service, the city will own and maintain the sewer 

infrastructure in the easements.  This infrastructure serves the school and will also provide an additional 

point of sewer service to surrounding properties.  There are two separate agreements for the same sewer 

main with the difference being the easement is located on 2 separate parcels owned by two different 

property owners. 

 

Recommended Action 

Staff recommends approval. 

143

Item 9.



BILL NO. 24-19  ORDINANCE NO. 24- 
 

BILL NO. 24-19 1 ORDINANCE NO. 24- 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE AN 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT WITH THE REPUBLIC R-III SCHOOL DISTRICT 

AND GREAT ESCAPE BEER WORKS LLC FOR INSTALLATION AND MAINTENANCE OF 
SEWER INFRASTRUCTURE TO SERVICE THE NEW REPUBLIC INTERMEDIATE SCHOOL 

PROJECT 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Republic, Missouri, (“City” and/or “Republic”) is a municipal 
corporation and Charter City located in Greene County, Missouri, being duly created, organized, 
and existing under the laws of the State of Missouri; and, 

 
WHEREAS, Great Escape Beer Works LLC (“Great Escape”) currently owns real property 

located at 6021 West US Highway 60 in Republic, Missouri (the “Property”); and 
 
WHEREAS, the Republic School District (“School District”) is currently planning for 

construction of a new Intermediate School building on certain real property it owns immediately 
adjacent to the Property (the “Project”); and 

 
WHEREAS, as part of the Project, sewer main for connection to the future Intermediate 

School needs to be installed through the Property; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City seeks to enter into an intergovernmental cooperative agreement 

(“IGA”) with the School District and Great Escape to set forth the terms and conditions pursuant 
to which the parties will perform installation, maintenance, and the granting of easements for the 
water main infrastructure; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Council finds it in the best interest of the City to approve of the IGA with 

the School District and Great Escape, as it will help to ensure the safe, correct and efficient 
installation and maintenance of water main infrastructure needed for the Project. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
REPUBLIC, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1: The Mayor, on behalf of the City, is authorized to enter into an 
Intergovernmental Agreement with Republic R-III Schools and Great 
Escape Beer Works LLC, setting forth the terms and conditions under 
which the parties will grant an easement and identify responsibility of 
installation and maintenance of water main infrastructure, to be in 
substantially the same form as that attached to this Ordinance as 
“Attachment 1.”    

 
Section 2: The Mayor and/or City Administrator, on behalf of the City, is authorized to 

take the necessary steps to execute this Ordinance.  
 
Section 3: The WHEREAS clauses above are specifically incorporated herein by 

reference. 
  
Section 4:  The provisions of this Ordinance are severable, and if any provisions hereof 

are declared invalid, unconstitutional, or unenforceable, such 
determination shall not affect the validity of the remainder of this Ordinance.  

 

144

Item 9.



BILL NO. 24-19  ORDINANCE NO. 24- 
 

BILL NO. 24-19 2 ORDINANCE NO. 24- 

Section 5: This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage 
as provided by law. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of 

Republic, Missouri, this __________ day of __________________, 2024. 
 
 
     
 __________________________________________ 
Attest:        Matt Russell, Mayor  
 
 
____________________________________ 
Laura Burbridge, City Clerk 
 
 
Approved as to Form:   

 
Megan McCullough, City Attorney  

 

 

Final Passage and Vote: 

 

 

145

Item 9.



Page 1 of 13 

 

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
 

THIS DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is entered into this ________ day of 
_________________, 2024, by and between the City of Republic Missouri (“City”), the Green County 
Reorganized School District No. 3, also known as the Republic R-III School District (“District”), and Great 
Escape Beer Works LLC (“Owner”). City, District, and Owner are sometimes referred to herein 
individually as the “Party” or collectively as the “Parties.” 
 

WITNESSETH: 
 

WHEREAS, City is a municipal corporation and Charter City in Greene County, Missouri, and 
 

WHEREAS, District is a public school district and political subdivision of the State of Missouri, 
and 
 

WHEREAS, Owner is a limited liability company incorporated in the State of Missouri, and 
 
WHEREAS, Owner is currently the owner of real property in the City of Republic located at 6021 

W. Hwy. 60, legally described in the attached “Exhibit A”, which is incorporated by this reference into 
this Agreement, (“Property”), and  

 
WHEREAS, District is currently the owner of real property in the City of Republic located at 

6139 W. Hwy. 60, legally described in the attached “Exhibit B”, which is incorporated by this reference 
into this Agreement, (“Property”), and 

 
WHEREAS, District and City are in the process of developing improvements to the District 

Property and other surrounding infrastructure that will benefit the public, and 
 

WHEREAS, District and City have recognized the opportunity to partner on the construction of 
a sanitary sewer line connecting to City’s main sanitary sewer line, benefiting the District property and 
the City’s overall sanitary sewer system, pursuant to § 70.220, RSMo., and 
 

WHEREAS, in order for District to fully develop the District Property, a sanitary sewer line needs 
to be constructed on the Property, and 
 

WHEREAS, the purpose of this Agreement is to memorialize the Parties’ agreed upon 
respective responsibilities for improvements on or to the Property benefiting the District Property and 
City’s sanitary sewer system. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the covenants and agreements hereinafter set forth, 
the Parties mutually agree as follows: 
 

1. Ability to Contract:  Owner represents and warrants that it has the ability to enter into this 
Agreement, and holds all ownership interest in the Property required to execute this 
Agreement and to fulfill all terms contained herein. City represents and warrants that it has 
the ability to enter into this Agreement and fulfill all terms contained herein. District represents 

146

Item 9.



Page 2 of 13 

 

and warrants that it has the ability to enter into this Agreement and fulfill all terms contained 
herein. 
 

2. Work Under This Agreement:  In exchange for Owner’s promises herein, City and District agree 
that each shall provide for, arrange, construct, complete, plan, or coordinate the respective 
improvements described in this Agreement of which each is respectively responsible 
(“Improvements”). 

a. Sanitary Sewer Improvements:  District shall plan, construct, and complete a sanitary 
sewer line on the Property as depicted in the attached “Exhibit C”, which is 
incorporated by this reference into this Agreement, (“Sanitary Sewer Improvements”). 
The Sanitary Sewer Improvements shall be connected on the south end to the City’s 
main sanitary sewer line. Upon completion of construction, inspection by City, and 
approval by City, City shall assume ownership of the Sanitary Sewer Improvements and 
all appurtenances thereto. Construction of the Sanitary Sewer Improvements, 
connection to the City’s main sanitary sewer line, and transfer of ownership to City 
shall be completed no later than August 2025 (“Construction Period”). Nothing 
contained herein shall be construed to restrict District’s right to construct the Sanitary 
Sewer Improvements at any time prior to the expiration of the Construction Period or 
to continue constructing the Sanitary Sewer Improvements after the Construction 
Period, so long as District is making substantial and continuing progress toward 
completion of the Sanitary Sewer Improvements.  Further, the Construction Period 
shall be extended as necessary to accommodate delayed progress of the Sanitary 
Sewer Improvements due to changes in work, any act or omissions of Owner or its 
employees, agents, or representatives that are contrary to this Agreement or any other 
cause that is not reasonably foreseen or beyond the control of District, its 
subcontractors, or suppliers including, but not limited to acts of God, acts of a 
government authority, natural or manmade disaster, delay in the transportation or 
shortages of materials or equipment, abnormal weather conditions or labor disputes. 

b. Work Performed: Subject to any commitments made or other obligations agreed to by 

District, District will be the sole judge of the work required to fully and properly 

complete the Sanitary Sewer Improvements Fencing, and meet any other obligations 

of District under this Agreement, including but not limited to, the work to be 

performed, the contractors or subcontractors hired to do the work to be performed, 

the engineer(s) selected, the construction methods used, equipment, materials and 

supplies to be used, the location and quality of the work. 

3. Costs of the Improvements: 

a. District shall be solely responsible for all costs of the plans and/or drawings for the 
Sanitary Sewer Improvements, as well as all costs of construction of the same. District 
shall also pay to Owner, within sixty (60) days of execution of this Agreement, the sum 
of Twenty-Seven Thousand Fifty-Six Dollars and Zero Cents ($27,056.00).  

4. Tax Consequences:  No warranty or representation of any kind as to the tax consequences, 
potential or actual, if any, is made by the Parties under this Agreement or in connection with 
this Agreement. 

147

Item 9.



Page 3 of 13 

 

 
5. Ownership in Improvements:  District will have and gain ownership rights in the Sanitary Sewer 

Improvements located on the Property until such time as ownership of the Sanitary Sewer 
Improvements is assumed by City. Owner will neither have nor gain any ownership or other 
interest in the Sanitary Sewer Improvements by way of or under this Agreement. 

 
6. Easements: Owner agrees to execute the easement shown in the attached “Exhibit D”, which 

is incorporated by this reference into this Agreement, in favor of City. Owner further agrees 
that during such time as District is constructing the Sanitary Sewer Improvements, District is 
considered an assignee of City pursuant to the easement shown in Exhibit D. Owner further 
agrees to execute any easements and/or rights-of-way reasonably required by City and District, 
in order to perform the work contemplated by this Agreement on the Property, including any 
temporary construction easements.  Prior to construction, Owner shall provide any such 
easements to City and District. 
 

7. Conflict of Interest: No salaried officer or employee of the City or District, no member of the 
City Council, and no member of District’s Board of Education, shall have a financial interest, 
direct or indirect, in this Agreement. 
 

8. Entire Agreement: This Agreement contains the entire agreement between the Parties and 
supersedes all prior and contemporaneous written or oral agreements unless excluded herein. 
This Agreement may not be modified or amended other than in writing signed by the Parties. 
 

9. Default and Termination: If, through any cause, any Party shall default on its obligations under 
this Agreement by (1) failing to timely fulfill its duties defined herein, (2) violating any of the 
covenants, agreements, or stipulations herein, or (3) becoming insolvent, any other Party shall 
deliver written notice of the default to the defaulting Party.  If the defaulting Party fails to cure 
the default within thirty (30) days of receiving notice from one of the other Parties (or such 
longer period of time as is reasonably necessary to effect a cure, provided the defaulting Party 
initiates efforts to cure the default as soon as practicably possible and continues pursuit of the 
same to completion), then any of the non-defaulting Parties shall have the right to terminate 
this Agreement by giving at least five (5) business days prior written notice of such termination, 
specifying the effective date thereof.  If a non-defaulting Party elects to terminate under this 
provision, the defaulting Party shall be responsible to the non-defaulting Parties for all of the 
non-defaulting Parties’ actual costs in the Sanitary Sewer Improvements and Fencing, up to 
and including the date of termination. 
 

10. Jurisdiction and Venue:  This Agreement shall be taken and deemed to have been fully 
executed and made by the parties herein and governed by the laws of the State of Missouri for 
all purposes and intents.  Venue under this Agreement or any disputes that come from it shall 
be in the Circuit Court of Greene County, Missouri. 
 

11. Dispute:  In the event of any dispute arising out of or relating to this Agreement, the Parties 

agree to meet and confer in good faith in an effort to resolve the dispute prior to commencing 

any litigation. The Parties may also agree to, but are not required to, mutually participate in 

148

Item 9.



Page 4 of 13 

 

mediation. In the event of any litigation and/or dispute resolution arising out of or related to 

this Agreement, each Party will be responsible for its own costs. 

 

12. Liability:  Owner acknowledges and agrees that the type of work to be performed under this 
Agreement may cause temporary damage to the Property. District and City agree to restore or 
repair any such damage to the Property caused by District or City, their respective workers, 
subcontractors, or representatives in the course of completing the Sanitary Sewer 
Improvements. For purposes of this section, the final Sanitary Sewer Improvements 
constructed in accordance with this Agreement shall not be considered “damages” to the 
Property. Each party shall have and maintain during the term of this Agreement sufficient 
property, liability, property damage, and other types of insurance to protect against any 
damages that may be incurred during the course of construction of the Sanitary Sewer 
Improvements. 
 

13. Independent Contractor: The Parties to this Agreement are entirely separate and independent 
from each other. This Agreement shall not be construed as creating any type of joint venture 
or partnership between the Parties. 
 

14. Execution:  The Parties agree that signatures transmitted by facsimile or scanned and emailed 
shall have the legal effect of original signatures. In addition to facsimile or scanned and email 
signatures, this Agreement may be executed by the Parties in accordance with the applicable 
version of the Uniform Electronic Transactions Act (“UETA”) and the Electronic Signatures in 
Global and National Commerce Act (“ESIGN”). The Parties hereto agree to conduct 
transactions by electronic means and hereby affirmatively consent to use electronic records to 
memorialize and execute this Agreement and any alterations thereto. At the request of any 
party, the Parties shall promptly exchange executed original counterparts of this Agreement 
or any amendment. 
 

15. Survival:  This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the Parties and their 
respective heirs, personal representatives, successors and assigns as provided in this 
Agreement. The Parties acknowledge and agree that the rights and benefits afforded to Owner 
under this Agreement shall run with the Property and shall be enforceable by and for the 
benefit of any and all successor owners of the Property without further consideration to or 
consent by the City and District.  The Parties acknowledge and agree that at the request of any 
party, a memorandum of this Agreement shall be duly executed by the Parties and recorded 
in the real estate records of Greene County, Missouri; provided, however, this Agreement shall 
be binding and enforceable as between the City, District, and any current or future owner of 
the Property without recording thereof. 
 

16. Headings:  The headings in this Agreement are for convenience of reference only and shall not 
limit or otherwise affect the meaning thereof. 
 

17. Whereas Clauses: The “whereas” clauses stated above are incorporated by reference as 
though fully set forth herein, and shall be considered material terms of this Agreement. 
 

149

Item 9.



Page 5 of 13 

 

18. Assignment: This Agreement may not be assigned by any party without the prior written 
consent of all Parties. 
 

19. Public Entity and Officer Immunity and Defenses: In no event shall the language or 

requirements of this Agreement constitute or be construed as a waiver or limitation of any 

rights or defenses with regard to applicable sovereign, governmental, official, or any individual 

immunities and any other protections or defenses as provided by federal and state 

constitutions, statutes, and laws. The procurement and maintenance of insurance shall not be 

construed as waiving any such defense otherwise available. 

 

20. Severability Clause: A determination of invalidity or unconstitutionality by a court of 
competent jurisdiction of any clause, sentence, paragraph, section, or part, of this Agreement 
shall not affect the validity of the remaining parts to this Agreement. 
 

21. Contingent Upon Funds and Approval: This Agreement is expressly contingent and conditioned 
upon (1) the allocation of sufficient funds for City to use toward its obligations under this 
Agreement, and (2) the approval of the City Council for the City of Republic, Missouri, by duly 
executed Ordinance.  The City agrees to obtain approval(s) of its City Council for the allocation 
of estimated funds as well as any other contingencies necessary to fulfill its obligations under 
this Agreement prior to or concurrent with execution of the Amendment. Owner 
acknowledges and agrees it has no standing or right of action against City in the event City is 
unable to perform its obligations under this Agreement as a result of insufficient funds or 
disapproval by its City Council.  
 

22. Supplemental Agreements/Additional Action: The Parties agree to cooperate fully, to execute 
any supplemental agreements, and to take other additional actions reasonably necessary or 
appropriate to give full force and effect to the terms and intent of this Agreement. 
 

23. Waiver: The waiver by one Party of any provision or breach of this Agreement shall not be 
deemed a waiver of any other provision or breach of this Agreement. 
 

24. Contract Documents:  The Agreement shall consist of the following: 
a. This Development Agreement, fully executed; 
b. Exhibit A – Owner Property description; 
c. Exhibit B – District Property description; 
d. Exhibit C – Depiction of Sanitary Sewer Improvements;  
e. Exhibit D – Sanitary Sewer Easement; and 
f. Any other properly executed amendments or addendums hereto. 

 
25. Notices:  Any notice, request or demand provided for in this Agreement shall be deemed to 

have been given when the same shall have been personally delivered to the following offices 
or when notice is received after being deposited in the United States Mail, Registered or 
Certified, with postage thereon prepaid as follows: 
 
 

150

Item 9.



Page 6 of 13 

 

To City:   
 
City of Republic, Missouri 
Attn:  City Administrator 
213 North Main Street 
Republic, Missouri 65738 
DCameron@RepublicMO.com 
 
To Owner: 
 
Great Escape Beer Works LLC 
Attn: Jake Duensing 
4022 S Lone Pine Ave 
Springfield, MO 65804 
jake@greatescapebeerworks.com 

 

To District:  
 
Republic R-III School District 
Attn:  Dr. Matt Pearce 
636 North Main Street 
Republic, MO 65738 
Matt.Pearce@republicschools.org 

 
***Signatures appear on next page*** 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

151

Item 9.



Page 7 of 13 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Agreement to be executed as of the day 
and year first above written. 
 

REPUBLIC R-III SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
____________________________________ 
(Signature) 
 
 
____________________________________ 
(Printed Name) 
 
 
____________________________________ 
(Title) 
 
______________________ 
(Date) 

CITY OF REPUBLIC 
 
 
___________________________________ 
David Cameron, City Administrator 
 
___________________ 
(Date)  
 
 
___________________________________ 
Attest:  Laura Burbridge, City Clerk 
 
___________________ 
(Date)  
 
Approved as to Form: 
 
__________________________________ 
Megan McCullough, City Attorney 
 
___________________ 
(Date) 

 

GREAT ESCAPE BEER WORKS LLC 

 

____________________________________ 

(Signature) 

____________________________________ 

(Printed Name) 

____________________________________ 

(Title) 

______________________ 

(Date) 

  

152

Item 9.



Page 8 of 13 

 

Exhibit A 
 
All that part of the southeast quarter (SE¼) of the southeast quarter (SE¼) of Section two (2), 

Township Twenty-Eight (28) North, Range Twenty-Three (23) West of the fifth principal meridian, 

City of Republic, Greene County, Missouri, as described in book 1695, Page 1305 of the Greene 

County Recorder’s Office and being more particularly described as follows:  

Beginning at the northwest corner of the southeast quarter (SE¼) of the southeast quarter (SE¼) of 

Section two (2), Township Twenty-Eight (28) North, Range Twenty-Three (23) West of the fifth 

principal meridian, City of Republic, Greene County, Missouri; Thence along the north line of said 

quarter-quarter section, south 88°47’05” east, 516.37 feet; thence leaving said quarter-quarter 

section line, south 32°32’55” east, 397.13 feet to the northerly right-of-way of Highway 60; thence 

along said right-of-way line south 57°27’05” west, 319.62 feet; thence leaving said right-of-way line, 

north 25°37’51” west, 208.05 feet; thence south 74°20’03” west, 355.53 feet to a point on the west 

line of said quarter-quarter section line; thence along said west line, north 01°46’00” east, 453.21 

feet to the point of beginning; Greene County, Missouri. AKA Tract I Burk Bridge Minor Subdivision in 

Plat Book AAA Page 436. 

  

153

Item 9.



Page 9 of 13 

 

Exhibit B 
 
All of the North One-Half (N½) of the Southeast Quarter (SE¼) in Section 2, Township 28 North, 
Range 23 West, in the City of Republic, Greene County, Missouri.  
 
EXCEPT for that part deeded in Book 2008 at Page 21115-08, more particularly described as follows:  
Commencing at the Northeast corner of the Southeast Quarter (SE¼) of the Southeast Quarter (SE¼) 
of Section 2, Township 28 North, Range 23 West; thence S89°50'11”W, with the North line of said 
SE¼ of the SE¼, 100.53 feet (99 feet deed) to the Northerly right-of-way line of US Highway 60 for a 
true Point of Beginning; thence S56°14'00”W, with said right-of-way line, 200.00 feet; thence 
N33°46'00”W, 132.90 feet (130 feet deed) to said North line of the SE¼ of the SE¼; thence 
N89°50'11”E, with said North line, 44.97 feet to an existing North/South fence; thence N01°31'09”E, 
with said North/South fence, 58.83 feet to an existing East/West fence; thence N86°49'13”E, with 
said East/West fence, 70.42 feet to an existing North/South fence; thence N04°12'43”E, with said 
North/South fence, 287.36 feet to an existing East/West fence; thence N83°51'23”E, with said 
East/West fence and its extension, 207.14 feet to the East line of said SE¼; thence S00°30'02”W, with 
said East line, 304.64 feet to said Northerly right-of-way line of US Highway 60; thence S57°45'32”W, 
with said right-of-way line, 41.33 feet; thence S56°14'00”W, with said right-of-way line, 79.58 feet to 
the true Point of Beginning. 
 
Containing 79.405 acres, more or less, and subject to any rights-of-way, easements, and restrictions 
of record.   
 
 
  

154

Item 9.



Page 10 of 13 

 

Exhibit C 

 

155

Item 9.



Page 11 of 13 

 

Exhibit D 
 

 

SANITARY SEWER EASEMENT 

 

 THIS INDENTURE, made on the __________ day of _________________, 2024, by and 

between Great Escape Beer Works LLC, a limited liability corporation chartered in the State of Missouri, 

hereinafter called “Grantor”, and the City of Republic, Missouri, a municipal corporation in the County of 

Greene, State of Missouri, whose mailing address is 213 N. Main Street, Republic, Missouri, 65738, 

hereinafter called “Grantee”. 
 

 WITNESSETH, that Grantors, in consideration of the sum of One Dollar ($1.00) and other good 

and valuable consideration, paid by Grantee, the receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, do by these 

presents grant, bargain and convey to Grantee, its successors and assigns, the following described easement, 

with the right, privilege and authority to Grantee, its successors and assigns, to locate, construct, maintain, 

repair, reconstruct, replace, operate, extend, patrol, and/or remove its present or future sanitary sewer lines, 

manholes, sewerage pump stations, and appurtenances thereof, on, through, under and across the following 

described lands in the County of Greene, State of Missouri, to-wit: 

 

See attached legal description. 

 

 
The Grantee covenants to maintain the easement in good repair so that no permanent damage will result 
from its use to the adjacent land of the Grantor or Grantor's successors and assigns.  Grantor covenants to 
and with Grantee that subject to existing easements, if any, Grantor is lawfully seized and possessed of said 
lands, and have a good and lawful right and power to sell and convey said easement.  The grant and other 
provisions of this easement shall constitute a covenant running with the land for the benefit of the grantee, 
its successors and assigns.  Reserving however to the owner of the fee underlying this easement herein 
granted the continued use of the surface of said real property, subject to the condition that the erecting of 
building, walls, fences, and other structures, the planting or growing of trees or shrubs, the changing of 
surface grade, or the installation of privately-owned pipelines shall be prohibited unless written permission 
if first obtained from the Grantee. 

156

Item 9.



Page 12 of 13 

 

    IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Grantor has hereunto caused this instrument to be executed the day 

and year first above written. 
 

____________________________________     

Printed Name and Title 

_________________________________ 

Signature  

 

 

STATE OF MISSOURI         ) 
           )SS 

COUNTY OF ________________) 

 

 On this ___ day of _________________, 20  before me personally appeared     

   , to me known to be the ___________________ of Great Escape 

Beer Works LLC., and who executed the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged that he/she executed 

the same on behalf of Great Escape Beer Works LLC. as his/her free act and deed. 

 
 IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal at my office 
in __________________, Missouri the day and year first above written. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
My term expires:____________________/s/ ________________________________ 
 Notary Public 
                                                                         
                                                                         ________________________________ 
                                                                                  Print Name 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Accepted by the City of Republic under the provisions of Section 120.140 of the Municipal Code on this 
       day of                                     , 20      . 
 
 
      
Signature 
 
                                                             
Printed Name and Title 

 

157

Item 9.



Page 13 of 13 

 

A 15 foot permanent sanitary sewer easement being a part of Tract 1, Burk Bridge Minor Sub, 
recorded in Plat Book AAA, at Page 436 and that part of the Grantor’s property described in Book 
2022, at Page 010281-22, Republic, Greene County, Missouri, more particularly described as follows: 
 
BEGINNING at an existing 5/8" iron bar LC 62 at the Northwest corner of the Southeast Quarter (SE 
1/4) of the Southeast Quarter (SE 1/4) of Section 2, Township 28 North, Range 23 West and the 
Northwest corner of Tract 1 in said Minor Subdivision; thence S88°47’08”E along the North line of 
said tract, a distance of 15.00 feet; thence S01°45’00”W leaving said North line, a distance of 448.64 

feet to the South line of said tract; thence S7413’40’W along said South line, a distance of 15.73 feet 

to the West line of said tract; thence N0145’00”E along said West line, a distance of 453.24 feet to 
the POINT OF BEGINNING, containing 6,764 square feet, more or less, subject to right-of-way, 
easements and restrictions of record. 
 
 

158

Item 9.



 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM ANALYSIS 
 

Project/Issue Name: 24-20 An Ordinance of the City Council Amending Title I (“Government 
Code”), Chapter 120 (“City Officers And Employees”), Article 120-I 
(“General Provisions”), Section 120.025 (“Mayor And Council 
Compensation”) of the Municipal Code of the City of Republic, Missouri. 

Submitted By: David Cameron, City Administrator 

Date: April 2, 2024 
 

 

Issue Statement 

To adjust the compensation of the Mayor and City Council Members. 

Discussion and/or Analysis 

In 1997, a compensation schedule was established to pay the Mayor $200.00/month and Council 

$100.00/month while in office.  The population at that time was 6,957.  This was amended in 2008 to 

$400.00/month for the Mayor and $200.00/month for Council Members.  At that time, the population 

was 13,811. 

Currently, the population is estimated to be 20,555 and the compensation of the Mayor and City Council 

has not changed in 16 years.  The cost of living has increased significantly, and our elected officials are 

serving a greater number of citizens.  With the election in April, this is an opportunity to change the 

compensation to impact all members.  Section 120.010 states “The City Council shall fix the compensation 

of all the officers and employees of the City by ordinance. The salary of an officer shall not be changed 

during the time for which he/she was elected or appointed.”  This is a rare time when all seats are being 

elected at once and the compensation increase could be applied to all members at once rather than half 

the members.   

Staff is recommending amending the code section to pay per meeting at the rate of $500.00/meeting for 

the Mayor and $250.00/meeting for City Council Members.   

Recommended Action 

Staff recommends approval. 

159

Item 10.



BILL NO. 24-20  ORDINANCE NO. 24- 
 

BILL NO. 24-20  ORDINANCE NO. 24- 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL AMENDING TITLE I (“GOVERNMENT CODE”), CHAPTER 120 
(“CITY OFFICERS AND EMPLOYEES”), ARTICLE 120-I (“GENERAL PROVISIONS”), SECTION 120.025 
(“MAYOR AND COUNCIL COMPENSATION”) OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE OF THE CITY OF REPUBLIC, 

MISSOURI 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Republic, Missouri, (“City” or “Republic”) is a municipal corporation and 
Charter City located in Greene County, Missouri, being duly created, organized, and existing under the 
laws of the State of Missouri; and 

 
WHEREAS, on December 22, 1997, via Ordinance 97-68, the City established a pay schedule for 

the Board of Aldermen, now the City Council, with the Mayor receiving $200.00 per month and Council 
receiving $100.00 per month; and 

 
WHEREAS, on April 14, 2008, via Ordinance 08-30, the City Council voted to amend the 

compensation rates for the Mayor and Councilmembers, with the Mayor receiving $400.00 per month 
and the Councilmembers receiving $200.00 per month; and 

 
WHEREAS, since establishing the compensation rates in 1997 and adjusting them in 2008, the City 

has seen a significant population increase, having a population of 6,957 in 1997; 13,811 in 2008; to a 
current estimated population of 20,555 at the most recent census; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City has additionally seen an increase in the time commitment and need for 
participation and engagement required of both the Mayor and City Council in discharging their duties 
under the City’s Charter; and 

 
WHEREAS, upon presentation by City staff and review of all pertinent materials, the Council finds 

it appropriate and in the best interest of the City to adjust the compensation rates for both the Mayor 
and City Council Members, to not only account for increases in cost of living and the City’s population, but 
additionally to encourage active participation and engagement by the members of the governing body. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF REPUBLIC, MISSOURI, 
AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1: Title I (“Government Code”) of the Municipal Code of the City of Republic, 
Missouri, Chapter 120 (“City Officers And Employees”), Article 120-I (“General 
Provisions”), Section 120.025 (“Mayor And Council Compensation”) of the 
Municipal Code of the City of Republic, Missouri is hereby amended to read as 
follows: 

 
   120.025 Mayor And Council Compensation 
 

A. Mayor — Compensation. The Mayor shall be paid the sum of four five 
hundred dollars ($4500.00) for each regular or special meeting he or 
she attends while in office, payable on a monthly basis. month during 
his tenure in office.  

B. City Council — Compensation. Each member of the City Council shall be 

paid the sum of two hundred fifty dollars ($2500.00) for each regular or 

160

Item 10.



BILL NO. 24-20  ORDINANCE NO. 24- 
 

BILL NO. 24-20  ORDINANCE NO. 24- 

special meeting the Councilmember attends while in office, payable on 

a monthly basis. per month during his tenure in office.  

C. That Ordinance 97-68 is repealed. 

 
EXPLANATION:   Matter shown above in bold-face/underlined font (except for Chapter title(s)) is 

added language.  Matter shown above in strikethrough font is deleted language. 
 

Section 2: All other Sections of the Municipal Code of the City of Republic, Missouri, not 
specifically referenced in this Ordinance shall remain unmodified and in full force 
and effect. 

 
Section 3: The City Administrator or his/her designee, on behalf of the City, is authorized to 

take the necessary steps to execute this Ordinance.  

Section 4:  The WHEREAS clauses above are specifically incorporated herein by reference. 
 

Section 5: The provisions of this Ordinance are severable, and if any provisions hereof are   
declared invalid, unconstitutional, or unenforceable, such determination shall not 
affect the validity of the remainder of this Ordinance.  

 
Section 6: This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage as 

provided by law. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Republic, Missouri, 
this _____ day of April, 2024. 
 
 
      __________________________________________ 
Attest:        Matt Russell, Mayor  
 
 
____________________________________ 
Laura Burbridge, City Clerk 
 
 

Approved as to Form:   

 

Megan McCullough, City Attorney  
 

Final Passage and Vote:   
 

 

161

Item 10.



 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM ANALYSIS 
 

Project/Issue Name: 24-R-14 A Resolution of the City Council Authorizing the City 
Administrator to Negotiate and Enter into an Agreement with Precision 
Construction & Contracting, LLC for Design Build Services for the New 
Tennis and Pickleball Facility at Miller Park.   
 

Submitted By: Jared Keeling, Parks & Recreation Director 

Date: Tuesday, April 2, 2024 
 

 

Issue Statement 

A Resolution awarding a contract for design-build services for new tennis and pickleball courts.   

Discussion and/or Analysis 

A formal Request for Qualifications was issued for the design-build construction delivery method of new 

tennis and pickleball courts to be located within Miller Park (711 E. Miller Road).  The project is to consist 

of 2-3 new tennis courts and 4-8 new pickleball courts as the budget will allow.  The Parks & Recreation 

Department has allocated a total of $650,000-$750,000 for this project.       

Four (4) design-build teams responded to the RFQ solicitation: 

 Branco Enterprises, Inc.  

 Crossland Construction Company, Inc.  

 McConnell & Associates 

 Precision Construction & Contracting, LLC 

Parks & Recreation staff conducted interviews with each team above on March 11th and 12th.  The firms 

were scored based upon their RFQ submittal response, the formal interview, and their proposal for the 

project submitted and presented at the time of the interview. 

Precision Construction & Contracting, LLC submitted a proposal for two (2) tennis courts and eight (8) 

pickleball courts using post-tension concrete construction within the budgeted parameters.      

Recommended Action 

Staff recommends approval.  

162

Item 11.



RESOLUTION NO. 24-R-14 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 24-R-14 1  
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL AUTHORIZING THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR TO NEGOTIATE 
AND ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT WITH PRECISION CONSTRUCTION & CONTRACTING, LLC FOR 

DESIGN BUILD SERVICES FOR THE NEW TENNIS AND PICKLEBALL FACILITY AT MILLER PARK 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Republic, Missouri (“City” or “Republic”) is a municipal corporation and 
Charter City located in Greene County, Missouri, being duly organized and existing under the laws of the 
State of Missouri; and 

 
WHEREAS, in February 2024, the City published a Request for Qualifications (RFQ) seeking 

qualified vendors to provide design build services for the construction of a new tennis and pickleball 
facility at Miller Park; and  

 
WHEREAS, the City received a total of four (4) submissions in response to its RFQ; and  

 
WHEREAS, after evaluating each response, City staff members ranked the submitting entities 

using defined scoring criteria, and determined Precision Construction & Contracting, LLC to be the most 
qualified to provide the services requested under the RFQ; and  

 
WHEREAS, based upon staff recommendations, the City Council finds it in the City’s best interest 

to enter into an agreement with Precision Construction & Contracting, LLC for provision of the services 
requested under the RFQ. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF REPUBLIC, MISSOURI, 

AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1. The City Administrator, and/or his designee, on behalf of the City, is authorized to 
negotiate and enter into an agreement with Precision Construction & Contracting, 
LLC for design build services for the construction of a new tennis and pickleball 
facility at Miller Park under terms consistent with the City’s Request for 
Qualifications attached hereto as “Attachment 1”. 

  
Section 2. The City Administrator, or his designee(s), on behalf of the City, is authorized to 

take other reasonable, necessary steps to implement this Resolution. 
 
Section 3.  The whereas clauses are specifically incorporated herein by reference.  

Section 4.  This Resolution shall take effect after passage as provided by law. 

PASSED AND APPROVED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Republic, Missouri, 
this __________ day of __________________, 2024. 
 
 
 
      __________________________________________ 
Attest:        Matt Russell, Mayor  
 
 
 
____________________________________ 

163

Item 11.



RESOLUTION NO. 24-R-14 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 24-R-14 2  
 

Laura Burbridge, City Clerk 
 
 
Approved as to Form:   

 
Megan McCullough, City Attorney  
 
 
Final Passage and Vote: 
 
 

164

Item 11.



 

 

REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS 

Title:  Professional Design-Build Services for New Tennis/Pickleball Facility  

RFQ Number: RFQ 24-3 

Request Date:  February 12, 2024   

Response Deadline:  

Monday, February 26, 2024 @ 2:00 PM 

Contact Person:  Jared Keeling 

Phone:  417-732-3500 

Email: jkeeling@republicmo.com  

About the City 

 
The City of Republic, Missouri, (“City”) was incorporated in 1871 and became a chartered city in 
2007.  The estimated population is approximately 19,136.  The City’s governing body consists of one 
(1) elected Mayor and eight (8) elected Council members, comprised of two (2) Councilmembers from 
each of the four (4) Wards of the City, each elected to a four (4) year term.  The City has a full-time 
City Administrator who reports to the Mayor and City Council and oversees daily operations. 
 
The City has the following departments:  Fire, Police, Parks and Recreation, Administration, Finance, 
Legal, Information Technology, Human Resources, Municipal Court and BUILDS, which includes 
Planning, Animal Control, Street, Utility and Wastewater.  The City employs approximately 150 full-
time personnel plus regular part time and temporary/seasonal personnel. 
 
The City covers an area of approximately 13.5 square miles and has over 150 acres of park land. The 
City has multiple facilities located within City limits including two (2) fire stations, one (1) police 
department, two (2) park gymnasiums (community center), one (1) aquatic center, one (1) city hall, 
one (1) planning and economic development building, one (1) public works building, and various other 
buildings/facilities that support City services.  
 

Background and RFQ Summary 

 
The City of Republic Parks & Recreation Department is currently accepting statements of 
qualifications from professional firms to provide design-build services for the construction of a new 
tennis and pickleball facility within Miller Park.   
 
It is the intent of the City of Republic Parks & Recreation Department to enter into an agreement with 
the Selected Entity (“Selected Entity”) for design-build services of the facility after scoring the 
qualification submittals and contract negotiation with the Selected Entity.  
 
Qualification submittals must be received at Republic City Hall (213 N. Main) in a sealed envelope 

that is clearly marked, “RFQ 24-3 – PROFESSIONAL DESIGN-BUILD SERVICES FOR NEW 

TENNIS/PICKLEBALL FACILITY” no later than 2:00 PM CST on Monday, February 26, 2024. 

Qualification Submittals will be opened and read aloud Monday, February 26, 2024 at 2:00 PM CST 

at City Hall 213 N Main St. Republic, MO 65738. 

  

165

Item 11.



 

 

I. SCOPE OF SERVICES 

 

a. The Services to be Provided:  The Selected Entity will be expected to provide the following 

Scope of Services, as directed by the City Council and/or authorized City staff: 

i. Provide design-build services for the construction of a new tennis and pickleball facility 
within Miller Park (711 E. Miller Road).  

ii. Provide expertise and knowledge in the design of this type of facility including 
specifications for construction based upon owner (Republic Parks & Recreation) needs, 
keeping in mind budget constraints.  

iii. Provide construction administration services for the facility ensuring the highest quality 

product.  

b. Secondary Tasks – Secondary tasks may include:  

i. None.  

c. Professional Services Agreement and Term:  The Selected Entity will be required to execute 

a Professional Services Agreement with the City for provision of the services specified under 
this RFQ, or alternatively, upon the City’s consent, a substantially similar written agreement 
setting forth the mutual understandings, rights and obligations of the Selected Entity and City 
collectively (“Agreement”).   

  

d. Minimum Professional Qualifications:   
i. All work or services pursuant to award under this RFQ shall be performed solely by 

duly licensed firm or otherwise authorized individuals employed by the Selected Entity, 

or their authorized agents, with the City’s prior consent.  
ii. The Selected Firm is expected to possess adequate organization, facilities, and 

personnel to ensure that all work or services being provided to the City under this RFQ 
are delivered in a prompt and efficient manner. 

iii. The Selected Firm must have significant prior experience in design-build of tennis and 
pickleball facilities. 

 
 

 
  

166

Item 11.



 

 

II. SUBMISSION INSTRUCTIONS AND PROCEDURES 

 

RFQ Schedule** 

 

Activity Date 

RFQ Distribution Monday, February 12, 2024 

RFQ Responses Due (“Response Deadline”) Monday, February 26, 2024 @ 2:00 PM 

Qualification Review Begins Tuesday, February 27, 2024 

Council Approval of Selected Firm/Agency Tuesday, March 5, 2024  

 

**The above schedule may be changed at the City’s sole discretion 

 

1. Timeliness and Rejection of Late Submissions:   

1.1. It is the sole responsibility of the submitting entity to see that submittals are received 
by the Response Deadline.  The submitting entity shall bear any and all risks for any 
delays associated with their Selected method of delivery or that are misdirected due 
to improper identification.   

1.2. Any submission received by the City after the Response Deadline will be rejected by 
the City as non-responsive.   

1.3. In the event of a late submission, the City will leave the response unopened and 
provide notice to the submitting party of the following: “The submitted qualification 
was received after the delivery time designated for the receipt of responses and 
therefore considered non-responsive.” 

 

2. Withdrawal: Any submittal may be withdrawn prior to the Response Deadline. Any 
submittal not withdrawn prior to the Response Deadline shall constitute an irrevocable 
offer to the City for a period of sixty (60) days following the Response Deadline. 
 

3. Addenda:  The issuance of a written addendum is the only official method whereby 
interpretation, clarification, or additional information as to a submission can be given. If 
any addenda are issued to the RFQ, the City will attempt to notify the submitting entity 
of such issuance. However, it shall remain the responsibility of the submitting entity to 
contact the Contact Person identified in this RFQ to confirm whether the addenda were 
made a part of the competitive qualification. 

3.1. Notwithstanding the above, the City reserves the right to request clarification of 

information submitted and to request additional information of one or more 
applicants. 

 

4. Modifications/Corrections:  Submitted qualifications may be corrected or modified, 
provided that the correction or modification is made in writing and is received by the City 
prior to the date and time identified as the Response Deadline in this RFQ.  After such 
date and time, the submitter may not modify or correct its submission except for extreme 
circumstances to be determined by the City in its sole discretion, and in no event in a 
manner prejudicial to the notions of fair competition or to the City. 

167

Item 11.



 

 

4.1. Notwithstanding the above, the City reserves the right to request clarification of 
information submitted and to request additional information of one or more 
applicants. 

5. Submitter’s Responsibility to Ensure Completeness and Compliance:  

5.1. Each submitting entity must examine all RFQ documents to ensure the adequacy and 
accuracy of such documents prior to submitting the same to the City.  

5.2. Any inquiries, suggestions, or requests concerning interpretation, clarification, or 
additional information pertaining to the RFQ shall be made in writing and directed 
to the Contact Person identified in this RFQ, in advance of the Response Deadline.   

5.3. Generally, responses that do not include all required information will be deemed non-

responsive and disqualified accordingly.   

5.4. Notwithstanding the above, the City reserves the right to waive any informalities, 
irregularities, or variances, whether technical or substantive in nature, or reject any 
and all responses at its sole discretion.  

 

6. Oral/Verbal Interpretations.  The City shall not be responsible for verbal/oral 
interpretation given by any City employee, representative, or others.  
 

7. Preparation Expenses.  Each submitting entity preparing a response to the RFQ shall bear 
all expenses associated with its preparation and any subsequent and related expenses, and 
no claims for reimbursement shall be submitted to the City for the expense of preparation 
or presentation. 
 

8. Format of Submissions.  One (1) original and one (1) copy for a total of two (2) 

responses must be submitted. The envelope or package containing the responses must be 
clearly marked/labeled as follows: 
 

City of Republic 
Attn: Jared Keeling 

213 North Main Avenue 
Republic, MO 65738 
RFQ #:  RFQ 24-3 

 

9. Minority and Women-Owned Businesses. The City expressly encourages responses to 
this RFQ from disadvantaged, minority and women-owned businesses. 
 

10. Openness of Procurement Process.   

10.1. Written responses, other discussions, correspondence, and all other pertinent records 
shall be handled as public records in compliance with State and Federal open records 
statutes and regulations.  

10.2. Other than the initial period wherein the responses are being evaluated, the City 
gives no assurance as to the confidentiality of any portion of any document once 
submitted.  

10.3. All documents relating to this RFQ, subsequent submittals and meetings with the 

168

Item 11.



 

 

City Council are subject to statutory requirements of the Missouri Sunshine Law. 
 

11. Errors and Omissions.  Once a qualification is submitted, the City may consider written 
requests by any submitting entity to correct errors or omissions, but shall retain sole 
discretionary authority to determine the outcome of such a request.  

 

12. Retention and Disposal of Statements of Qualifications.  The City reserves the right to 
retain all submitted statements for public record keeping purposes. No copies of any 
material will be returned to the submitting entity. The City reserves the right to cancel this 
RFQ at any time prior to execution of an Agreement, and retains sole discretion as to 
whether such cancellation will be made. 

 

13. Collusion.   

13.1. By offering a response to this RFQ, the submitting entity certifies that they have not 
divulged to or discussed or compared its submittal with any competitors, and have 
not colluded with any other submitting entity or third person/party relating in any 
way to this process whatsoever.  

13.2. By submitting a response to this RFQ, the submitting entity certifies that:  

13.2.1. No attempt has been made or will be made by the submitting entity to induce 
any other person or entity to submit or not to submit a Statement of 
Qualification for the purpose of restricting competition. 

13.2.2. All persons interested in this service, principal, or principals being named 
therein and no other person have an interest in this service or in the 

Agreement to be entered into. 

13.2.3. No person or entity has been employed or retained to solicit or secure this 
Agreement upon an agreement or understating for a commission, 
percentage, brokerage, or contingent fee, accepting bona fide employees or 
established commercial agencies maintained by the consultant for the 
purpose of doing business. 

 

14. Conferences.   

14.1. Conferences for prospective submitting entities will be scheduled upon request, and 
as time allows, providing for interviews with key City staff.   

14.2. These sessions can provide an opportunity for the City to respond to questions about 
the requested work.  

14.3. Conferences are not mandatory but are highly recommended.  

14.4. Due to the desire to complete the selection process quickly, only substantive issues 
discovered in individual conferences will be formalized and distributed in an RFQ 
Addendum.  

14.5. Substantive issues should be generally limited to correcting errors or omissions in 
the RFQ, alterations or modification to the scope of services or the proposed contract 
for services, however, the City retains sole discretion to determine the content or 
need for a formal Addendum. 

169

Item 11.



 

 

 

15. Rejection of Responses.  The City may reject responses if: 

15.1. The submitting entity misstates or conceals any material fact in the qualifications. 

15.2. The rejection of all responses is deemed to be in the best interest of the City. 
 

 

III. SUBMISSION CONTENTS REQUIREMENTS  

Any documents submitted in response to this RFQ must provide sufficient detail and 
information so as to allow a complete evaluation of its merit. The instructions contained herein 
must be followed in order for competitive responses to be considered responsive to this RFQ.  

All entities responding to this RFQ shall provide sufficient information and data to fully allow 
a complete evaluation of their qualifications. Information and data submitted by each submitting 
entity with the qualification shall become part of the contract documents. 

Responses must generally conform to the following format: 

1. Cover Letter 

2. Table of Contents 

3. Sections 

(1) Introduction and Execution 

(2) Qualifications of Firm  

(3) Qualifications of Staff 

(4) Familiarity with Design-Build and Relevant Experience in 

Tennis/Pickleball Facilities  

(5) References 

(6) Technical Approach 

(7) E-Verify and Other Information 
 

1. Section 1 – Introduction and Executed Signature Page: 

1.1. The introduction section must contain an overview of the submitting entity. 

1.2. The introduction must clearly indicate the legal name, address, telephone number, 
and local contact information (if available) of the submitting entity. 

1.3. The introduction must indicate whether the submitting entity is a corporation, general 
partnership, individual or other business entity.  

1.4. The introduction must include a statement to the effect that:  “The Submission of this 

Statement of Qualifications indicates acceptance by the submitting entity of the 
stipulations contained in the Request for Qualifications.” 

1.5. The statement must be signed above the typed or printed name and title of the signer. 
The signer must have the authority to bind the submitting entity to the submitted 
response. 

2. Section 2 – Qualifications of Submitting Entity: 

2.1. Provide a brief description and history of the submitting entity (if applicable).  

2.2. Provide description of the submitting entity’s relevant experience demonstrating 

170

Item 11.



 

 

current capacity, familiarity and expertise in design-build of tennis and pickleball 
facility projects, particularly specifying any experience on behalf of governmental or 
municipal clients.  

2.3. Provide an organizational chart (or equivalent) generally demonstrating the structure 
of the submitting entity. 

2.4. State the number and nature of the staff employed with the submitting entity and the 
office in which the bulk of the services will be performed. 

3. Section 3 – Descriptions and Qualifications of Staff: 

3.1. Provide the name(s), title(s) and resume(s) (or equivalent information) of the lead 
person who will be primarily responsible for the coordination, management and 

execution of the Scope of Services in this RFQ.  

3.2. Provide the name(s), title(s) and resume(s) (or equivalent information) of other 
professionals and any employees/assistants who will be expected to perform or assist 
with the Scope of Services in this RFQ. 

3.3. For each individual identified in this Section, provide their respective years of 
experience with the submitting entity (if applicable), years of experience in or with the 
provision of the services sought under the RFQ, and any particular expertise or 
specialty training in provision of the services sought under this RFQ.  

3.4. For each individual identified in this Section, disclose any investigations or 
disciplinary action taken previously or pending by national or state regulatory bodies 
against such individual(s). 

4. Section 4 – Familiarity with Design-Build and Relevant Experience in 

Tennis/Pickleball Facilities: 

4.1. Provide a list recent experience from the last 10 years demonstrating current capacity, 
familiarity, and expertise in best practices concerning design-build of tennis and 
pickleball facilities. 

4.2. Illustrate how previous experience within the area may be of benefit in the execution 
of the Scope of Services under this RFQ. 

5. Section 5 – References: 

5.1. Provide at least five (5) professional references for which the submitting entity has 
performed services within the past two (2) years that are similar to the requirements 
in the Scope of Services.  

5.1.1. Preference will be given to those submitting entities who are able to 
demonstrate at least three (3) professional references from 
governmental/municipal clients for whom the submitting entity provided 
services similar to those specified in this RFQ.  

5.2. Provide the reference contact name, address, e-mail address, telephone numbers and 
a summary and date of the services provided. 

6. Section 6 – Technical Approach and Plan for Services: 

6.1. Provide a description of the submitting entity’s technical approach generally 
employed for the coordination and facilitation of design-build services for tennis and 

171

Item 11.



 

 

pickleball facilites.  

6.2. Provide a description of the technical approach the submitting entity will employ 
specific to the provision of services under this RFP (“Plan for Services”).  The Plan 
for Services should plainly convey the submitting entity’s understanding of the scope 
of work and its suggested approach to be taken in order to maximize value to the City 
The Plan for Services should include the following:  

6.2.1. A detailed description of the proposed management structure, including but 
not limited to, team organization, roles and responsibilities, program 
monitoring procedures, and communication mechanisms. 

7. Section 7 – E-Verify and Other Information: 

7.1. For any contract for services greater than $5,000, the successful bidder shall comply 
with § 285.530, RSMo, as amended, and: 

7.1.1. Provide by sworn affidavit affirmation that it does not knowingly employ any 
person who is an unauthorized alien and  

7.1.2. Provide documentation affirming its enrollment and participation in a federal 
work authorization program with respect to the employees working in 
connection with this contract.   

7.2. The required documentation affirming enrollment must be from the federal work 
authorization program provider.   

7.3. Responses must include the signed and notarized Work Authorization Affidavit and 
the electronic signature page from the E-Verify program.  A letter from the bidder or 
respondent reciting compliance is not sufficient.   

 

IV. EVALUATION CRITERIA 

 

1. Overview:  All responses will be evaluated by a selection committee comprised of City 
staff members.  Responses will be evaluated with respect to the completeness of the 
information provided, support for all claims made, and the overall approach taken. 
 

2. Specific Criteria Considered: The following criteria will be utilized in the technical 

evaluation of qualifications: 

2.1. Experience and qualifications of the submitting entity. 

2.2. Experience of the submitting entity with similar engagements, particularly involving 
governmental or municipal entity client services. 

2.3. Qualifications of key staff to perform Scope of Services under the RFQ. 

2.4. Projected timeframe and ability to provide services throughout duration of the period 
desired. 

2.5. Thoroughness of material submitted. 

2.6. Reports from references. 

 

3. Required Licensure/Certification.  Award under this RFP will only be given to an entity 
or entities possessing all required registrations, certifications and/or licenses as required 

172

Item 11.



 

 

by Missouri or other applicable law.  

 

4. Other reservations / terms:  

4.1. The City will select and negotiate with those submitting entities whose submittals are 
responsive to this RFQ and are in the best interest of the City.  

4.2. The City reserves the right to contract with one or more submitting entity for any one 
or more of the services set forth in the Scope of Services. 

4.3. The City reserves the right to reject any and all qualifications or other submissions 
provided to the City in response to this RFQ. 

173

Item 11.



 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM ANALYSIS 
 

Project/Issue Name: 24-R-15 A Resolution of the City Council Awarding the Bid for the City’s 
2024 Paving Overlays and Builds Parking Lot Paving to Blevins Asphalt 
Construction Company, Inc. 

Submitted By: Angel Falig, City Engineer 

Date: April 2, 2024 
 

 

Issue Statement 

To award a bid for 2024 City overlays and the Builds Lot Paving to Blevins Asphalt. 

Discussion and/or Analysis 

The City requested bids for 2024 City Overlays and the Builds Lot Paving.  Staff had placed all these projects 

together in one Invitation for Bid, to encourage a more competitive price for the bundled work. The City 

received 3 bids from local contractors. 

Blevins Asphalt was the lowest bidder for both the 2024 City Overlays and the Builds Lot Paving at $75.50 

per ton asphalt and $2.20 per square yard of Milling, with a maximum not to exceed amount of 

$650,000.00. The Builds Lot Paving will be paid for by the Capital, Project fund.  The 2024 City Overlays 

will be paid for by the Street Resurfacing fund. 

Recommended Action 

Staff recommends approval. 

 

174

Item 12.



RESOLUTION NO. 24-R-15 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 24-R-15 1  

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL AWARDING THE BID FOR THE CITY’S 2024 PAVING OVERLAYS 
AND BUILDS PARKING LOT PAVING TO BLEVINS ASPHALT CONSTRUCTION COMPANY, INC. 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Republic, Missouri (“City” or “Republic”) is a municipal corporation and 

Charter City located in Greene County, Missouri, being duly created, organized, and existing under the 

laws of the State of Missouri; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City published an Invitation for Bids (“IFB”) for paving and overlay work to be 

performed on the parking lot of the BUILDS Department and various City streets as identified in the 
City’s 2024 overlay plans (“Project”); and 
 

WHEREAS, the City received a total of three (3) bids in response to its IFB; and  
 
WHEREAS, after hearing presentation and recommendations by City staff, the City Council 

desires to accept the bid submitted by Blevins Asphalt Construction Company, Inc. (“Blevins”), as it 
appears to demonstrate the necessary qualifications for a responsible bid and is the lowest cost to 
the City at an estimated total expenditure of $650,000.00. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF REPUBLIC, MISSOURI, 

AS FOLLOWS: 

 
Section 1.  The submitted bid from Blevins Asphalt Construction Company, Inc., attached and 

labeled “Exhibit 1” and expressly incorporated herein, is accepted for the Project 

at the estimated cost(s) shown thereon, but in no event to exceed a total of 

$650,000 without separate, additional approval from Council. 

 
Section 2.   The City Administrator, and his/her designee, on behalf of the City, is authorized 

to take the necessary steps to execute this Resolution. 

 

Section 3.  The whereas clauses are specifically incorporated herein by reference.  

 

Section 4.  This Resolution shall take effect after passage as provided by law.  

 
PASSED AND APPROVED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Republic, Missouri, 

this __________ day of __________________, 2024. 

 

      __________________________________________ 

Attest:        Matt Russell, Mayor 

 

____________________________________ 

Laura Burbridge, City Clerk 

 

Approved as to Form:   

175

Item 12.



RESOLUTION NO. 24-R-15 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 24-R-15 2  

 
Megan McCullough, City Attorney  
 
 
Final Passage and Vote: 

 

 
 

176

Item 12.



REPUBLIC
h{tsI,)l.iR1

Addendum to lnvitation for Bid
2024 City Pavement Overlays

Addendum # 2

3-19-2024

This is Addendum #2 to the lnvitation for Bids above.

1. Revision to SY amount on Exhibit 1.

2. Addition of Exhibit 3 - Road Widening Detai!
3. See attached RFI responses.

End of Addendum #2

Any questions regarding this addendum may be directed as follows:

Angel Falig
City Engineer
BUILDS Department
City of Republic, Missouri
4L7.732341s
afalis@ republicmo.com

177

Item 12.



REPUBLIC
MISSOURI

City of Republic - lnvitation for Bid
2024 Ctty Pavement Overl ays

BID SUBMISSION DUE DATEfIIME: Bids must be physically received at the Return location listed below by no later than
the date and time set for the Bid Opening, as specified below.

BID OPENING: Bids willbe opened at City Hall, located at 213 N. Main Avenue in Republic, MO 65738 on Thursday, March
21't,2024, at 3:00 pm,

RETURN T0: Laura Burbridge, City Clerk, located at 213 N. Main Avenue in Republic, MO 65738

RULES AND REQUIREMENTS FOR BlD SUBMISSION:

. Bids must be submitted on the forms provided and must be manually signed by the individual authorized to legally bind
the Bidder. Bidders can add their own sheets for clarification of pricing on ce(ain products if they choose.

. Bids shall be submitted with the lnvitation for Bid ('!FB') project name or item clearly indicated on the outside of
the mailing envelope.

o Bids received after the opening date and time wil! be rejected.
o The attached Terms and Conditions shall become part of and are herein expressly incorporated into any contract,

agreement or award resulting from this lnvitation for Bid.
o FAXED/E-MAILED BIDS WILL NOT BEACCEPTED.
o Projects exceeding $75,000 in total cost shall be paid at current wage order for prevailinq waqe,
o You are invited to submit your Bid to furnish the materials and/or services described herein.
. Please submit your pricesffees net of alldiscounts. Bidders do not necessarily need to bid all requested categories, but it

is encouraged.

DESCRIPTION:
. City Overlays: May Award All or Portion thereof

o W Olive St - Mill and Fill 2" from State Hwy 174 to N Main St approximately 1,987 lf.

' N Maple Ave. - 2" Overlay from E Elm St to E Harrison St approximately 451 lf.

' N Forest Ln. - Mill and Fill 2" from W Hines St to W Logan St approximately 419 lf.I E Mill St. - Overlay 2" from S Main St to S Fountain Ave approximately 1,709 lf.o E Rosewood St - Mill and fill 2" from East Ave to S Pinewood Ave approximately 4,293 lf.

' N Boston Ln - Overlay 2" from State Hwy 174 to northern city limits (656 lf north of E Wilson St), Total
proposed length of approximately 2,148lf .

o N Fountain Ave. - overlay 2" heading north of Elm st approximately 703 lf.o s Fountain Ave. - overlay 2" heading south of Elm st approximately 52'l lf.o N Main St. - Widening of Main St approximately 0-2 ft with edge treatment on each side and 2" Overlay
from State Hvty 174 to 532 lf north of E Lapsis St. Total proposed length of approximately 3,055 lf. Note
that wldening widths and edge treatment will vary through the full length of N Main baied on existing
conditions, however, edge treatment will be limited to 2 ft maximum.o W Farm Road 156 - Oveday 2" from James River Freeway to a length of approximately 1,535 lf.o W Oneal Rd. - Overlay 2" frcm S Kansas Avenue to US State Hwy 60 approximately 2,1631,..o E Harrison St - Overlay 2" from US State Hwy 60 to N Lynn Ave approximately 2,683 lf.

178

Item 12.



Additive:
Builds Lot Paving - Subgrade leveling and compaction, with 2'asphalt overlay (7,324 SY) for existing
gravel parking area and 5" asphalt overlay (1,210.2 SY) of existing gravel driveway,

Refer to Exhibit I for additional information on Paving Plan. Bid to include transition milling where required
to match intersecting roadways. Pavement edge treatment may be required in certain areas depending on
flnished surface. Paving Mixture for oveday shall be BP-1 or equivalent. Bids must include 3d party testing
not limited to base course and subgrade density and moisture content tests, asphalt density tests, and core
depth verification. Bids must include pavement striping/marking and related striping plan covering all areas
indicated in this package. The unit costs for asphalt shall be specilled in tons; milling shall be specified rn

SY;and pavement striping inLF. Refer to Exhibit 2lor additive bid item BUILDS lot paving. City of Republic
Conshuction Specifications will apply unless otherwise noted.

179

Item 12.



Sq. Yds.

8430 5.Y

6254SY

l€ngth (fr.)

WOver 3055ft.

2" 2763ft.

2" 2148 ft.

& Fill 2. 2080 ft.

z', 26&3 ft.

1709 ft.2"

153s ft.

N MAIN

W ONEAL

N

E Hanison

E MILL:

N FOREST

N FOUNIAIN

S FOUNIAIN

N MAPLE

1987 ft.

419 ft.

703 ft.

s21 ft.

451 ft.

4858

5981

SJZb

3515

4194

3662

120',!

1265

840

800

5Y

SY

SY

SV

SY

SY

SY

SY

& Fill

& Fill 2-

2"

2"

2"

T 46326 SY

Ptanni,4_Paved
,+s*e*-pl36pgf,

(0BtrLDs
:---

i

*

E.

i

i-.

!

...

I

180

Item 12.



SUILDS
Lot

Paving

zt'

5 ;

2" 7323.7 sqYd

5" 1210.19 sqYd

A
0 40 80 !60
F---r-r--*-*---+---+----l-{

F€et

t€tHuldosXy'E

Typc Squar* Yds

Exhibit 2 - BUILDS Lot Paving

;Mtil

tr

t

a ....,. ..d
xu

il
i,

&N
;tts

,iE
iE,

t

$st

*}N

t

'.r.'iinl

ffi

181

Item 12.



Fz
I.JJ

HH
l* LU

dBP
TETUF
O- ^x Co

TUIx=ru
E'l.r
t-Og=*o

ot

aa
IU
J:zl
-()
4+mF
Gtr) :
R6D
XH
u=wt
I tIJ

=Ecio
Hfi
=>AO
EX'lo
r{

d]
d]

(L

(o
I

$
ui
@

m
J

z
o
tr(L
o

F
{(r*
{r}{
N

LU
I,JJa
J
ai

J{
u
Et!
:F

N

I

,

FtlllI
(r1

182

Item 12.



SCHEDULE:
Prebid l\,,leeting Will be held at 4221 S Wilson's Creek Blvd (Builds Large Conference Room), Republic MO

65738, on Friday, March lsth, 2024, at 11:30am for any contractors who would like to attend.

City intends to take the winning bid to City Council for Approval April 2"d, 2024, for approval, with Notice to
Proceed to follow no later than April 24th,2424. Completion of City Overlays and related Striping shall be

July 3'1.t, 2024, Liquidated Damages will apply if work is not completed, or streets are not open to traffic on or
before August gti, 2024.

lnquiries: All inquiries for informatron should be directed to

Brian Dye, Project lVanager

BUILDS Department, City of Republic
bdye@republicmo.com
(417)732-U08

lmponant Notice Regarding Competitive Bidding:

It is the City's intent and desire that this lnvitation for Bid promotes competitive Bidding, To the extent
any language, requirements, terms and/or requests contained within this lnvitation for Bid result in the elimination
of all but one source from which a responsive and responsible Bid may be submitted, such reshiction/limitation is

not intended by the City but is merely an u nintentional error. ln the event such ermr is discovered by any potential

Bidder, the potential Bidder must notify the City contact listed above of the error, in writing, no later than three (3)

days prior to lhe Bid opening day. Upon receipt of any such notice, the City will take reasonable efforts to correct
the error and resubmit the lnvitation for Bid once corrected.

183

Item 12.



TERMS AND CONDITIONS

Opening Location: Bids submitted in response to this lnvitation for Bid ("lFB") will be opened at Republic
City Hall, located at 2'13 N. Itlain Avenue, on 3:00 P.ttil. on Thurcdav. March 21.2024, All Bidders (individually,
"Biddef; collectively, "Bidders')and/or their authorized representative(s) are permifted to attend the opening ofthe
Bids.

IFB Delivery Requirements: Any Bids received after the above stated time and date will not be considered. lt
shall be the sole responsibility of the Bidderlo have their Bid delivered to Republic City Hallfor receipt on or before
the due date and time indicated.

a. lf a Bid is sent by U.S. Mail, the Bidder shall be responsible for its timely delivery to Republic City Hall,

b. Bids delayed by mail shall not be considered, shall not be opened, and shall be rejecled.
c. Arrangements may be made for their return at the Bidde/s request andexpense.

d. Bids may be mailed to Republic City Hall and accepted if the signed Bid form and requiredinformation
was mailed and received prior to the due date and time,

e. Bids sent by emailwill not be accepted,

Sealed and Marked: lf sent by mail, one original signed Bid shall be submitted in one sealed package, clearly
marked on the outside ofthe package with the IFB project name clearly indicated on the outside of the mailing
envelope and addressed to;

City of Republic
C/0 City Cle*, Laura Budddge
2'13 N, Main

Republic ltlo 65738

03 Legal Name and Signature: Bids shall cleariy indicate the legal name, address, and telephone number of the
Bidder (company, firm, corporation, partnership, or individual).

a. Bids shall be manually signed above the printed name and title of signer on the Afiidavit of Compliance
page.

b. Thesignershall have the authority to bind the Bidder to the submitted Bid.

c. Failure to properly sign the Bid form shall invalidate the Bid, and it shall not be considered for award.

04 Conections: No erasures are permitted.

a. ln the event a correction is necessary, in order for the City to consider the conection, the following
formatting musl be applied:

1. A single line (strike{hough) to the entered text needing correction, and

2. The correcled text written above the strike{hrough text, and

3. The signe(s) of the Bid must initial all corrections.

05. Clarification and Addenda: Bidders are expected to examine all documents attached to and/or provided by the
City with this lFB, and prior to submitting any Bid in response to this lFB, make any necessary and/or reasonable
inquiries ofthe City to ensure all such Bidders understand the entirety ofthe documents.

a. Any inquiries or suggestions concerning interpretation, clarification, or other additional information
pertaining to the IFB shall be made thmugh the listed City contact in writing (email is permitted),

b. The City of Republic shall not be responsible for verbal interprelalions or other information given by any
individual purporting to be employed by or othenvise representing the City.

c. The issuance of written addenda is the official method whereby interpretation, clarification, or additional
information can be given.

d. lt shall be the responsibility of each Bidder, prior to submitting their Bid, to direct any inquiries to the listed
City contact.

06 IFB Expenses: There is no expressed or implied obligation for the City of Republic to reimburse responding

02.

01.

184

Item 12.



07.

08

09

11.

72

Bidders and the City will nol reimburse for any expenses incurred in preparing responses to this lFB.

Bid Security: All Bids must be accompanied by a Bid Security, which shall constitute the Bidder's guarantee that,
if awarded the contract under this lFB, the Bidder will promptly execute all contract documents and other documents
required under this lFB, and will furnish good and sufficient bond for the performance of the same,

The Bid Security shall consist of a certified check, cashieis check or a Bid bond, guaranteed by a surety
company authorized by the Director of the Missouri Department of lnsurance and Commerce to conduct
surety business in the state of Missouri, in an amount no less than ten percent ('100/o) of the Bid, and made
payable to the City of Republic.

a

b. Bids submitted without the required Bid Security will not be considered for award under this lFB.

The Bid Securities of all Bidders, excepl for the three apparent lowest Bidders, will be retumed as soon

as reasonably possible after the opening and review of Bids.

d. The City shall have the right to retain the Bid Security of the three apparent lowest Bidders until either:
(1) all contract documents have been duly executed and all required bonds and proof of insurance,
including certificates of insurance, have been furnished by the Bidder to the City; or (2) all Bids have been

rejected, whichever occurs Ilrst.

lrrevocable offer: Any Bid may be withdrawn up until the due date and time set for opening of the IFB. Any Bid

not so withdrawn shall, upon openrng, constitute an irrevocable offer for a minimum period ol ninety (90) days to
provide to the City the goods or services set forth in the lFB, until one or more of lhe Bids have been duly accepted

by the City.

Responsive and Responsible Bidder: To be a responsive Bidder, a Bidder shall submit a Bid which conforms

inall material respects to the requirements set forth inthe lFB. Tobe a responsible Bidder, the Bidder shall have

the capability in all respects to perform fully the contract requirements, and the tenacity, perseverance, experience,

integrity, reliability, capacity, facilities, equipment and credit which will ensure good faith performance. The lowest
responsible Bidder shall mean the Bidder who makes the lowest Bid to sell goods or services of a quality which

conforms closest to the quality of goods or services set forth in the speciflcations or otherwise required by the City

and who is known to be lit and capable to perform the Bid as made,

Reserved Rights: The Cily reserves the right to make such investigations as it deems necessary to make the
detennination of the Biddels responsiveness and responsibility. Such information may include but shall not be

limited to current financial statements, veriflcationof availability of equipment and personnel, and past performance

records.

The Right to Audit: The Bidder agrees to furnish supporting detail as may be required by the City to support
charges or invoices, to make available for audit purposes all records covering charges pertinent tothe purchase,

and to make appropriate adjustments in the event discrepancies are found.

a. The City shall have the right to audit the Bidder's records pertaining to the woruproduct for a period of
three (3) years after final payment.

b. The cost of any aud it conducted pursuant to this term will bepaid bythe City,

Applicable Law: All applicable laws and regulations of the State of Missouri and the City including the City
Procurement Regulations and Procedures will apply to any resulling agreement, contract, or purchase order
entered into under the terms of this lFB. Any involvement with the City Procurement shall be in accordance with
the Procurement Regulations and Procedures.

Right to Protest: Appeals and remedies are provided for in the City Procurement Regulations.
a. Protestors shall seek resolution of their complaints initially with the City Purchasing Agent,

c

10.

13.

185

Item 12.



14

15.

16.

t7

b. Any protest shall state the basis upon which the solicitation or awad is contested and shall be submitted

within ten (10) calendar days after such aggrieved person knew or could have reasonably been expected
to know of the facts giving risethereto.

Ethical Standards Applicable: With respect to this lFB, if any Bidder violates or is a party to a violation of the
general ethical standards of the City Procurement Code or the State of Missouri Statues, such Bidder will be
disqualified from furnishing the goods or services for which the Bid is submitted and shall be further disqualified
from submitting any future Bids.

Collusion Absolutely Prohibited: All Bidders offering a submission in response to this IFB hereby expressly
acknowledge and certify that they have not divulged, discussed, or compared their Bid to the Bids of any other
Bidde(s), and further that they have not colluded or conspired with any other Bidder or parties to this lFB, to violate
the terms and conditions goveming submission of responses to this IFB whatsoever. All Bidders offering a
submission in response to this IFB additionally promise that:

a. Any prices and/or mst data submitted have been anived al independently, without consultation,

communication, or agreemenl for the purpose of reskicting competition, as to any matter relating to such
prices and/or cost data, with any other Bidder or with any competitor.

b. Any prices and/or mst data submitted have not knowingly been disclosed by the Bidder and will not

knowingly be disclosed by the Bidder prior to the scheduled opening directly or indirectly to any other Bidder

or to any competitor.

c. No attempt has been made or will be made by the Bidder to induce any other person or lirm to submit or
not to submit a Bid for the purpose of reslricting competition.

d. The only person or persons interested in this Bid, principal or principals are named therein and that no
person other lhan therein mentioned has any interest in this Bid or in any contracl awarded under this lFB.

No person or agency has been employed or retained to solicit or secure the contract awarded under this
IFB upon an agreement or understanding for a commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent fee
exempling bona fide employees or established commercial agencies maintained by the Purchaserfor the
purpose of doing business,

Contract Forms: Any agreement, contract, or purchase order resulting from the acceptance of a Bid shall be on
forms either supplied by or approved by the City.

Liability and lndemnity:
a. ln no event shall the City be liable to the successful Bidder for special, indirect, liquidated, incidental, or

consequential damages, except those caused by the City's gross negligence or willful or wanton
misconduct arising out of or in any way connected with a breach of any agreement or contract under the
terms of this lFB. The maximum liability of the City shall be limited to the amount of money to be paid or
received by the City under any agreement or contract awarded under the terms of this lFB.

b. The successful Bidder shalldefend, indemnify and save harmless the City, its elected or appointed offlcials,
agents and employees from and against any and allliability, suits, damages, costs (including attorneyfees),
losses, outlays, expenses, and claims, caused or allegedly caused by, or arising out of or related in any
way whatsoever to (1) any agreemenl or contract awarded under this lFB, or (2) the work performed

pursuant to such contract or agreement or any subcontract thereunder (the successful Bidder expressly
acknowledging and assuming full responsibility for its subcontractors), including, but not limited to, claims
for personal injuries, death, property damage, or for any other alleged damages.

c. The successful Bidder shall indemnify and hold the City harmless from allwages orovertime compensation

due any employees in rendering services pursuantto this agreementor any subcontract, including payment

of reasonable attorneys' fees and costs in the defense of any claim made under the Fair Labor Standards
Act, the Missouri Prevailing Wage Law or any other federal or state law.

IFB Forms, Varianc$, and Alternates: Bids must be submitted on the forms attached to this IFB as provided by
the City; however, additional information may be attached. Bidders must indicate any variances from the City

requested specilications and/or terms and conditions, on the IFB Affidavit of Compliance. Otherwise, Bidders must

18.

186

Item 12.



19.

20.

2L,

22

25.

fully comply with the City requested specifications and terms and conditions. Alternate Bids may or may not be

considered at the sole discretion of lhe City Purchasing Agent,

Bid Form: All blank spaces must be completed with the appropriate response.

a. Bidders must state the price, written in ink, for what is proposed to complete each item of the project

b. Bidders must insert the words 'no Bid" in the space provided for any rtem for which no Bid is made,

c. Bidders must submit an executed Bid form, affidavit of compliance Mth other requested documents.

No Bid: ll not submitting a Bid, respond by returning the "Statement of No Bid" no later than the statedBid opening

time and date, and explain the reason in the space provided.

Errors in Bids: Bidders are expected to fully inform themselves as to the conditions, requirements, and

specifications before submitting Bids; failure to do so will be at the Biddels own risk. Applicable law and reg ulations

do not make allowance for errors either of omission or inclusion on the part of Bidders. ln case an error regarding

extension of prices in the Bid, the unit price shallgovern.

Prices:
a.

Bids must include bolh unil price and extended total.

Price must be stated in units of quantity specified in the Bidding specifications. In case of discrepancy in

computing the amount of the Bid, the unit price of the Bid will govem.

All prices shall be F.0,B. destination, freight prepaid (unless otherwise stated in special conditions). FoB,
as used in this lFB, shall mean that the successful Bidder, at their own expense, shall transport the
equipment and/or materials and bearthe riskof loss from successful Biddels location to a specilied location

in the City of Republic. City shall not take title to the materials orEuipment until it is delivered and accepted

by City at the address specified within the City 0f Republic.

Each item must be Bid separately, and no attempt is to be made to tie any item or items in with any other
item or items.

lf a Bidder offers a discount on payment lerms, the discount time will be computed from the date of
satisfactory delivery at place of acceptance and receipt of conect invoice al the ofiice specified,
Payment terms shall be Net 30 if not otheruise specified.

Prepayment terms are not acceptable.

b

c.

d.

e.
f.

24 Discounts: Any and all discounts, except cash discounts for prompt payments, must be incorporated as a reduction
in the Bid price and not shown separately. The price as shown on the Bid shall be the price used in the City's
determination of award(s).

Descriptive lnformation: All equipment, materials, and articles incorporated in the producuwork coveredby this
IFB are to be new and of suitable grade for the pupose intended.

a. Brand or trade names referenced in specifications are for comparison purposes only.
b. Bidders may submit Bids on items manufactured by an individual/entity other than the manufacturer

specilled so long as an "or equal" is expressly stated,

Deviations to Specifications and Requirementst When Bidding on an "or equal," Bids must be accompanied
with all descriptive information necessary for an evaluation of the poposed material orequipment such as the
detailed drawings and specifications, certilled operation and test data, and experience records.

a. Failure of any Bidder to fumish the dala necessary lo determine whether the product is equivalent, may be
cause for relection of the speciflc item(s) to which it pertains.

b. All deviations from the specifications must be noted in detail by the Bidder on the Affidavit of Compliance
form, at the time of submittal of Bid.

26

tlrodifications or Withdrawal of Bid: A modification of a Bid already submitted will be considered only if the
modification is received prior to the time announced for opening of Bids, and is made in writing; executed and

submitted on the same form and manner as the original Bid. Modifications submitted by telephone, fax, or email
will not be considered,

23.

187

Item 12.



30

c. The absence of listed deviations at the time of submitlal ofthe Bid will hold the Bidder strictly accountable

to the specilications as written.

d. Any deviation from the specifications as written and accepted by the City may be grounds for relection of
the material and/or eqUipment when delivered.

Quality Guaran$: lf any product delivered does not meet applicable specifications or otherwise fails to compare
with the quality represented by the Bidder, the Bidder shall retrieve the product lrom the City as its own expense.
The Bidder shall refund to the City any money the City has remitted to the Bidder for same. In the event the
successful Bidder fails or refuses to retrieve the product and refund to the City any money previously remitted to
the Bidder for such product in accord with the terms of this paragraph, the Bidder shall be responsible for the City's
attorney fees and other costs it incurs in enforcing its rights under this paragraph.

28 Quality Terms: The City reserves the right to reject any or all materials if, in its judgment, the item reflecls
unsatisfactory workmanship, manufacturing, or shipping damages.

29. Tax.Exempt: The City is exempt from sales taxes and Federal Excise Taxes: Missouri Tax lD Number 12492990,

Bid Awards: Awards will be made to the Bidder whose Bid (1) meets the specifications and all other requirements
of the IFB and (2) is the lowest and best Bid, considering price, delivery, responsibility of the Bidder, and all other
relevant factors.

a. Unless othen /ise slaled in the lFB, cash dismunts for prompt paymenl of invoices will not be considered

in the evaluation of prices. However, such discounts are encouraged to motivate prompt payment.

b. As the best interest of the City may require, the right is reserved to make awards by item, group(s) of
items, all or none or a combinalion thereof; and to rqect any and all Bids or waive any minor or non-

material irregularity or technicality in Bids received.

31. Authorized Product Representation: The successful Bidde(s) by virtue of submittrng the name and specifications
ofa manufacturels product will be required to furnish the named manufacture/s product. By virtue of submission

of the stated documents, it will be presumed by the City that the Bidde(s) is legally authorized to submit and the
successful Bidde(s)will be legally bound lo perform according to the documents.

32. Regulations: lt shall be the responsibility of each Bidder to assure compliance with 0SHA, EPA, Federal, Stale
of l\4issouri, and City rules, regulalions, or other requirements, as each may apply,

a. E-VERIFY COMPLIANCE REQUIREIVENTS: All contractors or subcontractors to be utilized by
Bidder on contracts exceeding five thousand dollars shall, by sworn affldavit and provision of
documentation, affirm its enrollment and participation in a federal work authorization program

with respect to the employees working in connection with the contracted services and affirm that
it does not knowingly employ any person who is an unauthorized alien in connection with the
contracled services.

b. Bidders are herein informed that the work to be performed under this IFB is subject to the
requirements of Section 292.675, RSMo., which requires all contractors or subcontractors
perform work such to provide and require its on-site employees to complele a ten (1O)hour

course in construction safety and health approved by the Occupational Safety and Health

Adminiskation ("OSHA") or a similar program approved by the Missouri Department of Labor

and lndushial Relations which is at least as shingent as an approved OSHA program. The

haining must be completed within sixty (60) days of the date work on the Project commences.
On-siteemployees found on the worksite without documentation of the required training shall

have twenty (20) days to produce such documentation,
c. Pursuant to Section 292.675 RSI\,40., the successful Bidder shall forfeit to the City as a penalty

two thousand five hundred dollars ($2,500.00), plus one hundred dollars ($100.00) for each on-
site employee employed by it, or any contractors or subcontractors hired by it, for each calendar
day, or portion thereof, such on-site employee isemployed without the construction safety

188

Item 12.



33.

34.

35.

36

training required in the above paragraph,

d. Section 208.009 RSMo. shall apply to any contracls awarded under this Bid.

Termination of Award: Any failure of the Bidder to satis{y the requirements of the City shall be reason for
termination of the award. Any Bid may be rqected in whole or in part for any reason by the City.

Royaltiet and Patents: The successful Bidde(s) shall pay all royalties and license fees for equipment or
processes in conjunction with the equipment being furnished. Bidder shall defend all suits or claims for
infringement of any patent right and shall hold the City harmless from loss on account or cost and attorney's fees
incurred.

Equal Employment Opportunity Clause: The City 0f Republic, in accordance with the provision of Title Vl of
the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (78 Stat, 252) and the Regulations of the Department of Commerce (15 CFR,Parl 8)

issued pursuant to the aforementioned Civil Rights Act, hereby notilles all Bidders that the City takes all
reasonably necessary steps to affirmatively ensure that all Bidders, including minority businesses, will be afforded
full opportunity to submit Bids in response to this IFB and that no Bidder will be discriminated against on the
grounds of race, color, or national origin in determining the successful Bidder for award.

lnsurance Requirements: For the duration of any contract awarded under this lFB, (which, for projects including
any labor, means until the work is completed and accepted by the Cily; and which, for projects involving supply
of materials only, means unlil the materials are delivered and accepted by the City), the successful Bidder is
required to maintain certain insurance to protect it and the City againsl risks of loss in connection with the Project,
as defined more fully below. The Successful Bidder will be required to provide the City with proof of insurance
that satislles the requirements stated below, unless othen,trise specified by the City. The insurance requirements
below may be modified or waived by the City at the City's sole discretion.

Workers' Compensationi The Successful Bidder shall maintain Employers Liability and Workers
Compensalion lnsurance for all persons it will employ or retain to perform any work in connection
with a contract awarded under this lFB, and in the event the Successful Bidder will sublet or
subcontract any such work, the Successful Bidder shall require the subcontractor to provide

similar Workers Compensation lnsurance for the subcontractor's employees, unless such

employees are covered by the Successful Bidder's coverage. Workers Compensation coverage
shall meet the minimum requirements under Missouri law of $500,000 each employee and

$500,000 each accident.

b. Commercial General Liability: The Successful Bidder shall maintain Commercial General

Liability coveiage for personal and advertising injury, bodily injury including accidental death,

and broad-form property damage, which may arise from the performance of any contract
awarded under this lFB, in an aggregate amount of not less than $2,000,000 each occurrence
and $1,000,000 each person,

CommercialAutomobile Liability (appries only to prcjects involvrng lhe Successfu I Bidder's
oryration of vehicles in peiorming the work awarded under this IFB): The Successful

Bidder shall maintain Commercial Automobile Liability coverage of not less than $2,000,000
each occunence and $1,000,000 each person for"any auto" on an occurrence basis.

37. Performance Bond and Labor & Materials Payment Bond (applies only to projects involving labo4i
Pursuant to Section 107.170, RSI\40,, if the total cost of the project is estimated to exceed $50,000.00, the
successful Bidder shall execute a Performance and Maintenance Bond and a Laborand l\ilaterials Payment Bond

with surety, approved by the City and on forms approved by the City, each bond shall be in the amount of the total
project cost, conditioned upon the full and faithful performance of all major terms and conditions of the IFB and
payment of all labor and material supplies.

a

c

189

Item 12.



38. Liquidated Damages: Time of completion of the Project by the Successful Bidder is of the essence. Should the
Successful Bidderfailto complete the Project within the time specified in the governing contracuschedule, without
express authorization by the City allowing for an extension of time to completion, the Successful Bidder shall be
liable to the City in the amount of Five Hundred Dollars and Zero Cents ($500.00) per day for each and every
calendar day the Prolect remains uncompleted, as liquidated damages, and not as a penalty, it being stipulated

and agreed that the actualdamages to the City arising from the Successful Biddels failure to timely complete the
Project would be difficult, if not impossible, to reasonably ascertain. Assessment of liquidated damages will not
relieve the Successful Bidder, or its surety/ies, of any responsibility or obligation under the Contract.

39. NonresidenuForeign Contractors: To the extent the successful Bidder utilizes non+esidenUforeign contractors
to provide services or supplies in connection with this lFB, the successful Biddershall procure and maintain:

a. A certificate of authority to transact business in the State of Missourifrom the Secretary of State,

unless exempt pursuaht to the provisions of Section 351,570, RSMo,

b. A certificate from the l\4issouri Director of Revenue evidencing compliance with the transient
employerfinancial assurance law, unless exempt pursuant to the provisions of Section 285.230,
RSlvlo.

40. Bid Tabulation: Bidders may request a copy of the Bid tabulation ofthe IFB

41. Budgetary Constraints: The City reserves the right to reduce or increase the quantity, retract any item from the
Bid, or upon notification, terminate entire agreement without any obligations or penalty basedupon availability of
funds.

42. Additional Purchases by other Public Agencies: By submitting a Bid in response to this lFB, the Bidder
authorizes other publicagencies to "Piggy-Back" or purchase equipment and services being proposed in this IFB

unless otherwise noted on the Affidavit of Compliance Form,

43. Order of Precedence: Any and all Special/General Conditions and Specifications attached hereto, whichvaries
from the instruction to Bidders, shalltake precedence,

44. Affidavit for Service Contrac{s: The successful Bidder represents, in accordance with Section 285,530,2,
RSMo., that it has not employed, or subcontracted with, unauthorized aliens in connection with the scope of work
to be done under this IFB and agrees to provide an afiidavit to the City of Republic affirming that it has not, and
will not at any point in time relating to this lFB, knowingly employ, or subcontract with, any person who is an

unauthorized alien.

45. lnspection and Acceptance: No item(s) received by the City pursuant to any agreement or contract awarded
under this IFB shall be deemed accepted by the City until the City has had reasonable opportunity to inspect the
item(s).

a. Any item(s) which are discovered to be defeclive, or which do not conform to any warranty of
the successful Bidder and/or entity/individual who sold the item(s), upon inspection, may be

returned by the City to the successful Bidder and/or entity/individual who sold the item(s) for
full credit and reimbursement or replacement.

b. lf, at a later time, any defect is discovered which was not ascertainable upon the initial

inspection, the City may also return the defective item(s) to the successful Bidder and/or
entity/individual who sold the item(s) forfull credit and reimbursement or replacement.

c. The City's return of defective rtems shall not exclude any other legal, equitable or conhactual
remedies the City has under applicable Missouri or Republic law and/or any agreement or
contract awarded under this lFB.

46. Davis-Bacon Act: lf the lnstructions to Bidders have indicated that the Project is financed, in whole or in part,

from Federal funds, then all work performed pursuant to any conhact awarded under this IFB shall be subject to
all applicable federal statutes, rules and regulations, including provisions of the Davis-Bacon Act, 40 U.S,C.

190

Item 12.



53141 et seq., and the "Federal Labor Standards Provisions," incorporated into this any agreement or contract

awarded underthis lFB.. Where the Missoun Prevailing Wage Lawandthe Davis-Bacon Act require payment of
different wages for work performed pursuant to any contract awarded under this lFB, all contractors,

subcontractors and other individuals/entities hired by the successful Bidderto perform work underthis IFB shall pay

the greater of the wages required under eitherlaw.

47. Jurisdiction and Venue: This IFB and any executed agreement required pursuant to the terms of this lFB, shall
be taken and deemed t0 have been fully executed and made by the parties herein and governed by the laws of
the State of l\4issouri for all purposes and inlents. Venue under this Agreement or any disputes that come from
it shall be in the Circuit Court of Greene County, Missouri, THE PARTIES HEREBY WAIVE THEIR RIGHT TO
A JURY TRIAL UNDER ANY APPLICABLE STATUTE, CO]II]IION LAW OR FEDERAL OR STATE
CONSTITUTION.

48. Conflict of lnterest: By participating in this IFB and/or accepting an ag reement pursuant to the IFB's terms, the
successful Bidder certifies that no salaried officer or employee of the City, and no member of the City Council or
Mayor of the City of Republic, has a financial interest, direct or ind irect, in this Ag reement. Any federal regulations

and applicable provisions in Section 105,450 et seq,, RSMo, shall not be violated.

49. Sovereign lmmunity: ln no event shall any language or requirement in this IFB or any Agreement that comes

from this IFB be construed as or constitute a waiver or limitation of City's defenses with regard tosovereign

immunity, govemmental immunity, or offlcial immunity under federal or state constitutions, states, and/or laws.

50. Terms: The City of Republic reserves the right to reject any and all proposals received from this Bid. lt further

has the right to negotiate with any qualifled source, or to cancel in part or in its entirety this Bid. The City also

reserves the right to modify, suspend, or terminate at its sole discretion any and all aspects of this bud process,

to obtain further information from any and all respondents, and to waive any defectsas to form or content of the
Bid or any submissions by any firm. This bud does not commit the City to award a contract, to defray any costs
incurred in the preparation of a response to this request, or to procure or contract for services. All submissions

become the property of the City as public record. All submissions may be subject to public review upon request.

191

Item 12.



ATTACHMENT A - BID SUBMISSION FORM

BIDDERS MUST PROVIDE THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION:

Description of Work Price

. 2024 City Overlays & Builds Lot Paving

. Bid Alternate Price individually, do not add all
prices together.

o All Bids to include:

o Travel Expenses

o Delivery Costs

o Administrative costs
o Traffic Control

Please note any of the following:
o Any labor personnel requests of the City

of Republic for this proiect.
. Any other requests or .esponsibilities of

the City of Republic for this proiect.

City Overlays: S 447,499.40

Unit Price Unit
Mit $2.20 SY

Asphalt Overlay $7s.s0 Ton

Stri I 1.30
Ed Treatment $47.2s CY

2'Wideni LF

UItDS Lot Paving: S 94,964.t2

Line Item Unit Price Unit
Fine Grading $1.s0 SY

ln compliance with this lnvitation for Bid and to all terms, conditions, and specifications imposed therein and hereby
incorporated byreference, the undersigned offers and agrees to furnish the goods and/or services described herein.

"z-r.-----_--
tgnature:

IFB for: 2024 City Overlays & Builds Lot Paving

Republic, MO 65738

of Republic, Missouri

Name and Title:
Scott Crabtree VP

Company Legal Name:
Blevins Asphalt Construction Co., lnc,

Address:
PO Box 230
Mt. Vernon, Mo. 65772

Telep 6on". 417-466-3758

6sllulsy; 417-461-4559

Email: scrabtree@blevinsasphalt.com

ps1261 3/2L/24

Bidder's Federal lD Number: 43-0964288

Line ltem

LF

192

Item 12.



NOTICE AND INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS'VENDORS

Regarding Sections 285.525 through 285.550 RSMo., effective January 1, 2009,

and Section 292.675 RSMo., effective August 28, 2009

State law additionally provides that, as a condition for the award of any contract or grant in excess of five thousand dollars by the state

or by any political subdivision of the state (e.9., the City of Republic) to a business entity (e.g ., potential bidders in response to thls

/FB), the business entity (Company) shall, by swom affidavit and provision of documentation, afiirm its enrollment and participation

in a federal work authorization program with respect to the employees working in connection with the contracted services. Every such

business entity shall sign an affidavit affirming that it does not knowingly employ any person who is an unauthorized alien in connection

with the contracted services. See $ 285,530(2), RSN4o.

Section 285.530 RSI\40. pertains to all solicitations for services over $5,000, but does not apply to solicitations for goods only. lf a
solicitation is for a combination of services and goods, Section 285,530 RSI\40. applies if the services portion of the solicitation is over
$5,ooo,

Effective Januarv 1 , 2009 and pursuant to Section 285,530(1) of the Revised Statutes of l\4issouri, "[n]o business entity or employer

shall knowingly employ, hire for employment, or continue to employ an unauthorized alien to perform work within the state of lvlissouri."

193

Item 12.



1 Required Affidavit for Contracts Over $5,000.00 (US) - Effective 1-1-2009, the company (submitting a

Bid) shall comply with the provisions of Section 285.525 through 285.550, RSMo., which require certain
statements to be made under penalty of perlury pertaining to employment of unauthorized aliens. The award
of any contract under this IFB is expressly contingent on the company (submitting a Bid) providing an
acceptable, notarized affidavit, stating as follows:

that said company is enrolled in and participates in a federalwork authorization program with respect
to the employees working in connection with the contracted services; and

The terms used in this affidavit shall have the meaning set forth in Section 285.500 RSMo., ef
seg.

2. Additionally, Company must provide documentation evidencino current enrollment in a federal work
authorization program (e.9. electronic signature page from E-Verify Program's Memo of Understanding
(MOU). See attached sample.

A copy of the required affidavit is included on the following page. A digital copy of the affidavit can also
be accessed and downloaded from the City of Republic's official website, URL address:
httos://www.reou b licmo com/DocumentCenterA/ /Aff idavit-of-Comoliance-with-Section-285500-RSMO-

a

The City of Republic is an E-Verify employer. The City ol Republic encourages clmpanies that are not akeady enrolled and participating in a federal

\,!ork authorizaton program to do so. E-Verify is an example of a federal work authorization program. lnformation regarding E-Verify is available at

htt0:/lwww,uscis.aov/+verifv or by calling 888.46+4218.

b. that said company does not knowingly employ any person who is an unauthorized alien in connection
with the contracted services.

PDF?bidtd=

194

Item 12.



Affidavit of Compliance with Section 285.500, RSiro., et seq.

for all agreemenE providing lervic$ in excesr of $5,000.00

Effective 1/'U2009

STATE OF I,4ISSOURI )

COUNTY OF GREENE )

Before me, the undersig ned tn the County or 
(lseerrr-

State

VP
or MTSSOU_rn

lya Name) who is

_(Title) ol Name of company), a (circle ore) corporation, partnership, sole proprietorship,
limited liability company, and is com t and authorized to make this afiidavit, and being duly su/om upon oath deposes and says as follor.ns:

(1) hat said company is enrolled in and participates in a federal work authorization program with respecl to the employees
,florl(ng in connec{ion with the contracted services; and

(21 that said company does not knowingly employ any person who is an unauthorized alien in connection with the contracled
services.

The terms used in this affldavit shall have the meaning set forth in S€clion 285.500 RSlVo., etseq

Documentation of participation in a federal work authorization program is attached to this affidavit.

Signature

3.ot? fna//.<-
Printed Name

Subscdbed and sworn to before me this E,T day of tt,,larch 3,0,*

"fi.Q;rd4- tr,,t"tO{;
Notary Public a

iily commission expires: A5
I'il ELINDA WILLIFORD

Notery Public, Notary Sea I

Stats of Mireouri
G16eno County

Commission t 137351 52
My Commission Expi.a3 01-21-2025

)ss.

195

Item 12.



,,E-Verify ffi@
l-!ilttyt I Eavtct ot otttit s

Company lD Number: rc7724

THE E.VERIFY
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING

FOR EMPTOYERS

ARTICLE I

PURPOSEANDAUTHORITY

The parties to this agreement are the Department of Homeland Security (DHS) and BtevinsAsphattconstruction company, tnc.

(Emptoyer). The purpose of this agreement is to set forth terms and conditions which the Employer wi[[ follow
white participating in E-Verify.

E-Verify is a program that electronica[[y confirms an employee's eligibility to work in the United States after
completion of Form l-9, Emptoyment Eligibility Verification (Form l-9). This Memorandum of Understanding
(MOU) explains certain features of the E-verify program and describes specific responsibilities of the
Employer, the Social SecurityAdministration (SSA), and DHS.

Authority for the E-Verify program is found in Title lV, Subtitle A, of the l[[egal lmmigration Reform and
lmmigrant Responsibility Act of 1996 (llRlRA), Pub. L. 104-208, 110 Stat. 3009, as amended (8 U.S.C. 5 1324a

note). The FederaI Acquisition Regulation (FAR) Subpa rI22.18, "Employment Etigibility Verification" and
Executive Order 12989, as amended, provide authority for FederaI contractors and subcontractors (Federal

contractor) to use E-Verify to verify the emptoyment etigibitity of certain employees working on Federal
contracts.

ARTICLE II

RESPONSIBILITIES

A. RESPONSIBI LITI ESOF TH E EMPLOYER

1. The Employer agrees to display the following notices supplied by DHS in a prominent place that is clearly
visible to prospective employees and allemptoyees who are to be verified through the system:

a. Notice of E-Verify Participation

b. Notice of Right to Work

2. The Employer agrees to provide to the SSA and DHS the names, titles, addresses, and telephone numbers

of the Employer representatives to be contacted about E-Verify. The Employer also agrees to keep such

information current by providing updated information to SSA and DHS whenever the representatives' contact

information changes.

3. The Emptoyer agrees to grant E-Verify access only to current employees who need E-Verify access.

Employers must promptly terminate an employee's E-Verify access if the employer is separated from the

company or no longer needs access to E-Verify.

Page 1of 17 E-Verlfy MOU for Emptoyers I Revision Date 06/01/13

196

Item 12.



ffi@
f-vEltn El tEavitE 0f ME AiDs

Company lD Number: rc7724

4. The Employer agrees to become familiar with and comply with the most recent version of the E-Verify
User Manua[.

5. The Employer agrees that any Employer Representative who willcreate E-Verify cases willcomplete the
E-Verify Tutorial before that individuaI creates any cases.

a. The Employer agrees that atl Employer representatives will take the refresher tutorials when
prompted by E-Verify in order to continue using E-Verify. Failure to complete a refresher tutorial wil[
prevent the Employer Representative from continued use of E-Verify.

6. The Employer agrees to comply with current Form l-9 procedures, with two exceptions:

a. lf an employee presents a "List B" identity document, the Employer agrees to only accept "List B"

documents that contain a photo. (List B documents identified in 8 C.F.R. S 27aa.2(b)(1)(B)) can be
presented during the Form l-9 process to establish identity.) lf an emptoyee objects to the photo
requirement for religious reasons, the Employer should contact E-Verify at 888-464-4218.

b. lf an employee presents a DHS Form l-551 (Permanent Resident Card), Form l-766
(Employment Authorization Document), or U.S. Passport or Passport Card to complete Form l-9, the
Employer agrees to make a photocopy of the document and to retain the photocopy with the
employee's Form l-9. The Employer wil[ use the photocopy to verify the photo and to assist DHS with its
review of photo mismatches that employees contest. DHS may in the future designate other documents
that activate the photo screening tool.

Note: Subject only to the exceptions noted previously in this paragraph, employees still retain the right
to present any List A, or List B and List C, document(s) to complete the Form l-9.

7. The Employer agrees to record the case verification number on the employee's Form l-9 or to print the
screen containing the case verification number and attach it to the employee's Form l-9.

8. The Employer agrees that, although it participates in E-Verify, the Employer has a responsibility to
complete, retain, and make available for inspection Forms l-9 that retate to its employees, or from other
requirements of appticable regulations or [aws, including the obligation to comply with the anti-
discrimination requirementsof section2T48 of the lNAwith respectto Form l-9 procedures.

a. The following modified requirements are the only exceptions to an Employer's obligation to not

employ unauthorized workers and comply with the anti-discrimination provision of the INA: (1) List B

identity documents must have photos, as described in paragraph 6 above; (2) When an Employer

confirms the identity and employment eligibility of newly hired employee using E-Verify procedures, the

Employer establishes a rebuttable presumption that it has not violated section 27aA(a)(1)(A) of the

lmmigration and Nationality Act (lNA) with respect to the hiring of that employee; (3) lf the Employer

receives a finat nonconfirmation for an employee, but continues to employ that person, the Employer

must notify DHS and the Emptoyer is subject to a civil money penalty between SSSO and 51,100 for each

failure to notify DHS of continued employment following a finaI nonconfirmation; (4) lf the Employer

continues to employ an employee after receiving a final nonconfirmation, then the Emptoyer is subject

to a rebuttabte presumption that it has knowingty

Page2 of 17 E-Verify MOU for Employers I Revision Date 06/01/13

197

Item 12.



ffi@
Company lD Number: fi7724

employed an unauthorized alien in violation of section 27aA(a)(lXA); and (5) no E-Verify participant is
civilly or criminally liabte under any law for any action taken in good faith based on information provided
through the E-Verify.

b. DHS reserves the right to conduct Form l-9 compliance inspections, as we[[ as any other enforcement
or compliance activity authorized by law, including site visits, to ensure proper use of E-Verify.

9. The Employer is strictly prohibited from creating an E-Verify case before the employee has been hired,
meaning that a firm offer of emptoyment was extended and accepted and Form l-9 was completed. The
Employer agrees to create an E-Verify case for new employees within three Emptoyer business days after each
employee has been hired (after both Sections 1 and 2 of Form l-9 have been completed), and to complete as
many steps of the E-Verify process as are necessary according to the E-Verify User Manua[. lf E-Verify is

temporarily unavailable, the three-day time period witt be extended untiI it is again operationaI in order to
accommodate the Employer's attempting, in good faith, to make inquiries during the period of unavailabitity.

10. The Employer agrees not to use E-Verify for pre-employment screening of job applicants, in support of
any unlawful employment practice, or for any other use that this MOU or the E-Verifu User Manual does not
authorize.

11. TheEmployermustuseE-Verifyforallnewemployees. TheEmployerwillnotverifyselectivelyandwitt
not verify employees hired before the effective date of this MOU. Employers who are Federal contractors may
quatify for exceptions to this requirement as described in Article ll.B of this MOU.

L2. The Employer agrees to follow appropriate procedures (see Articte lll below) regarding tentative
nonconfirmations. The Employer must promptly notify employees in private of the finding and provide them
with the notice and letter containing information specific to the employee's E-Verify case. The Employer
agrees to provide both the English and the translated notice and letter for employees with timited Engtish
proficiency to employees. The Employer agrees to provide written referral instructions to employees and

instruct affected employees to bring the English copy of the letter to the SSA. The Employer must allow
employees to contest the finding, and not take adverse action against employees if they choose to contest the
finding, while their case is still pending. Further, when employees contest a tentative nonconfirmation based

upon a photo mismatch, the Employer must take additional steps
(see Article lll.B. below) to contact DHS with information necessary to resolve the cha[lenge.

13. The Employer agrees not to take any adverse action against an emptoyee based upon the emptoyee's

perceived employment etigibitity status while SSA or DHS is processing the verification request unless the

Employer obtains knowledge (as defined in 8 C.F.R. 5 27aa.1(t)) that the employee is not work authorized. The

Employer understands that an initiaI inabiljty of the SSA or DHS automated verification system to verify work

authorization, a tentative nonconfirmation, a case in continuance
(indicating the need for additional time for the government to reso]ve a case), or the finding of a photo

mismatch, does not establish, and shou[d not be interpreted as, evidence that the employee is not work

authorized. ln any of such cases, the employee must be provided a full and fair opportunity to contest the

finding, and if he or she does so, the employee may not be terminated or suffer any adverse employment

consequences based upon the employee's perceived employment etigibitity status

Page 3 of 17 E-Verify MOU for Employers I Revision Date 06/01/13

198

Item 12.



irEVerify lffi"@
Company lD Number: $7724

(inctuding denying, reducing, or extending work hours, delaying or preventing training, requiring an
employee to work in poorer conditions, withhotding pay, refusing to assign the employee to a Federal
contract or other assignment, or otherwise assuming that he or she is unauthorized to work) until and unless
secondary verification by SSA or DHS has been completed and a final nonconfirmation has been issued. lf the
employee does not choose to contest a tentative nonconfirmation or a photo mismatch or if a secondary
verification is compteted and a final nonconfirmation is issued, then the Employer can find the employee is
not work authorized and terminate the emptoyee's employment. Employers or employees with questions
about a finaI nonconfirmation may catl E-Verify at 1-888-464-4218 (customer service) or 1-888-897-7781
(worker hottine).

14. The Employer agrees to compty with Title Vll of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and section 2748 of the tNA
as applicable by not discriminating unlawfu[[y against any individuaI in hiring, firing, employment etigibitity
verification, or recruitment or referral practices because of his or her nationaI origin or citizenship status, or
by committing discriminatory documentary practices. The Employer understands that such itlegat practices
can include selective verification or use of E-Verify except as provided in part D below, or discharging or
refusing to hire employees because they appear or sound "foreign" or have received tentative
nonconfirmations. The Employer further understands that any violation of the immigration-related unfair
employment practices provisions in section 2748 of the INA could subject the Emptoyer to civiI penalties,
back pay awards, and other sanctions, and violations of Title Vll could subject the Emptoyer to back pay
awards, compensatory and punitive damages. Violations of either section 2748 of the INA or Title Vll may
also lead to the termination of its participation in E-Verify. lf the Employer has any questions relating to the
anti-discrimination provision, it should contact OSC at 1-800-255-8155 or 1-800-237-2515 (TDD).

15. The Employer agrees that it wi[1 use the information it receives from E-Verify only to confirm the
employment etigibility of employees as authorized by this MOU. The Employer agrees that it wi[[ safeguard

this information, and means of access to it (such as PINS and passwords), to ensure that it is not used for
any other purpose and as necessary to protect its confidentiality, including ensuring that it is not
disseminated to any person other than employees of the Employer who are authorized to perform the
Employer's responsibilities under this MOU, except for such dissemination as may be authorized in advance

by SSA or DHS for legitimate purposes.

16. The Employer agrees to notify DHS immediately in the event of a breach of personal information.
Breaches are defined as loss of controI or unauthorized access to E-Verify personaI data. Att suspected or
confirmed breaches should be reported by catting 1-888-464-4218 or via emaiI at E-Verifv@uscis.dhs.gov.

Please use "Privacy lncident - Password" in the subject [ine of your emaitwhen sending a breach report to

E-Verify.

17. The Emptoyer acknowledges that the information it receives from SSA is governed by the Privacy Act (5

U.S.C. 5 552a(i)(1) and (3)) and the SociaI Security Act(42 U.S.C. 1306(a)). Any person who obtains this

information under false pretenses or uses it for any purpose other than as provided for in this MOU may be

subject to criminaI penalties.

18. The Employer agrees to cooperate with DHS and SSA in their compliance monitoring and evaluation of
E-Verify, which includes permitting DHS, SSA, their contractors and other agents, upon

Page 4 of 17 E-Verify MOU for Emptoyers I Revision Date 06/01/13

199

Item 12.



llcrify ffi@)
l-vairftt3A *tftt ot t*ar|o 5$

Company lD Number: 197724

reasonable notice, to review Forms l-9 and other employment records and to interview it and its employees
regarding the Employer's use of E-Verify, and to respond in a prompt and accurate manner to DHS requests
for information relating to their participation in E-Verify.

19. The Employer shall not make any false or unauthorized claims or references about its participation in

E-Verify on its website, in advertising materials, or other media. The Employer shall not describe its services
as federally-approved, federally-certified, or federa[[y-recognized, or use language with a similar intent on
its website or other materials provided to the public. Entering into this MOU does not mean that E-Verify

endorses or authorizes your E-Verify services and any claim to that effect is false.

20. The Employer shall not state in its website or other public documents that any [anguage used therein
has been provided or approved by DHS, USCIS or the Verification Division, without first obtaining the prior
written consent of DHS.

21. The Employer agrees that E-Verifv trademarks and logos may be used only under license by DHS/USCIS

(see M-795 (Web)) and, other than pursuant to the specific terms of such license, may not be used in any
manner that might imply that the Employer's services, products, websites, or publications are sponsored
by, endorsed by, licensed by, or affiliated with DHS, USCIS, or E-Verifl7.

22. f he Employer understands that if it uses E-Verify procedures for any purpose other than as authorized
by this MOU, the Employer may be subject to appropriate legaI action and termination of its participation in

E-Verify according to this MOU.

B. RESPONSIBILITIES OF FEDERAL CONTRACTORS

1. lf the Employer is a Federal contractor with the FAR E-Verify clause subject to the employment
verification terms in Subpart 22.18 of the FAR, it wi[1 become familiar with and comply with the most current
version of the E-Verify User ManuaI for FederaI Contractors as we[[ as the E-Verify SupplementaI Guide for
FederaI Contractors,

2. ln addition to the responsibitities of every employer outlined in this MOU, the Employer understands that
if it is a Federal contractor subject to the employment verification terms in Subpart 22.18 of the FAR it must

verify the employment etigibitity of any "employee assigned to the contract" (as defined in FAR 22.1801).

Once an employee has been verified through E-Verify by the Employer, the Employer may not create a

second case for the employee through E-Verify.

a. An Employer that is not enrolled in E-Verify as a Federal contractor at the time of a contract award

must enro[[ as a Federal contractor in the E-Verify program within 30 calendar days of contract award

and, within 90 days of enrollment, begin to verify employment etigibitity of new hires using E-Verify. The

Employer must verify those employees who are working in the United States, whether or not they are

assigned to the contract. Once the Employer begins verifying new hires, such verification of new hires

must be initiated within three business days after the hire date. Once enrol[ed in E-Verify as a Federal

contractor, the Employer must begin verification of employees assigned to the contract within 90

calendar days after the date of enro[lment or within 30 days of an employee's assignment to the
contract, whichever date is later.

Page 5 of 17 E-Verify MOU for Employers I Revision Date 06/01/13

200

Item 12.



@
Company tD Number: fi7724

b. Employers enro[led in E-Verify as a Federal contractor for 90 days or more at the time of a contract
award must use E-Verify to begin verification of employment etigibility for new hires of the Employer
who are working in the United States, whether or not assigned to the contract, within three business

days after the date of hire. lf the Employer is enro[[ed in E-Verify as a Federal contractor for 90 calendar
days or less at the time of contract award, the Employer must, within 90 days of enrollment, begin to
use E-Verify to initiate verification of new hires of the contractor who are working in the United States,

whether or not assigned to the contract. Such verification of new hires must be initiated within three
business days after the date of hire. An Employer enro[led as a Federal contractor in E-Verify must begin

verification of each employee assigned to the contract within 90 calendar days after date of contract
award or within 30 days after assignment to the contract, whichever is later.

c. FederaI contractors that are institutions of higher education (as defined at 20 U.S.C. 1001(a)), state
or localgovernments, governments of Federally recognized lndian tribes, or sureties performing under
a takeover agreement entered into with a Federal agency under a performance bond may choose to
only verify new and existing employees assigned to the FederaI contract. Such FederaI contractors may,

however, elect to verify all new hires, and/or all existing employees hired after November 6, 1986.

Employers in this category must begin verification of employees assigned to the contract within 90

calendar days after the date of enrollment or within 30 days of an employee's assignment to the
contract, whichever date is later.

d. Upon enrollment, Employers who are Federal contractors may elect to verify employment etigibility
of alI existing employees working in the United States who were hired after November 6, 1986, instead

of verifying only those employees assigned to a covered Federal contract. After enro[[ment, Employers
must elect to verify existing stafffo[[owing DHS procedures and begin

E-Verify verification of all existing employees within 180 days after the election.

e. The Employer may use a previously compteted Form l-9 as the basis for creating an E-Verify case for
an employee assigned to a contract as long as:

i. That Form l-9 is complete (including the SSN) and complies with Article ll.A.6,

ii. The employee's work authorization has not expired, and

iii. The Employer has reviewed the Form l-9 information either in person or in communications
with the employee to ensure that the employee's Section 1, Form l-9 attestation has not changed
(including, but not limited to, a [awfuI permanent resident alien having become a naturalized

U.S. citizen).

f. The Employer sha[[ complete a new Form l-9 consistent with Article ll.4.6 or update the previous

Form l-9 to provide the necessary information if:

i. The Employer cannot determine that Form l-9 complies with Article ll.A.6,

ii. The employee's basis for work authorization as attested in Section t has expired or changed,

or

iii. The Form l-9 contains no SSN or is otherwise incomplete.

Note: lf Section 1 of Form l-9 is otherwise valid and up-to-date and the form otherwise complies with

Page 6 of 17 E-Verify MOU for Emptoyers I Revision Date 06/01/13

I.Vlntn Ei tlNta: otoxttxou

201

Item 12.



rElhrify
.,YEBIFYIS' IIryEC

Company lD Number: fi7724

Article ll.C.5, but reflects documentation (such as a U.S. passport or Form l-551) that expired after
completing Form l-9, the Employer sha[[ not require the production of additionaI documentation, or use the
photo screening tooldescribed in Article ll.A.5, subject to any additionaI or superseding instructions that
may be provided on this subject in the E-Verify User Manual.

g. The Employer agrees not to require a second verification using E-Verify of any assigned employee
who has previously been verified as a newly hired employee under this MOU or to authorize
verification of any existing employee by any Employer that is not a FederaI contractor based on this
Article.

3. The Employer understands that if it is a Federal contractor, its compliance with this MOU is a

performance requirement under the terms of the FederaI contract or subcontract, and the Employer
consents to the release of information relating to compliance with its verification responsibilities under this
MOU to contracting officers or other officials authorized to review the Employer's compliance with Federal

contractin g req uirements.

C. RESPONSIBILITIES OF SSA

1. SSA agrees to a[[ow DHS to compare data provided by the Emptoyer against SSA's database. SSA sends

DHS confirmation that the data sent either matches or does not match the information in SSA's database.

2. SSA agrees to safeguard the information the Employer provides through E-Verify procedures. SSA also

agrees to [imit access to such information, as is appropriate by [aw, to individuals responsible for the
verification of SociaI Security numbers or responsible for evaluation of E-Verify or such other persons or
entities who may be authorized by SSA as governed by the Privacy Act (5 U.S.C. 5 552a), the SociaI Security Act
(42 U.S.C. 1306(a)), and SSA regulations (20 CFR Part 401).

3. SSA agrees to provide case resutts from its database within three Federal Government work days of the
initial inquiry. E-Verify provides the information to the Employer.

4. SSA agrees to update SSA records as necessary if the employee who contests the SSA tentative
nonconfirmation visits an SSA field office and provides the required evidence. lf the employee visits an SSA

field office within the eight Federal Government work days from the date of referralto SSA, SSA agrees to
update SSA records, if appropriate, within the eight-day period unless SSA determines that more than eight
days may be necessary. ln such cases, SSA witt provide additionaI instructions to the employee. lf the
employee does not visit SSA in the time allowed, E-Verify may provide a final nonconfirmation to the
employer.

Note: lf an Employer experiences technicaI problems, or has a policy question, the employer should contact
E-Verify at 1-888-464 -42L8.

D. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHS

1. DHS agrees to provide the Employer with selected data from DHS databases to enable the Employer to
conduct, to the extent authorized by this MOU:

a. Automated verification checks on alien employees by electronic means, and

Page 7 of 17 E-Verify MOU for Employers I Revision Date 06/01/13

202

Item 12.



,:Ellerify ffi@
t{etrrYll t ttNKr oFDHilrpu

Company lD Number: p7724

b. Photo verification checks (when available) on emptoyees.

2. DHS agrees to assist the Employer with operationaI problems associated with the Employer's
participation in E-Verify. DHS agrees to provide the Employer names, titles, addresses, and tetephone
numbers of DHS representatives to be contacted during the E-Verify process.

3. DHS agrees to provide to the Employer with access to E-Verify training materials as well as an

E-Verify User ManuaI that contain instructions on E-Verify policies, procedures, and requirements for both SSA

and DHS, including restrictions on the use of E-Verify.

4. DHS agrees to train Employers on a[[ important changes made to E-Verify through the use of mandatory
refresher tutorials and updates to the E-Verify User Manual. Even without changes to
E-Verify, DHS reserves the right to require employers to take mandatory refresher tutorials.

5. DHS agrees to provide to the Employer a notice, which indicates the Employer's participation in

E-Verify. DHS also agrees to provide to the Employer anti-discrimination notices issued by the Office of Speciat
CounseI for lmmigration-Related Unfair Employment Practices (OSC), CiviI Rights Division, U.S. Department of
Justice.

6. DHS agrees to issue each of the Employer's E-Verify users a unique user identification number and
password that permits them to [og in to E-Verify.

7. DHS agrees to safeguard the information the Employer provides, and to limit access to such information to
individuals responsible for the verification process, for evaluation of E-Verify, or to such other persons or
entities as may be authorized by applicable [aw. lnformation will be used only to verify the accuracy of Social
Security numbers and employment eligibility, to enforce the INA and FederaI criminal laws, and to administer
Federal contracting requi rements.

8. DHS agrees to provide a means of automated verification that provides (in conjunction with SSA

verification procedures) confirmation or tentative nonconfirmation of employees' employment etigibitity
within three FederalGovernment work days of the initial inquiry.

9. DHS agrees to provide a means of secondary verification (including updating DHS records) for employees

who contest DHS tentative nonconfirmations and photo mismatch tentative nonconfirmations. This provides

finaI confirmation or nonconfirmation of the employees' employment etigibitity within 10 FederaI Government

work days of the date of referral to DHS, unless DHS determines that more than 10 days may be necessary. ln

such cases, DHS witt provide additionalverification instructions.

ARTICLEIII
REFERRALOF IN DIVIDUALSTOSSAAN D DHS

A. REFERRALTO SSA

L. lf the Employer receives a tentative nonconfirmation issued by SSA, the Employer must print the notice as

directed by E-Verify. The Employer must promptly notify employees in private of the finding and provide

them with the notice and [etter containing information specific to the employee's E-Verify case.

Page 8 of 17 E-Verify MOU for Emptoyers I Revision Date 06/01/13

203

Item 12.



ffi@
Company lD Number: fi7724

The Employer also agrees to provide both the Engtish and the translated notice and letter for employees
with [imited English proficiency to emptoyees. The Employer agrees to provide written referral instructions
to employees and instruct affected employees to bring the English copy of the letter to the SSA. The
Employer must a[low employees to contest the finding, and not take adverse action against emptoyees if
they choose to contest the finding, while their case is sti[[ pending.

2. The Employer agrees to obtain the employee's response about whether he or she will contest the tentative
nonconfirmation as soon as possible after the Employer receives the tentative nonconfirmation. Onty the
emptoyee may determine whether he or she wi[[ contest the tentative nonconfirmation.

3. After a tentative nonconfirmation, the Employer wi[] refer employees to SSA fietd offices only as directed
by E-Verifo. The Employer must record the case verification number, review the emptoyee information
submitted to E-Verifu to identify any errors, and find out whether the employee contests the tentative
nonconfirmation. The Employer will transmit the Social Security number, or any other corrected employee
information that SSA requests, to SSA for verification again if this review indicates a need to do so.

4. The Employer wil[ instruct the employee to visit an SSA office within eight FederaI Government work days.
SSA witt electronically transmit the result of the referralto the Employer within 10 FederaI Government work
days of the referraI unless it determines that more than 10 days is necessary.

5. White waiting for case results, the Employer agrees to check the E-Verify system regularty for case updates.

6. The Employer agrees not to ask the employee to obtain a printout from the SociaI Security Administration
number database (the Numident) or other written verification of the SSN from the SSA.

B. REFERRAL TO DHS

1. lf the Employer receives a tentative nonconfirmation issued by DHS, the Employer must promptty notify
employees in private of the finding and provide them with the notice and letter containing information
specific to the emptoyee's E-Verify case. The Employer also agrees to provide both the English and the
translated notice and letter for employees with limited Engtish proficiency to employees. The Employer must

a[[ow employees to contest the finding, and not take adverse action against employees if they choose to
contest the finding, white their case is sti[[ pending.

2. The Employer agrees to obtain the employee's response about whether he or she wi[[ contest the tentative
nonconfirmation as soon as possible after the Employer receives the tentative nonconfirmation. Only the
employee may determine whether he or she will contest the tentative nonconfirmation.

3. The Employer agrees to refer individuals to DHS only when the emptoyee chooses to contest a tentative
nonconfirmation.

4. lf the employee contests a tentative nonconfirmation issued by DHS, the Employer wi[[ instruct the

Page 9 of 17 E-Verify MOU for Employers I Revision Date 06/01/13

204

Item 12.



#-llerify
orotraxos

Company !D Number: rc2124

emptoyee to contact DHS through its tolt-free hotline (as found on the referral letter) within eight Federat
Government work days.

5. lf the Employer finds a photo mismatch, the Employer must provide the photo mismatch tentative
nonconfirmation notice and foltow the instructions outlined in paragraph 1 of this section for tentative
nonconfirmations, genera [y.

6. The Employer agrees that if an employee contests a tentative nonconfirmation based upon a photo
mismatch, the Employer wi[[ send a copy of the employee's Form l-551, Form l-766, U.S. Passport, or passport
card to DHS for review by:

a. Scanning and uploading the document, or

b. Sending a photocopy of the document by express mail (furnished and paid for by the employer).

7. The Employer understands that if it cannot determine whether there is a photo match/mismatch, the
Employer must forward the employee's documentation to DHS as described in the preceding paragraph. The
Employer agrees to resolve the case as specified by the DHS representative who will determine the photo
match or mismatch.

8. DHSwi[[electronica[[ytransmittheresultofthereferraltotheEmployerwithinl0FederalGovernment
work days of the referraI unless it determines that more than 10 days is necessary.

9. White waiting for case results, the Employer agrees to check the E-Verify system regularly for case updates.

ARTICLE IV
SERVICE PROVISIONS

A" NOSERVICE FEES

1. SSA and DHS witl not charge the Employer for verification services performed under this MOU. The
Employer is responsible for providing equipment needed to make inquiries. To access E-Verify, an Employer
will need a personaI computer with lnternet access.

ARTICLEV
MODI FICATION AN D TERM INATION

A. MODIFICATION

1. This MOU is effective upon the signature of a[[ parties and shall continue in effect for as [ong as the SSA

and DHS operates the E-Verify program unless modified in writing by the mutuaI consent of a[[ parties.

2. Any and all E-Verify system enhancements by DHS or SSA, including but not limited to E-Verify checking
against additional data sources and instituting new verification policies or procedures, wilI be covered under
this MOU and wiI not cause the need for a supplemental MOU that outlines these changes.

Page 10 of 17 E-Verify MOU for Employers I Revision Date 06/01/13

205

Item 12.



,$*F.
:t,f,F$c].
1"XP"'

t.YltrR 6^ tlrtrct oafiSlto rg

Company lD Number: 87724

B. TERMINATION

1. The Employer may terminate this MOU and its participation in E-Verify at any time upon 30 days prior
written notice to the other parties.

2. Notwithstanding Article V, part A of this MOU, DHS may terminate this MOU, and thereby the Employer's
participation in E-Verifl7, with or without notice at any time if deemed necessary because of the requirements
of law or policy, or upon a determination by SSA or DHS that there has been a breach of system integrity or
security by the Employer, or a failure on the part of the Employer to comply with established E-Verify
procedures and/or legal requirements. The Employer understands that if it is a FederaI contractor, termination
of this MOU by any party for any reason may negatively affect the performance of its contractual
responsibilities. Simitarly, the Employer understands that if it is in a state where E-Verify is mandatory,
termination of this by any party MOU may negatively affect the Employer's business.

3. An Employer that is a FederaI contractor may terminate this MOU when the Federal contract that requires
its participation in E-Verify is terminated or completed. ln such cases, the Federal contractor must provide

written notice to DHS. lf an Employer that is a FederaI contractor fails to provide such notice, then that
Employer will remain an E-Verify participant, wi[[ remain bound by the terms of this MOU that apply to non-
Federal contractor participants, and witl be required to use the E-Verif,7 procedures to verify the employment
etigibitity of alI newly hired employees.

4. The Employer agrees that E-Verify is not liable for any losses, financiaI or otherwise, if the Employer is

terminated from E-Verify.

ARTICLEVI
PARTIES

A. Some or a[[ SSA and DHS responsibilities under this MOU may be performed by contractor(s), and SSA and
DHS may adjust verification responsibilities between each other as necessary. By separate agreement with
DHS, SSA has agreed to perform its responsibilities as described in this MOU.

B. Nothing in this MOU is intended, or should be construed, to create any right or benefit, substantive or
procedura[, enforceable at law by any third party against the United States, its agencies, officers, or
employees, or against the Employer, its agents, officers, or employees.

C. The Employer may not assign, directly or indirectly, whether by operation of [aw, change of control or
merger, a[[ or any part of its rights or obligations under this MOU without the prior written consent of DHS,

which consent shall not be unreasonably withhetd or delayed. Any attempt to sublicense, assign, or transfer
any of the rights, duties, or obligations herein is void.

D. Each party sha[[ be solely responsible for defending any claim or action against it arising out of or related to
E-Verify or this MOU, whether civiI or crimina[, and for any tiabitity wherefrom, including (but not limited to)
any dispute between the Employer and any other person or entity regarding the applicabitity of Section 403(d)

of llRlRA to any action taken or attegedty taken by the Employer.

Page 11 of 17 E-Verify MOU for Employers I Revision Date 06/01/13

206

Item 12.



,Ellerify
@ffi

a-Yrnrw rnAtttYt(t of 0a*lxo s*

Company lD Number: 1617724

E. The Employer understands that its participation in E-Verify is not confidentiaI information and may be
disclosed as authorized or required by law and DHS or SSA poticy, including but not timited to, Congressional
oversight, E-Verify pubticity and media inquiries, determinations of compliance with Federat contractual
requirements, and responses to inquiries under the Freedom of lnformation Act (FOIA).

F. The individuals whose signatures appear below represent that they are authorized to enter into this MOU

on behalf of the Employer and DHS respectively. The Employer understands that any inaccurate statement,
representation, data or other information provided to DHS may subject the Employer, its subcontractors, its
employees, or its representatives to: (1) prosecution for false statements pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1001 and/or; (2)

immediate termination of its MoU andlor, (3) possibte debarment or suspension.

G. The foregoing constitutes the futl agreement on this subject between DHS and the Emptoyer.

To be accepted as an E-Verify participant, you should only sign the Emptoyer's Section of the signature
page. lf you have any questions, contact E-Verify at 1-888-464-42L8.

Page 12 of 17 E-Verify MOU for Employers I Revision Date 06/01/13

207

Item 12.



ffi@
t.rEi,tYrSaaaNraa orm5fio9

Company lD Number: p7724

Approved by:

03/13/2009

Date

Page 13 of 17 E-Verify MOU for Emptoyers I Revision Date 06/01/13

Employer

Blevins Asphalt Construction Company, lnc.

Name (Ptease Type or Print)
Rick Bekemeier

l'**
Signature

Electronically Signed

Division

Name (Please Type or Print)
USCIS Verification Division

l'''*
Signature loate

l 

o.,,.,roonElectronically Signed

208

Item 12.



I

ffi@
€ yf,ctft t3d $!a!t& olodsa{o5u

Company lD Number: $7224

for the E-Verify

Page 14 of 17 E-Verify MOU for Emptoyers I Revision Date 06/01/13

Company Name

Blevins Asphalt Construction Company, lnc.

Company Facility Address

11837 Lawrence 1163
MountVernon, MO65712

Com pany Alternate Address

PO BOX 230
Mount Vemon, MO 65712

County or Parish LAWRENCE

Emptoyer ldentification Number 430964288

Classification Systems Code
237

Parent Company

Number of Employees 2O to 99

Number of Sites Verified for 1 site(s)

209

Item 12.



{llerify ffi
Company lD Number: $tTZ4

Are you verifying for more than 1 site? lf yes, please provide the number of sites verified for in each State:

MO1

Page 15 of 17 E-Verify MOU for Employers I Revision Date 06/01i13

210

Item 12.



"lE-llerify
Company !D Number: 1617724

lnformation relating to the Program Administrator(s) for your Company on policy questions or operational
problems:

Name Angel Shaw
phone Number 417.466.3758
Fax 417.466.7914

Email ashaw@blevinsasphalt.com

Page 16 of 17 E-Verify MOU for Emptoyers I Revision Date 06/01/13

a.MrFY rra rEwtcc oFof,tlx! !s

211

Item 12.



ffi@
Company ID Number: $7724

This list represents the first 20 Program Administrators listed for this company

Page 17 of 17 E-Verify MOU for Emptoyers I Revision Date 06/01/13

212

Item 12.



Company lD Number: XXXXXX

The foregoing constitutes the full agreement on this subject between the SSA, DHS (Department of Homeland Security), and the Employer.

The individuals whose signatures appear below represent that they are authorized to enter into this Memorandum of Understanding on behalf

of the Employer and DHS respectively.

To be accepted as a paffcipant in E-Verify, you should only sign the Employe/s Section of the signature page. lf you have any questions, contact E-

Verify Operations at 8884644218.

EDdgygI, Your Company Name

John Doe

S3\II\P
\e

Name (Please type or print) iy)

JI*

O*1

.)*)t\ ler"r

T
Title

)

Verification

Deoartment of Homeland Secudtv Division

USGIS Verification Division
Name (Please type or print)

Signature

f:\'U\ I

$I

JJ}

DatC

iIJ$

?

Il *lf

J) .""t \ \J

u J}L\*
I ffift*

213

Item 12.



City of Republic, ttlissouri
AFFIDAVIT OF COMPLIANCE WITH INVITATION FOR BID

To be submifted with all Bids in response to this IFB

-\-w" oO fOf take exception to the IFB Documents/Requirements.

We TAKE exception to the IFB Documents/Requirements as follows:

I have carefully examined the lnvitation for Bid and agree to abide by all submitted pricing, delivery, terms and
conditions of this IFB unless otheruise stipulated herein,

Company 11.r. Blevins Asphalt Construction Co., Inc ADDENDA

acknowledges receipt of the following addendum
(Authorized rson's Signature)

Telephone Number 417-466-3758

Fax Number 417466-7914

Dale 3121124

Addendum No. 1

Addendum No. 2

Addendum No.

Addendum No, _
Email scrabtree@blevinsasphalt,com

Mt. Vernon [,10. 65712

Federal Tax lD No

DBE Vendor (Yes/No): No Minorlty owned: _
Women Owned

Veteran Owned

43-0964288

Company Address _
P0 Box 230

214

Item 12.



AIA Document A31o'* - 2o1o

CONTRACTOR:
(Name, legal stqtus and address)
Blevins Asphalt Construction Co. lnc.
PO Box 230
Mount Vernon, MO 65712

SI,RETY:
(Name, legal stc,tu.s ond principal place
of busit7€.ss)

Hartford Fire lnsurance Company
One Hartford Plaza
Hartford, CT 06155

OIVIIER:
(Name, leEal stc,tus qnd arldress)
City of Republic
213 N Main
Republic, MO 65738

BOND AIIIOUNT: Ten Percent of the Total Amount Bid ( I 0olo)

//h, uo.,-.* /L/,/.1.,-

PROJECT:
(Name, location or address, ond Project number, ilany)

2024 City Pavement overlays Project Number' ifany:

Republic, MO

The Contractor and Surety are bound to the Owner in the arnount sa forth above, for the payment ofwhich the
Contractor and Sursty bind themselves, rheir heirs, executoB, adminisrators, succ€ssors and assigns,jointly and

severally, as provided herein. The conditions ofthis Bond are such that ifthe Owner acceps the bid ofthe Contractor
within the time specified in the bid documens, or within such time period as may be agreed to by the Owner and
C-onFactor, and the Contractor either (l ) enters into a contract with the Owner in accordance with the terms of such

bid, and gives such bond or bonds as may be specified in the bidding or Contract Documents, with a surety admitted
in thejurisdiction ofthe Project and otherwise acceptable to the Owner, for the faithful perfo.ma[ca ofsuch Contract
and for the prompt payment of labor and material fumished in the prosecution thereof; or (2) pays to the Ownfi the
difference, not to exce€d the amount ofthis Bond, between the amount specified in said bid and such larger amount
for which the Owner may in good faith contract wilh another party to perform the work covered by said bid, then this
obligation shall be null and void, otherwise to r€main in full force and effect. The Surety hereby waives any notice of
an agreement between the O*.tler and Contractor to extend the time in which the Owner may accept the bid. Waiver of
notice by the Suety shall not apply to any extension exceeding sixty (60) days in the agFegale beyond the time for
accepra[ce of bids specified in the bid documents, and the Owner and Conlraclor shall obtain the Surety's consent for
an exte$ion beyond sixty (60) days.

Ifthis Bond is issued in connection with a subcontractor's bid to a Contractor, the term Conts'actor in this Bond shall
be deemed to be Subconractor and the tem Owner shall be dcemed to be Contmctor.

When this Bond has been fumished to comply with a statutory or other legal requircment in the location ofthe Project
any provision in this Bond conflicting with said statutory or legal requirement shall be deemed delaed hcreliom and
provisions conforming to such statutory or other legal requirement shall be deemed incorporated heroin. When xr
fumished. the is thar this Bond shall b€ construed as a statutory bond and not as a common law bond.

day of March, 2024

Blevins Asphalt Construction Co, lnc.

Signed this

(P (Seal)

(Titl, Scon lcc-

Hartford Fire lnsurance Company
iSeal)

(Wine"")
/ft/e, Nicole M Johnso"n. Attorniy-ln-Fact

ALA Docurl.ri A3l0n - 2Ot0. Co9yrlghr O 1S3. r97O end m10 by Thd A,rE i:an lrditute of Ardrit€.is. A[ righB re.a.v.d. L!..rrl:lNG. r-r-: Ar,1

Docu$.nl is protecle.i by U.S Copyrighl Lrw and lntemational irostles. Umuthorized .ep.oduclron o, disk,bution of tnl. AIA f".cu,'".l1r c,
any ponie. ol ft, may r6ult in s€vsrs civil and cdmi.3l pon!|1jes, and wjll b€ prosecutad to the maximum ortent cossibls !nd€r ti€ :a: Thls
clocrinEnt \Nas c'B€rcd oo O1mnO12 07:23:12 urd€r tno Bnis o( AIA DodrnpnE-on-D€rmrxlt order no 20OE39Zra3 . and rs not for
r€sals Th,s dGJnEnt as lbens€d by Ttl€ Am€ri:an lnstitrta of Ardlit6ds ior onelinE ta€ only. a.d rney nol b€ reprduced pfior lo its con'dGlion 6Ji{

Wftlt(u ltrYhino^

Init.

Bid Bond

This docurient has important legal

consequences. Consultation wilh

an attorney is en@uraged with
respect to ils completion or
modifcation.

Any singular reference to
Contractor, Surety, O',vner or
other party shall be considered
plural wlEre applicable.

215

Item 12.



POWER OF ATTORNE,Y
Di rect I n qu i ries/C la i m s to :

THE HARTFORD
BOND, T.11

One Hartford Plaza
Hartford, Connecticut 061 55

Bond.Claims@thehartf ord.com
cafl: 888-266-3488 or fax: 860-757-5835

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS THAT: Agency Name: BONDING AND INS SOLUTfONS LLC
Aoencv Code: 37-284958

lFl Harttord Fire tnsurance Company, a corporation duly organized under the laws of the State of Connecticut

IT-] Xarttord Casuatty lnsurance Company, a corporation duly organized under the laws of the State of Indiana

lT--l Uarford Accident and lndemnity Company, a corporation duly organized under the laws of the State of Connecticut

Hartford Underwriters lnsurance Company, a corporation duly organized under the laws of the State of Connecticut

Twin City Fire lnsurance Company, a corporation duly organized under the laws of the State of Indiana

Hartford lnsurance Company of lllinois, a corporation duly organized under the laws of the State of Illinois

Hartford lnsurance Company of the Midwest, a corporation duly organized under the laws of the State of Indiana

Hartford lnsurance Company of the Southeast a corporation duly organized under the laws of the State of Florida

having their home office in Hartford, Connecticut, (hereinafter collectively referred to as the "Companies") do hereby make, constitute and appoint,
up to the amount of Unlimited :

Eric A. Dedovesh, Nlcole M. Johnson, Rodney W. Paddock, Nathan Paddock of LEES
SUMMIT, Missouri

their true and lawful Attorney(s)-in-Fact, each in their separate capacig if more than one is named above, to sign its name as surety(ies) only as

delineated above by 8, and to execute, seal and acknowledge any and all bonds, undertakings, contracts and other written instruments in the
nature thereof, on behalf of the Companies in their business of guaranteeing the fidelity of persons, guaranteeing the performance of contracts and

executing or guaranteeing bonds and undertakings required or permitted in any actions or proceedings allowed by law.

ln Witness Whereof, and as authorized by a Resolution of the Board of Directors of the Companies on May 23, 2016 the Companies
have caused these presents to be signed by its Assistant Vice President and its corporate seals to be hereto affixed, duly attested by its Assistant
Secretary. Further, pursuant to Resolution of the Board of Directors of the Companies, the Companies hereby unambiguously affirm that they are

and will be bound by any mechanically applied signatures applied to this Power of Attorney.

@@@ffi@ffi@ffi
iltl/q Dn^N /,1/81

Shelby Wiggins, Assistant Secretary Joelle L. Assistant Vice President

STATE OF FTORIDA

ss. Lake Mary

day of May, 2021, before me personally
Florida; that (s)he is

came Joelle LaPiene, to me known, who being by me duly swom, did depose and say: that
(s)he resides in Seminole County, State of the Assistant Vice President of the Companies, the corporations described in and which

executed the above instrument; that knows the seals of the said corporations; that the seals affixed to the said instrument are such corporate seals;(s)he
of thethat they were so affixed by authority Boards of Directors of said corporations and that (s)he signed his/her name thereto by like authority

Q;-*,,<
Jessica Ciccone

My Comission HH 122280

Expires Jme 20, 2025

COUNTY OF SEMINOTE

On this 20th

ffi
l, the undersigned, Assistant Mce President of the Companies, DO H

copy of the Power of Attorney executed by said Companies, which is still in full

Signed and sealed in Lake Mary, Florida.

EREBY CERTIFY that the above and
force effective ss e1 March 2 Oth

is a true and correct
2 2

@@@ffi@ffi@,ffi
W #a7r"*

Keith D. Dozois, Assistant Vice President

216

Item 12.



Agency Name City of Republic

Bid Number IFB-004-0-2024

Bid Name 2024 Overlays

Bid Due Date 3/21/24 3:00 p.m.

Bid Item APAC Blevins Capital

2024 Overlays-total $650,000.00 $487,499.40 $867,902.25

Milling $3.20 $2.20 $4.30

Asphalt Overlay $92.00 $75.50 $93.25

Striping $1.10 $1.30 $1.30

Edge Treatment $15.00 $47.25 $150.00

2' Widening $15.00 $6.50 $40.00

BUILDS Lot Paving $112,000.00 $94,964.12 $141,015.50

Fine Grading $1.35 $1.50 $3.50

217

Item 12.


	Top
	Item 1.	minutes
	City Council Meeting Minutes 3-19-24_Final

	Item 2.	PDD 24-001 Brookside Estates
	PDD 24-001 CC Staff Report
	24- ORD Brookside Estates PDD (PDD 24-001)_MEM FINAL
	Brookside Est Site Plan 1-31-24 1st Revision post Final
	PDD 24-001 Vicinity
	PDD 24-001 Zoning
	PDD 24-001 FoFs complete

	Item 3.	Planning and Zoning Code changes
	ORD 24-001 CC Staff Report
	24-ORD-XX - Amending Chapter 400 Planning and Zoning_MEM FINAL
	Chapter 400 Comprehensive Plan And City Planning And Zoning Commission - final changes
	ORD 24-001 FoFs complete

	Item 4.	IGA apprenticeship program
	Workforce Agreement March 2024
	24-ORD-Authorizing Execution of IGA withDOL for apprenticeship program_MEM FINAL
	City of Republic_Registered_Apprenticeship_Standards

	Item 5.	sewer connection
	Exhibit - Sewer Connection ORD
	24-ORD-XX - Amending Chapter 715-Sewer Connections_MEM FINAL

	Item 6.	IGA School/Drury ROW
	Exhibit - IGA RepSD DPI
	24-ORD-Authorizing Execution of IGA with School and Drury for ROW access_MEM FINAL
	4865-8624-8343.4 Land Exchange Agreement - Drury Properties (Hwy 60 Land Swap)(final)
	Exhibit A
	Exhibit B
	Exhibit C
	Exhibit D
	2024-03-31 Exhibit E - General Warranty Deed - Drury to City
	2024-03-31 Exhibit F - General Warranty Deed - District to Drury
	2024-03-31 Exhibit G - Memorandum of Future Land Rights - City and MHTC to Drury

	Item 7.	IGA MHTC for ROW by school
	Exhibit - IGA MHTC DPI
	24-ORD-XX - Authorizing Execution of IGA with MHTC and Drury for middle school project
	2024-03-18 MOU US60 FR107

	Item 8.	IGA School and Evergreen
	Exhibit - IGA School Sewer
	24-ORD-Authorizing Execution of IGA with School and Evergreen for Water Main_MEM FINAL
	2024-02-22 Development Agreement with City and Owner (Evergreen) (Clean 3-19-24)

	Item 9.	IGA with school and Great Escape
	Exhibit - IGA School Sewer
	24-ORD-XX - Authorizing execution of IGA with School District and Great Escape Beer Works for school project
	2024-3-26 Great Escape Easement Final Documents

	Item 10.	Council Comp
	council compensation staff report-draft
	24-ORD-XX - Council Member-Mayor Compensation_MEM FINAL

	Item 11.	RFQ Award - Design-Build Services for Tennis/Pickleball Facility
	Exhibit - Design-Build for Tennis & Pickleball Courts
	24-R-XX - Design-Build Services for New Tennis and Pickleball Facility_MEM FINAL
	RFQ - Design Build Services for Tennis  Pickleball Facility (FINAL)

	Item 12.	Overlays
	Staff Report Paving  Overlays (04-02-24)
	24-R- Awarding Bid for Street Overlays_MEM FINAL
	Blevins
	Bid Tabulation

	Bottom

